
3/30/2015 2:03 PM Last Updated  

City Council April 6, 2015 Agenda   Page 1 of 2 
N:\City Recorder\Agenda\4.6.15cc page numbers.docx 

 
AGENDA 

 
WILSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

APRIL 6, 2015   
7:00 P.M. 

 
CITY HALL 

29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOP 
WILSONVILLE, OREGON 

 
 

Mayor Tim Knapp 
Council President Scott Starr      Councilor Julie Fitzgerald 
Councilor Susie Stevens      Councilor Charlotte Lehan 
 

CITY COUNCIL MISSION STATEMENT 
To protect and enhance Wilsonville’s livability by providing quality service to ensure a safe, attractive, 

economically vital community while preserving our natural environment and heritage. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Executive Session is held in the Willamette River Room, City Hall, 2nd Floor 
 
5:00 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION      [20 min.] 
 A. Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f) Exempt Public Records 
  ORS 192.660(2)(h) Litigation 
 
5:15 P.M. REVIEW OF AGENDA     [5 min.] 
 
5:20 P.M. COUNCILORS’ CONCERNS     [5 min.] 
 
5:25 P.M. PRE-COUNCIL WORK SESSION  
 

A. Community Development Planning Fees (Cole)  [20 min.] Page 1 
B. Community Development Project Updates (Kraushaar) [20 min.]  

 
6:50 P.M. ADJOURN 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
The following is a summary of the legislative and other matters to come before the Wilsonville City Council a 
regular session to be held, Monday, April 6, 2015 at City Hall.  Legislative matters must have been filed in the 
office of the City Recorder by 10 a.m. on March 18, 2015.  Remonstrances and other documents pertaining to any 
matters listed in said summary filed at or prior to the time of the meeting may be considered therewith except where 
a time limit for filing has been fixed. 
 
7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER 
 A. Roll Call 
 B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Motion to approve the following order of the agenda and to remove items from the consent agenda. 
 
 
 



3/30/2015 2:03 PM Last Updated  

City Council April 6, 2015 Agenda   Page 2 of 2 
N:\City Recorder\Agenda\4.6.15cc page numbers.docx 

7:05 P.M. MAYOR’S BUSINESS 
A. Proclamation Declaring April Parkinson’s Awareness Month (Kevin Mansfield   Page 4 
 Oregon State Director for Parkinson’s Action Network.) 
B. Recognition for National Service Proclamation (Lara Jones, AmeriCorps)  Page 5 
C. Arbor Day Proclamation (staff – Pauly)       Page 8 
D. Child Abuse Prevention Month (Tracy Cramer, Development and Communications  Page 11 
 Coordinator) 
E. Upcoming Meetings         Page 13 

 
7:30 P.M. COMMUNICATIONS 
 A. Chief Duyck, Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (TVF&R) Annual State of the District 
 
7:45 P.M. CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda.  It is also the time to 
address items that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing.  Staff and the City Council will make 
every effort to respond to questions raised during citizens input before tonight's meeting ends or as quickly as 
possible thereafter. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 
 
7:50 P.M. COUNCILOR COMMENTS, LIAISON REPORTS & MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Council President Starr – (Park & Recreation Advisory Board Liaison) 
B. Councilor Fitzgerald – (Development Review Panels A & B Liaison)  
C. Councilor Stevens – (Library Board and Wilsonville Seniors Liaison) 
D. Councilor Lehan– (Planning Commission and CCI Liaison) 

 
8:00 P.M. CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. Minutes of the March 16, 2015 Council Meeting. (staff – King)    Page 15 
 
8:05 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 A. Resolution No. 2524         Page 19 

Resolution To Issue An Order By The City Council Denying The Appeal And Affirming Development 
Review Board Resolution No. 299 Relating To A Tentative Land Partition For Two Parcels.  The 
Subject Site Is Located On Tax Lot 2700 Of Section 13BA, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon.  
Applicant/Appellant/Owner Gerald And Joanne Downs; Applicant Representative Ronald Downs.  
Application Nos. AR14-0077; DB15-0006.   (staff – Kraushaar/Jacobson) 

 
8:50 P.M. CITY MANAGER’S BUSINESS 
8:55 P.M. LEGAL BUSINESS 
9:00 P.M. ADJOURN 
 
Time frames for agenda items are not time certain (i.e. Agenda items may be considered earlier than indicated. The 
Mayor will call for a majority vote of the Council before allotting more time than indicated for an agenda item.)  
Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be scheduled for this 
meeting if required at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  The city will also endeavor to provide the following 
services, without cost, if requested at least 48 hours prior to the meeting:-Qualified sign language interpreters for 
persons with speech or hearing impairments. Qualified bilingual interpreters.  To obtain services, please contact the 
City Recorder, (503)570-1506 or king@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

mailto:king@ci.wilsonville.or.us


 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date:  
 
April 6, 2015 

Subject:  Community Development Planning Fees  
 
Staff Member: Susan Cole 
Department: Finance 
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission Recommendation  
☐ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☐ Resolution Comments:   

 ☐ Information or Direction 
☒ Information Only 
☒ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation: For review, discussion and direction. 
Recommended Language for Motion: Information Only 
 
PROJECT / ISSUE RELATES TO: [Identify which goal(s), master plans(s) issue relates to.] 
☐Council Goals/Priorities 
 

☐Adopted Master Plan(s) 
 

☐Not Applicable 
 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL:  The Community Development (CD) Fund resources are falling 
behind the fund’s requirements.  Staff is evaluating whether to raise Land Use Development and 
Planning Review Fees for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015.  The last increase was approved in 
May of 2007, and took effect July 1, 2007.  Staff is seeking direction whether to prepare a fee 
resolution that increases these fees, effective July 1, 2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Finance staff have partnered with CD staff to review functions and 
tasks performed for land use development and planning review, to ensure that fees are set to 
recover the costs.  This cursory review has led to the following conclusions: 

· Review of large, complicated projects indicate that fees are not recovering the costs 
associated with extensive staff review, hearings, amendments and modifications. 

· Data systems have continued to evolve, making in-depth analysis time consuming, 
especially for projects that span many years.  Prior to the City implementing its financial 
Eden in 2004, and its labor tracking software (TimeTrax) the process of calculating fees 

Page 1 of 301



 
 

and tracking permit projects was manual.  After Eden and TimeTrax were implemented, 
continued refinement and process improvements have occurred, leading to 
inconsistencies in comparing data over time. 

· Allowable annual increases have not been implemented.  The most recent enabling fee 
resolution, Resolution No. 2050, allowed for the fees to be adjusted annually to reflect 
the increase in the Portland/Salem area consumer price index (CPI).   

 
A more in-depth analysis of the requirements of the CD Fund as compared to the resources is 
recommended, not only to review the Land Use Development and Planning Review Fees, but 
also transfers from the capital program, charges to the Urban Renewal Agency, and the General 
Fund subsidy.  A more thorough analysis of the CD Fund will ensure its long-term sustainability. 
 
This in-depth analysis would be most efficiently performed by an outside consultant, who could 
dedicate focused time to it, and who would bring experience and expertise to the topic.  The 
results of such a study would inform budget planning for the Fiscal Year 2016-17. 
 
Considering that allowable annual increases have not occurred, Council could decide to 
implement a fee increase, effective July 1, 2015, as a stop-gap measure until a more in-depth 
analysis is completed. 
 
Since Resolution 2050 was implemented in 2007, the CPI for the Portland/Salem area has 
increased from 2007 to 2014 approximately 15.7%, or 2.24% on average, each year.  Fees could 
be increased by this amount to “catch up” to the changes in the CPI.   
 
An additional 2.24% increase could be included to “catch up” the fees through FY 2015-16, 
bringing the total percent increase to 17.9%. This would yield approximately $60,000 more 
revenue to the CD Fund in FY 2015-16.  This additional revenue would be used to offset 
anticipated deficits in the CD Fund.  The current year budget shows a deficit of about $152,000. 
While next year’s budget is still being worked on, a deficit is anticipated.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 301



 
 

Staff is seeking direction as to whether Land Use Development and Planning Review Fees 
should be set to “catch up” with the CPI. 
 
EXPECTED RESULTS:  
Depending upon Council direction, staff would prepare a fee resolution to become effective July 
1, 2015.  
 
TIMELINE:  
A fee resolution would be proposed June 1, 2015, along with other budget resolutions for Fiscal 
Year 2015-16. 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS:  
Any fee changes would become effective with the new Fiscal Year 2015-16 and not impact the 
current year budget.  
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENTS:  
Reviewed by: _SCole__________  Date: _3/30/15____ 
 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:  
Reviewed by: ____ __________  Date: _________ 
 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:  
None 
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY  
None 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
Not Applicable 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Page 3 of 301



 
PROCLAMATION DECLARING APRIL 
PARKINSON’S AWARENESS MONTH 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Parkinson’s disease is a progressive neurological movement 
disorder of the central nervous system, which has a unique impact on each 
patient; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is no objective test or biomarker for Parkinson’s disease 
and the symptoms of the disease vary from person to person resulting in a high 
rate of misdiagnosis; and  
 
 WHEREAS, although new medicines and therapies may enhance life for 
some time for people with Parkinson’s, more work is needed for a cure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is no therapy or drug to slow or halt the progression of 
the disease and increased education and research is needed to find more effective 
treatments and ultimately a cure for Parkinson’s disease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a multidisciplinary approach to Parkinson’s disease care 
includes local wellness, support, and caregiver groups; and 
 
 WHEREAS, local, regional and state volunteers, researchers and medical 
professionals are working to improve the quality of life of persons living with 
Parkinson’s disease and their families; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE I, Tim Knapp, Mayor of the City of Wilsonville do 
hereby proclaim April 2015.  
 

Parkinson’s Awareness Month. 
 
 
     _____________________________________ 
     Tim Knapp, Mayor 
     Signed this 6th day of April, 2015 

Page 4 of 301



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
 Whereas, AmeriCorps and Senior corps participants serve in more than 60,000 locations 
across the country, bolstering the civic, neighborhood, and faith-based organizations that are so 
vital to our economic and social well-being; and 
 
 Whereas, national service participants increase the impact of the organizations they serve 
with, both through their direct service and by recruiting and managing millions of additional 
volunteers; and  
 
 Whereas, national service represents a unique public-private partnership that invests in 
community solutions and leverages non-federal resources to strengthen community impact and 
increase the return on taxpayer dollars; and 
 
 Whereas national service participants demonstrate commitment, dedication, and 
patriotism by making an intensive commitment to service, a commitment that remains with them 
in their future endeavors; and 
 
 Whereas, the Corporation for National and Community Service shares a priority with 
mayors nationwide to engage citizens, improve lives, and strengthen communities; and is joining 
with the National League of Cities, City of Service, and mayors across the country to recognize 
the impact of service on the Mayors Day of Recognition for National Service on April 7, 2015. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Tim Knapp, do hereby proclaim April 7, 2015 as  
 

National Service Recognition Day in the City of Wilsonville 
 
and I encourage residents to recognize the positive impact of national service in our city, to thank 
those who serve; and to find ways to give back to their communities. 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Tim Knapp, Mayor 
       Signed April 6, 2015 

Page 5 of 301



	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
	  

	  

City  and  County  Day  of  Recognition  for  National  Service:    
April  7,  2015  

	  

Every  day,  in  communities  across  America,  national  service  is  tackling  tough  problems.    On  April  7,  2015,  city  and  
county  leaders  throughout  the  country  will  thank  those  who  serve  and  recognize  their  impact  on  the  City  and  County  
Day  of  Recognition  for  National  Service.  
  
Throughout  the  nation,  local  governments  are  increasingly  turning  to  national  service  as  a  cost-‐‑effective  
strategy  to  address  local  challenges.    By  unleashing  the  power  of  citizens,  AmeriCorps  and  Senior  Corps    
(Foster  Grandparents,  Senior  Companions  and  RSVP)  programs  have  a  positive  and  lasting  impact,  
making  our  communities  better  places  to  live.    To  spotlight  the  impact  of  national  service  and  thank  those  
who  serve,  elected  leaders  across  the  country  will  participate  in  City  and  County  Day  of  Recognition  for  
National  Service  on  April  7,  2015.  The  event  began  in  2013  as  Mayors  Day  of  Recognition  through  a  
partnership  between  the  National  League  of  Cities  and  the  federal  Corporation  for  National  and  
Community  Service  (CNCS).    In  2015,  to  celebrate  National  County  Government  Month,  the  National  
Association  of  Counties  (NACo)  has  joined  the  other  partners  and  expanded  this  special  day  to  include  all  
local  governments  in  recognizing  the  millions  of  Americans  who  reside  and  serve  in  their  communities.  
  
National  Service:  A  Resource  for  Communities  
As  the  federal  agency  for  national  service  and  volunteering,  CNCS  annually  engages  five  million  citizens  
in  service  at  more  than  60,000  sites  across  the  country.    Through  AmeriCorps  (including  VISTA  and  
NCCC),  Senior  Corps  (including  Foster  Grandparents,  Senior  Companions,  and  RSVP),  the  Social  
Innovation  Fund,  and  other  programs,  CNCS  leverages  federal  and  private  funds  to  support  organizations  
that  achieve  measurable  results  where  the  need  is  greatest.    Whether  supporting  food  banks  and  homeless  
shelters,  restoring  parks,  providing  health  services,  strengthening  public  safety  and  juvenile  justice  
services,  tutoring  and  mentoring  students,  and  managing  community  volunteers,  national  service  
members  help  local  elected  leaders  tackle  tough  problems.    
  

Why  a  City  and  County  Day  of  Recognition?  
County  governments  have  a  broad  range  of  responsibilities  to  their  residents,  which  matches  CNCS’s  
mission  to  improve  lives,  strengthen  communities  and  foster  civic  engagement.  A  coordinated  day  of  
recognition  presents  a  unique  opportunity  to  spotlight  the  key  role  that  national  service  plays  in  helping  
counties  solve  problems.  Participating  in  the  day  will  highlight  the  impact  of  citizen  service,  show  support  
for  nonprofit  and  national  service  groups,  and  inspire  more  residents  to  serve  in  their  communities.  
  

What  Happened  Last  Year?  
On  April  1,  2014,  the  second  annual  Mayors  Day  of  Recognition  for  National  Service  united  mayors  across  
the  country  to  spotlight  the  impact  of  national  service  and  honor  those  who  serve.  Altogether,  1,760  
mayors  in  all  50  states  and  the  District  of  Columbia,  Guam,  and  Puerto  Rico  officially  recognized  the  work  
that  AmeriCorps  members  and  Senior  Corps  volunteers  are  doing  to  make  cities  better  and  stronger.  
Together,  these  elected  officials  represent  more  than  110  million  citizens,  or  one-‐‑third  of  all  Americans.    In  
2015,  CNCS  is  expanding  this  initiative  so  that  county  executives  and  tribal  leaders  also  have  the  
opportunity  to  highlight  the  contributions  of  national  service  members  in  their  communities.      

Page 6 of 301



	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
	  

  

What  are  the  Goals  of  the  Day?    
• Highlight  how  local  government  leaders  and  communities  use  national  service  to  solve  challenges  
• Thank  national  service  members  for  their  commitment  and  impact  
• Build  public  awareness  about  the  value  and  impact  of  national  service  to  Oregon’s  cities  and  counties  
• Provide  opportunities  for  elected  leaders  to  communicate  about  the  impact  of  national  service  to  

national  policymakers  
• Generate  press  coverage  and  online  discussion  about  local  government’s  support  for  service  as  a  

strategy  for  strengthening  communities.  
  
Who  Can  Participate?    
County  board  chairs  or  judges,  mayors,  or  tribal  leaders  of  Oregon  counties  and  cities  of  any  size.  
  

What  We  Can  Offer:  
CNCS  offers  a  variety  of  resources  that  can  help  local  leaders  learn  about  national  service  and  volunteering  
in  their  area  and  expand  the  impact  of  volunteering  by  their  residents:  
• Each  year,  CNCS  produces  State  Profiles  that  list  all  national  service  funding,  projects,  and  participants  

in  every  state.    CNCS  also  will  produce  county  profiles  on  demand  for  counties  participating  in  the  
County  Day  of  Recognition  for  National  Service.    To  receive  your  county  profile,  contact  the  CNCS  
Oregon  State  Director:  Stephanie  Wrightsman.    Her  email  address  is    swrightsman@cns.gov  

• CNCS  also  produces  the  annual  Volunteering  and  Civic  Life  in  America  report,  the  most  
comprehensive  data  on  volunteering  ever  assembled.  Visit:    www.volunteeringinamerica.gov      

• Employers  of  National  Service  builds  a  talent  pipeline  to  connect  AmeriCorps  and  Peace  Corps  alumni  
with  leading  employers  from  all  sectors  to  create  recruitment,  hiring,  and  advancement  
opportunities.    Through  Employers  of  National  Service,  local  governments  have  access  to  a  dedicated,  
highly  qualified,  and  mission-‐‑oriented  pool  of  potential  employees.  

  
How  Can  Local  Elected  Leaders  Get  Involved?      
• Register  your  community’s  support  on  the  website:  http://www.nationalservice.gov/special-‐‑

initiatives/mayors-‐‑day/mayorscounty-‐‑day-‐‑event-‐‑registration  
• Announce  your  county  is  becoming  an  Employer  of  National  Service  
• Issue  a  proclamation  naming  April  7  as  National  Service  Recognition  Day    
• Visit  national  service  programs  or  projects  in  order  to  highlight  their  value  to  the  county  
• Invite  national  service  programs  to  a  public  roundtable  to  discuss  how  they  address  local  problems  
• Issue  a  press  release  or  report  on  the  scope  and  impact  of  national  service  in  your  county  
• Serve  with  a  national  service  program  as  a  “member”  for  a  day  to  highlight  their  important  work  
• Use  Twitter,  Facebook,  and  other  social  media  to  thank  national  service  members  in  your  community  
• Write  an  op-‐‑ed  about  the  unique  contributions  of  national  service  your  county  
  

About  CNCS    
The  Corporation  for  National  and  Community  Service  is  a  federal  agency  that  engages  more  than  five  
million  Americans  in  service  through  its  AmeriCorps,  Senior  Corps,  Social  Innovation  Fund,  and  other  
programs,  and  leads  President'ʹs  national  call  to  service  initiative,  United  We  Serve.  For  more  information,  
visit  NationalService.gov.  

Page 7 of 301



 Page 1 of 2 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date:  
 
April 6, 2015 

Subject: Tree City USA Proclamation 
 
Staff Member: Chris Neamtzu, AICP and Daniel 
Pauly, AICP 
Department: Community Development, Planning 
Division 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission Recommendation  
☐ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☐ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☒ Not Applicable 
☐ Resolution Comments:   

 ☐ Information or Direction 
☒ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation:  
There is no recommendation; the item is for Council’s information. 
Recommended Language for Motion: 
N/A 
PROJECT / ISSUE RELATES TO: [Identify which goal(s), master plans(s) issue relates to.] 
☐Council Goals/Priorities 
 

☐Adopted Master Plan(s) 
 

☒Not Applicable 
 

 
ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL:  
Reading of a proclamation recognizing the City of Wilsonville as a Tree City USA. This marks 
the 17th year the city has received this designation.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
Staff is pleased to announce the City of Wilsonville has been recognized for the 17th consecutive 
year as a Tree City USA by the National Arbor Day Foundation. There are four criteria that need 
to be satisfied in order to achieve Tree City USA status.  They include: 1) a comprehensive urban 
forestry program; 2) an Arbor Day proclamation; 3) a tree ordinance and a tree 
department/board; and 4) an Arbor Day observance.   
 

Page 8 of 301



 Page 2 of 2 

 
This recognition reflects Wilsonville’s ongoing commitment to maintaining and promoting the 
community asset called the urban forest.  The urban forest is comprised of all trees in the City, 
both native and planted, that contribute to seasonal beauty and livability.  Whether it is a majestic 
200- year old Oregon white oak, a grove of towering Douglas-firs, or a young flowering cherry, 
the trees of the urban forest greatly contribute to a sense of place and quality of life in 
Wilsonville. City trees help clean the air, conserve the soil and water, reduce heating and cooling 
costs, and bring nature close to where we live.  
 
Also, as part of the 2015 Oregon Arbor Week celebration a community tree planting event will 
be held at 10:00 a.m. on Saturday April 11, 2015 at the lower Memorial Park parking area.   
 
EXPECTED RESULTS: N/A 
 
TIMELINE: N/A 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS: N/A 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENTS: N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT: N/A 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS:  
The public is being invited to the community tree planting event through a variety of means 
including the Boones Ferry Messenger, social media, and the City’s Website). 
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY (businesses, 
neighborhoods, protected and other groups): N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES: N/A  
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT: 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. 2015 Arbor Day Proclamation 

Page 9 of 301



CITY OF WILSONVILLE
2015 ARBOR DAY PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture
that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and

WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more
than a million trees in Nebraska, and Arbor Day is now observed throughout the
nation and the world, and

WHEREAS, trees reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut
heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce oxygen
and provide better habitat for wildlife, and

WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel
for our fires and countless other wood products, and

WHEREAS, trees in our city increase property value, enhance the economic vitality of
business areas, and beautify our community, and

WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal,
and

WHEREAS, Wilsonville has been recognized as a Tree City USA by
The National Arbor Day Foundation and desires to continue its tree‐planting practices.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Knapp, Mayor of the City of Wilsonville, urge all citizens to
celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and

Further, I encourage all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the
well‐being of this and future generations.

Dated this 6th day of April 2015 Tim Knapp, Mayor

Attachment A

Page 10 of 301



 
 
 

CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
PROCLAMATION DECLARING APRIL 2015  

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH 
 
 

 WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect is an ongoing tragedy and the effects of child abuse 
are felt by whole communities and need to be addressed by the entire community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, effective child abuse intervention programs succeed because of partnerships 
created between the courts, social service agencies, schools, religious organizations, law 
enforcement agencies, and the business community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all citizens should become more aware of child abuse and its prevention 
within the community, and become involved in supporting parents to raise their children in a 
safe, nurturing environment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, children are key to the City of Wilsonville’s future success, prosperity, and 
quality of life and are our most valuable resource; and 
 
 WHEREAS, we must come together as partners to shine the light on child abuse so the 
voices of our children are heard by all and as a community extend a helping hand to children and 
families in need; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by providing a safe and nurturing environment for our children, free of 
violence, abuse and neglect, we can ensure children will grow to their full potential as the next 
generation of leaders, helping to secure the future of this city and nation; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Knapp, Mayor of the City of Wilsonville do hereby 
proclaim the month of April 201 as  
 

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH 
 
And call upon all citizens to increase their participation in efforts to prevent child abuse, thereby 
strengthening the community in which we live. 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       TIM KNAPP, MAYOR 
       Dated:  April 6, 2015 

Page 11 of 301



Children’s Center  1713 Penn Lane, Oregon City 97045  503-655-7725  www.childrenscenter.cc 

CONTACT 

Barbara Peschiera, Executive Director 
Children’s Center 

Barbara@childrenscenter.cc 
503-655-7725 

 

THE PROBLEM 

One in ten children will be sexually abused by their 18th birthday. And sadly, an average of 20 children 
are killed as a direct result of child abuse, in Oregon alone, every year. 
 
Untreated, child abuse leads to debilitating, lifelong chronic physical and mental health conditions. The 
fallout from child abuse and neglect extends beyond these young victims, destabilizing families, 
fracturing communities, and increasing the financial burden on law enforcement, social services, and the 
health care system.  

Children of every gender, age, race, ethnicity, background, socioeconomic status and family structure are 
at risk of child abuse. No child is immune. 

 
WHO WE ARE 

Children’s Center is an accredited member of National Children’s Alliance and an integral partner in 
Clackamas County’s response to child abuse and the answer to a child’s pain. A private, non-profit 
medical assessment center, Children’s Center supports children and families in cases of suspected 
physical abuse, sexual abuse, neglect, drug endangerment, and witness to violence. Core services include: 
 

 Forensic Medical Evaluations: Comprehensive head-to-toe exam to determine and document a 
child’s health and safety by Medical Examiners trained in diagnosing child abuse and neglect. 

 Forensic Interviewing Services: Digitally recorded forensic interviews with Child Interviewers 
specially trained to talk to children of all ages and developmental levels. Child Interviewers work 
with the Medical Examiners as part of the medical evaluation. 

 Family Support: Support, referrals, education, and case management for families in Clackamas 
County struggling with issues of abuse or neglect. These services are offered to non-offending 
family members of children receiving evaluations at Children’s Center as well as families in the 
community. 

 Community Education and Outreach: Trainings, presentations, prevention workshops, and 
resources for local professional and community groups. 

 
HOW YOU CAN BE PART OF THE SOLUTION 

Though we hope to prevent child abuse from ever occurring, there is a national movement in April to 
recognize Child Abuse Prevention Month. Working with strong community leadership, we are 
undertaking a comprehensive public education and engagement campaign. Our goals are to increase calls 
to our local Child Abuse Hotline and decrease incidents of child abuse in Clackamas County. 
 
Many community partners will play a role in the success of our campaign. We hope you will consider 
joining us as we all work together to prevent child abuse and neglect in Clackamas County. We welcome 
the opportunity to talk with you more about how we can work together to end child abuse in our 
community. 

Page 12 of 301

http://www.childrenscenter.cc/
mailto:Barbara@childrenscenter.cc


CITY COUNCIL ROLLING SCHEDULE  PAGE 1 
  n:cityre\rolling\RollingSchedule 

CITY COUNCIL ROLLING SCHEDULE  
Board and Commission Meetings 2015 

Items known as of 03/30/15 
 

April 
DATE DAY TIME MEETING LOCATION 

4/6 Monday 7 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 
4/8 Wednesday 1 p.m. Wilsonville Community Seniors Community Center 
4/8 Wednesday 6 p.m. Planning Commission Council Chambers 
4/9 Thursday 6:30 p.m. Parks & Recreation Brd. Park & Recreation 

Admin. Offices 
4/13 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel A Council Chambers 
4/20 Monday 7 p.m. City Council Meeting Council Chambers 
4/22 Wednesday 6:30 p.m. Library Board Library 
4/27 Monday 6:30 p.m. DRB Panel B Council Chambers 

 
 
 
COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 
Antique Appraisal Day 
Saturday, April 11 – 10 am to 2 pm at the Community Center 
Appraisals will be done during set appointments for $10.00 per item.  
All proceeds to towards the Senior Nutrition program.   
Call 503-682-3727 to schedule an appraisal appointment. 
 
 
 
Book Notes Concert: Hiroya Tsukamoto 
April 11, 2:00 PM - 3:00 PM @ Wilsonville Public Library 
Come enjoy the sound of live music in the library with Hiroya Tsukamoto, acoustic guitarist and 
singer-songwriter from Kyoto, Japan. "...chops, passion and warmth. Zealously recommended." 
~Jazz Review.com 
 
 
Walk SMART 
April 29 – 1215 p.m. Meet at City Hall for a 20 minute walk 
Walk SMART is a free program that encourages participants to walk more by providing tools and 
motivation. Each Walk SMART participant receives a pedometer, safety light, and log sheet to 
record daily step counts.  Registered walkers who turn in their monthly step counts are eligible to win 
fun and practical rewards for their efforts.  Stop by and pick up a Walk SMART Kit at the SMART 
building, 28879 SW Boberg Rd. between 8am – 5pm, they are available at the Dispatch counter. 
Check ridesmart.com/walksmart for more Walk Wednesday dates. 

Page 13 of 301



C:\Users\king\Desktop\Library Board Vacancy 3.18.15.docx 

 

LIBRARY BOARD VACANCY 
 

The City of Wilsonville is accepting 
applications for the Library Board 

 
 
The Library Board consists of a chair, vice-chair and three other members 
who serve a regular term of four years. The Board supports and assists the 
Library Director in all library planning, and advises the City of budgetary 
and policy considerations relating to the Library's operation and 
development.  
 
Board members assist in areas such as monitoring the quality of library 
operations and promoting a high level of service to the public; encouraging 
cost effectiveness in all areas of Library service; and periodically reviewing 
- and revising, if necessary - the Library's statement of policies and 
procedures and its goals and objectives.  
 
Other typical duties include assisting the Library Director with the adoption, 
implementation and revision of a collection development plan to meet the 
needs of the community; coordinating with other agencies to exchange and 
introduce new ideas, methods and technology; and considering policy 
questions. 
 
If you are interested in applying for the Library Board you may pick up an 
application from Sandra King, City Recorder, at City Hall, 29799 SW Town 
Center Loop, Wilsonville, Or. 503-570-1506.  Applications are also 
available online at  
http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/478/Apply-for-a-Board-or-Commission  
 

The application deadline is April 17, 2015.  
 

Page 14 of 301

http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/478/Apply-for-a-Board-or-Commission


CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 1 OF 4 
MARCH 16, 2015   
C:\Users\king\Desktop\4.6.15 Council Packet Materials\March 16, 2015 Minutes.doc 

A regular meeting of the Wilsonville City Council was held at the Wilsonville City Hall 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, March 16, 2015.  Mayor Knapp called the meeting to order at 
7:05 p.m., followed by roll call and the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 The following City Council members were present: 
  Mayor Knapp  
  Councilor Starr - excused 
  Councilor Fitzgerald 
  Councilor Stevens 
  Councilor Lehan 
 
 Staff present included: 
  Bryan Cosgrove, City Manager 
  Jeanna Troha, Assistant City Manager 
  Mike Kohlhoff, City Attorney 
  Sandra King, City Recorder 
  Nancy Kraushaar, Community Development Director 
  Jon Gail, Community Relations Coordinator 
  Susan Cole, finance Director 
 
Motion to approve the order of the agenda. 
 
Motion: Councilor Lehan moved to approve the order of the agenda.  Councilors   
  Fitzgerald and Stevens seconded the motion. 
 
Vote:  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
MAYOR’S BUSINESS 
 
A. Upcoming Meetings  
Mayor Knapp announced the meeting date for the next City Council meeting and reported on 
meetings he attended on behalf of the City. 
 
 
CITIZEN INPUT & COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for visitors to address the City Council on items not on the agenda.  It is 
also the time to address items that are on the agenda but not scheduled for a public hearing.  Staff 
and the City Council will make every effort to respond to questions raised during citizens input 
before tonight's meeting ends or as quickly as possible thereafter. Please limit your comments to 
three minutes. 
 
Carol Yamada, and Leonard Schaber, members of the Stafford Hamlet Board distributed a paper 
titled “The Stafford Hamlet Compromise” which explained the Board’s position on the Stafford 
Reserve and urban reserve determination.  The document has been included in the record. 
 

Page 15 of 301



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 2 OF 4 
MARCH 16, 2015   
C:\Users\king\Desktop\4.6.15 Council Packet Materials\March 16, 2015 Minutes.doc 

Mayor Knapp pointed out the City has no plans to be contiguous to the Borland area and the 
Council has not taken any position on the proposed legislation.   
 
 
COUNCILOR COMMENTS, LIAISON REPORTS & MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Councilor Fitzgerald – (Development Review Panels A & B Liaison) noted on March 23rd the 
DRB Panel B will meet.  She announced the Wilsonville Egg Hunt Saturday April 4th, and the 
Wood Middle School’s Jr. Scoop Club Clothing Sale set for the same day. 
 
Councilor Stevens – (Library Board and Wilsonville Seniors Liaison) announced the next 
Library Board meeting date.  She reported the Wilsonville Community Seniors are working on 
goal setting, and are beginning to plan how to stabilize their funding.  The Councilor joined the 
Meals on Wheels Program last week by riding along with two volunteers.  The volunteers play 
an important role in insuring homebound seniors are doing well.  The next meeting date of the 
Frog Pond Task Force was noted as well as the open house scheduled for April 2nd.  
 
Councilor Lehan– (Planning Commission and CCI Liaison) reported she attended the Comcast 
Open House where concerns about the service and programing were expressed.  The Councilor 
said the Planning Commission will be meeting on April 8th.  She announced the Antique 
Appraisal Day scheduled for April 11th.  The Community Garden registration will be open on 
March 19th.  
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Kohlhoff read the titles of the Consent Agenda items into the record. 
 
A. Resolution No. 2518 
A Resolution Granting An Exemption From Property Taxes Under ORS 307.540 To ORS 
307.548 For Autumn Park Apartments, A Low-Income Apartment Development Owned And 
Operated By Northwest Housing Alternatives, Inc.   
 
B. Resolution No. 2519 
A Resolution Granting An Exemption From Property Taxes Under ORS 307.540 To ORS 
307.548 For Charleston Apartments, A Low-Income Apartment Development Owned And 
Operated By Northwest Housing Alternatives, Inc.  
 
C. Resolution No. 2520 
A Resolution Granting An Exemption From Property Taxes Under ORS 307.540 To ORS 
307.548 For Creekside Woods LP, A Low-Income Apartment Development Owned And 
Operated By Northwest Housing Alternatives, Inc.   
 
 
 
D. Resolution No. 2521 

Page 16 of 301



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 3 OF 4 
MARCH 16, 2015   
C:\Users\king\Desktop\4.6.15 Council Packet Materials\March 16, 2015 Minutes.doc 

A Resolution Granting An Exemption From Property Taxes Under ORS 307.540 To ORS 
307.548 For Rain Garden Limited Partnership A Low-Income Apartment Development Owned 
And Operated By Caritas Community Housing Corporation.   
 
E. Resolution No. 2522 
A Resolution Granting An Exemption From Property Taxes Under ORS 307.540 To ORS 
307.548 For Wiedemann Park, A Low-Income Apartment Development Owned And Operated 
By Accessible Living, Inc.   
 
F. Resolution No. 2523 
A Resolution Of The City Of Wilsonville Acting As The Local Contract Review Board 
Authorizing The South Metro Area Regional Transit Department (SMART) To Purchase Two 
35-Foot Low Floor, Heavy Duty, Clean Diesel Buses Through The 5307 Grant # OR-95-X061-
00. 
 
G. Minutes of the February 19, 2015 and March 2, 2015 Council Meetings. 
 
Motion: Councilor Fitzgerald moved to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Councilor Lehan 

seconded the motion. 
 
Vote:  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Set a Public Hearing Date of April 6, 2015 to Hear the Appeal of the DRB Decision of 
Case No. DB15-006 for Appellant Gerald and Joanne Downs.   
 
Mr. Kohlhoff introduced the item for consideration.  The memorandum prepared for Council by 
Mr. Kohlhoff regarding the appeal follows in its entirety: 
 
On the agenda for the March 16, 2015 City Council meeting is the setting of the date for the 
public hearing of the Downs appeal of certain conditions the Development Review Board 
determined in approving the Downs application for a land use partition.  The staff recommends 
this be ordered for the April 6, 2015 City Council meeting as it is within the 120-day time limit 
and will allow for a second, continued hearing if needed. 
 
Additionally, you will need to determine the scope of review as to one of the following under 
WC 4.022(.05)B: 
 
 1. Restricted to the record made on the decision being appealed. 
 2. Limited to such issues as the reviewing body determines necessary for a proper  
  resolution of the matter. 
 3. A de novo hearing on the merits (accept new testimony). 
 

Page 17 of 301



CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  PAGE 4 OF 4 
MARCH 16, 2015   
C:\Users\king\Desktop\4.6.15 Council Packet Materials\March 16, 2015 Minutes.doc 

Because the issues on appeal are limited in number, staff recommends rather than determining 
what issues are necessary to resolve, that the scope of review be restricted to the record and 
receive oral argument. 
 
Should the City Council follow staff recommendations, the motion suggested is as follows: 

“I move the City Council order the public hearing on the Downs Appeal, DRB-Panel B 
be set before the City Council on April 6, 2015 and be limited to the record made on the 
decision being appealed and the receipt of oral argument.” 

 
Mayor Knapp restated the considerations before the Council.  
 
Motion: Councilor Lehan moved to order the public hearing on the Downs Appeal, DRB- 
  Panel B be set before the City Council on April 6, 2015 and be limited to the  
  record made on the decision being appealed and the receipt of oral argument.   
  Councilor Stevens seconded the motion. 
 
Vote:  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Cosgrove reported he had attended the First Citizen Festivities at the impressive World of 
Speed Museum and commented the Museum will be great attraction for region.  He has received 
the work plans from all the Departments which will be incorporated into the Council Goals.  A 
final report will be brought forward to Council. 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Kohlhoff advised he would be out of the office during March and early April.  
 
ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Knapp adjourned the meeting at 7:45 p.m. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Sandra C. King, MMC, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Tim Knapp, Mayor 
 

Page 18 of 301



Resolution No. 2524 Staff Report & Order  Page 1 of 4 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Res2524 Downs Appeal\Res2524 Staff Report.docm 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date:   
 
April 6, 2015 
 

Subject:  Resolution No. 2524 
Appeal of DRB Panel B Decision Regarding the 
Appeal of a Two-Parcel Land Partition in Case Files 
AR14-0077 and DB15-0006 
 
Staff Members:  Nancy Kraushaar, Blaise Edmonds, 
       and Barbara Jacobson 
Department:  Engineering, Planning Division, and 
  Legal 
 

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission Recommendation  
☐ Motion ☐ Approval 
☐ Public Hearing Date: ☒ Denial 
☐ Ordinance 1st Reading Date: ☐ None Forwarded 
☐ Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: ☐ Not Applicable 
☒ Resolution & Order Comments:  Following a public hearing held on 

February 23, 2015, the Development Review Board 
Panel B (“DRB”) rejected an appeal of the Planning 
Director’s Decision regarding the partition application 
of Gerald and Joanne, Owners, represented on appeal 
by Ronald Downs (“Applicant”) 

☐ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Council Direction 
☐ Consent Agenda 
Staff Recommendation:  That City Council adopt a Resolution and Order upholding the 
decision of the Development Review Board. 
 
Recommended Language for Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 2524 and Order:  A Resolution to Issue an Order by the City 
Council Denying the Appeal and Affirming Development Review Board Resolution No. 299 
Relating to a Tentative Land Partition for Two Parcels.  The Subject Site Is Located on Tax Lot 
2700 of Section 13BA, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Applicant/Appellant/Owner 
Gerald and Joanne Downs; Applicant Representative Ronald Downs.  Application Nos. 
AR14-0077; DB15-0006. 
 
PROJECT / ISSUE RELATES TO:   Development Code 
☐Council Goals/Priorities ☐Adopted Master Plan(s) ☐Not Applicable 
 
 

Page 19 of 301



Resolution No. 2524 Staff Report & Order  Page 2 of 4 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Res2524 Downs Appeal\Res2524 Staff Report.docm 

ISSUE BEFORE COUNCIL: 
 
At a public hearing held on February 23, 2015, the “DRB” voted 5-0 to deny the Applicant’s 
appeal of the Planning Director’s Class II Administrative Decision (Application Nos. AR14-
0077 and DB15-006).  That DRB decision has been appealed by the Applicant to the City 
Council.  The issue on appeal is Condition PFA 27, which condition requires the Applicant to 
make certain street improvements, which include sidewalk, curb, and gutter along the entire 
frontage of the proposed land partition.  The Applicant argues that this requirement is not 
roughly proportionate and should be reduced to only require these improvements in front of the 
smaller of the two partitioned lots where a new second home will be constructed (approximately 
40% of the total area). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Applicant is appealing Condition PFA 27, which requires certain street improvements, 
including sidewalk, curb, and gutters (meeting current City requirements for residential street 
construction), to be placed across the entire frontage of Applicant’s parcel as a condition for the 
partition of that parcel into two separate lots.  This partition will allow the Applicant to cause a 
second home to be built on the property.  The Applicant contends that this requirement, as 
written, is overbroad and should be reduced to only require street frontage improvements across 
the front of the parcel where the new home will be located and that no frontage improvements 
should be required across the other half of the parcel, where an existing  home is located.  The 
Applicant states that his argument is based on the nexus and rough proportionality standards set 
forth in the United States Supreme Court case of  Dolan v. City of Tigard, 512 US 374 (1994).  
While the City disputes the applicability of Dolan to this condition, City staff has assumed, for 
the sake of argument, that Dolan findings could apply and, therefore, made Dolan findings that 
staff believes satisfy the nexus and rough proportionality tests of the Dolan case, as set forth in 
the DRB record before City Council. 
 
City Council has determined that this appeal shall be an on-the-record only appeal.  Therefore, 
attached please find the same legal memo submitted in support of the Planning Director’s 
Decision to the DRB and part of the DRB record, which summarizes staff’s position.  See 
Record Memo at #5. 
 
As outlined in the memo and on the record, Wilsonville ordinances impose a standard 
requirement on all development in the City that requires certain street improvements, including 
sidewalks, curb, and gutter to be placed in front of the developed property.  The City 
Comprehensive Plan, which is the governing law for land use in the City, provides at Policy 
3.3.2 that the City shall work to improve accessibility for all citizens to all modes of 
transportation, and at Implementation Measure 3.3.2.d requires that gaps in existing sidewalks be 
filled to create a safe and continuous network of safe and accessible bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities.  It is the standard and consistent requirement of the City to require street frontage 
improvements, including the placement of sidewalks, curb, and gutter, with every new 
development or redevelopment.  Wilsonville City Code Section 4.177(3) requires sidewalks be 
provided on the public street frontage of all development.  City Code Section 4.001(79) defines 
“development” as “any human-caused change to improved or unimproved real estate.”  City 

Page 20 of 301



Resolution No. 2524 Staff Report & Order  Page 3 of 4 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Res2524 Downs Appeal\Res2524 Staff Report.docm 

Code Section 4.005 lists certain activities that are exempt from development permit 
requirements, but a partition is not listed as an exception.  The condition imposed and at issue is 
a required condition applied to all partitions, including recently to a three-lot partition located 
one property away from that of the Applicant, as well as a similar two-lot partition located just a 
few blocks away from the Applicant’s parcel.  The requirement imposed upon the Applicant is 
not in any way unique to the Applicant’s property, nor is it based on any development 
assumptions.  It is therefore easily distinguishable from the court case primarily relied upon by 
the Applicant and from the Dolan findings, as briefed in the attached memo. 
 
Finally, it should be noted, as is provided in the record, that the cost estimate made by 
engineering staff assumes three criteria that are not applicable if the Applicant elects to perform 
the work himself, which is an option that he has. 
 
Specifically, the City estimate includes the cost to grind and overlay the entire road area, which 
is what the City would do if it were doing the work.  This is not, however, being required of the 
Applicant, who can elect to patch only what he disturbs, in accordance with Public Works 
Standards.  Also, the City estimate includes generally higher BOLI wages, which would not be 
applicable to work done by the Applicant.  Finally, the in-lieu-of payment contains a 30% mark-
up cushion for the City, if the Applicant elects to shift the risk of performance to the City. 
 
EXPECTED RESULTS: 
Final decision by the City regarding Applicant’s appeal. 
 
TIMELINE: 
The City must render a final decision regarding the Applicant’s appeal by no later than May 4, 
2015. 
 
CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS: 
None anticipated. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENTS: 
Reviewed by:  _SCole_____________  Date:  ___3/20/15__________ 
 
LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT: 
Reviewed by:  Mike Kohlhoff   Date:  3/19/15 
 
The City Council, as the reviewing body, shall decide if the correct procedure was followed 
(which is not at issue) and, if so, was the correct or appropriate decision made based on the 
applicable policies and standards.  WC 4.022(.06)B.  The City Council has the authority to enter 
an order to affirm, reverse, or modify, in whole or in part, the DRB decision.  WC 4.022(.08)A.  
In making its determination the Council should set forth its findings and reasons for taking the 
action. 
 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS: 
All standard public notice procedures for the DRB public hearing were followed.  The DRB 
allowed all interested parties to testify during the hearing process.  One resident sent in email 

Page 21 of 301



Resolution No. 2524 Staff Report & Order  Page 4 of 4 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Res2524 Downs Appeal\Res2524 Staff Report.docm 

testimony supporting the condition at issue, which is included in the record.  The only other party 
to present testimony at the hearing was the Applicant Representative, Ron Downs.  A public 
notice of this upcoming appeal public hearing has been published, in accordance with the 
requirements of the Wilsonville City Code. 
 
POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY 
Street improvements and sidewalk will benefit the property owner as well as the public relating 
to public safety. 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
1. Affirm the DRB decision by approving the proposed Resolution and Order, attached. 
 
2. Grant the Appeal and direct staff to prepare revised Conditions of Approval for presentation 
to City Council at the April 20, 2015 City Council meeting. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENT: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Draft Resolution No. 2524 for Denial of the Application 
 
B. DRB Record (including Legal Memo at #5) 
 
 

Page 22 of 301



RESOLUTION NO. 2524  PAGE 1 OF 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Res2524 Downs Appeal\Res2524.docx 

RESOLUTION NO. 2524 
AND ORDER 

 
 

RESOLUTION TO ISSUE AN ORDER BY THE CITY COUNCIL DENYING THE 
APPEAL AND AFFIRMING DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 299 
RELATING TO A TENTATIVE LAND PARTITION FOR TWO PARCELS.  THE 
SUBJECT SITE IS LOCATED ON TAX LOT 2700 OF SECTION 13BA, T3S, R1W, 
CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON.  APPLICANT/APPELLANT/OWNER GERALD AND 
JOANNE DOWNS; APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE RONALD DOWNS.  
APPLICATION NOS. AR14-0077; DB15-0006. 
 
 

WHEREAS, City Council received a timely filed appeal from Appellant/Applicant 

Gerald and Joanne Downs, by and through their representative and attorney Ronald Downs, of 

the decision of the Development Review Board, Panel B (“DRB”), made pursuant to Wilsonville 

City Code 4.022(.02), following the DRB denial of said appeal at the public hearing held on 

February 24, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, at a public meeting held on March 16, 2015, City Council set the date for 

public hearing for the appeal of DRB Case Nos. AR14-0077 and DB15-0006 for April 6, 2015, 

to be held as an on-the-record only appeal but allowing oral argument; and 

WHEREAS, having conducted the appeal hearing and having reviewed all of the 

evidence in the DRB record, including the unanimous DRB member reasoning and findings for 

its decision denying Appellant/Applicant’s appeal, and having heard argument from both the 

Appellant/Applicant and staff at the appeal hearing; and 

WHEREAS, having considered all of the foregoing evidence and following all applicable 

requirements of the Wilsonville Development Code pertaining to the Applications and Appeal, 

the City Council hereby orders as follows: 

1. The City Council hereby orders that the decision of the DRB on the above 

referenced Applications is hereby upheld. 

2. City Council’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision, rendered on 

April 6, 2015, are attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference 

herein. 

3. This Order is subject to the rights of appeal, as set forth in Oregon law.  If you 

desire to appeal this decision to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals you must 

Page 23 of 301



RESOLUTION NO. 2524  PAGE 2 OF 2 
C:\Users\king\Desktop\Res2524 Downs Appeal\Res2524.docx 

make application stating the grounds for appeal with the Land Use Board of 

Appeals, as proscribed by State law and within the timeframe proscribed by State 

Law. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Wilsonville City Council at a regular meeting thereof this 6th 

day of April, 2015, to be effective immediately and filed with the Wilsonville City Recorder on 

this date. 

 

       ___________________________________ 
       Tim Knapp, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sandra C. King, MMC, City Recorder 
 
 
SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
 

Mayor Knapp    

Council President Starr  

Councilor Fitzgerald   

Councilor Stevens   

Councilor Lehan   

 

Page 24 of 301



 
Final Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision – Appeal DB15-0006 Page 1 

FINAL FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION 
BY CITY COUNCIL, RENDERED ON APRIL 6, 2015 

 
Gerald and Joanne Downs Partition 

APPLICATION AR14-0007 
APPEAL DB15-0006 

 
APPEAL HEARING DATE April 6, 2015 
 
APPLICATION NOS.:   AR14-0077; DB15-0006 
 
REQUEST/SUMMARY:  The Applicant appealed the decision of the Development Review 
Board (“DRB”) DB15-0006, denying the Applicant’s appeal of and affirming the Planning 
Director’s Class II Administrative Decisions, Findings, and Conclusions, and Approving a 
Tentative Land Partition For Two Parcels (Case File AR14-007), incorporating the revised staff 
report submitted to the DRB.  Based on the findings set forth herein, City Council affirms the 
decision of the DRB.  Applicant’s appeal to the DRB was limited to Condition PFA 27.  
Although the DRB public hearing was de novo, meaning the DRB could have considered all 
aspects of the Director’s Decision, the DRB did not make any revisions to that decision and 
focused solely on the Applicant’s appeal of Condition PFA 27, Applicant testifying that his 
appeal concerned only imposition of PFA 27 across the frontage of the entire parcel, as opposed 
to his request that it be required only in front of the smaller partitioned parcel where he intended 
to construct a new home.  Thus, our on-the-record review was limited to that same condition. 
 
LOCATION:  Tax Lot 2700 in Section 13BA, T3S, R1W, City of Wilsonville, Clackamas 
County, Oregon 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Gerald and Joanne Downs, husband and wife 
 
APPLICANT’S REPS.: Ronald Downs 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIGNATION:  Residential 4 - 5 dwelling units an acre 
 
ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  Residential Agricultural-Holding  
 
STAFF REVIEWERS: Chris Neamtzu, Planning Director 
 Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning 
 Jennifer Scola, Assistant Planner 
 Steve Adams PE, Development Engineering Manager 
 Nancy Kraushaar, Community Development Director 
 Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney 
 
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA: 
 

Sections 4.008 – 4.015 Administration Sections 
Section 4.022(.01) Administrative Action Appeal 
Section 4.022(.04) Appeal Notice 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review 

Page 25 of 301



 
Final Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision – Appeal DB15-0006 Page 2 

Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review 
Sections 4.030(.01)B.5; 4.034(.05); 4.035(.03) Class II AR 
Section 4.202 Land Divisions General 
Section 4.210 Application Procedure 
Section 4.120 Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
Section 4.031 Authority of the DRB 
Section 4.113 Standards to all Residential Zones 
Section 4.118(.03)C.9 Waiver of Right of Remonstrance 
Section 4.167 Access 
Section 4.177(.01) and (.02) Street Improvement Standards 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks 
Section 4.236(.01) Conformity to the Transportation Systems Plan 
Section 4.236(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System 
Section 4.237 Land Divisions General Requirements 
Section 4.260(.02) Improvement Procedures 
Sections 4.262(.01) through (.10) Improvement Requirements 
Sections 4.300 – 4.320 Underground Utilities 
 
Other:  Administrative Decision AR14-0077 
Comprehensive Plan:  Plan Policy 3.3.2, Implementation Measures 3.3.2.c and 3.3.2.d. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW: 
 
Wilsonville City Council, having reviewed the record and heard oral argument, hereby affirms 
the decision of the DRB, including imposition of the appealed Condition PFA 27, reaching the 
following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law with respect to that appealed condition: 
 
Section 4.177. Street Improvement Standards.  This section contains the City’s requirements 
and standards for pedestrian, bicycle, and transit facility improvements to public streets, 
or within public easements.  The purpose of this section is to ensure that development, 
including redevelopment, provides transportation facilities that are safe, convenient, and 
adequate in rough proportion to their impacts. 
 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.  This Section of the City Development Code sets the 
standards for pedestrian, bicycle and transit facilities for public streets, including curb and 
sidewalk, to ensure that development, including redevelopment, provides safe, convenient and 
adequate facilities in rough proportion to their impacts.  Section 4.177(.03) requires that 
“Sidewalks shall be provided on the public street frontage of all development.”  As this property 
is now being subdivided into two separate lots with two separate homes, the sidewalk/roadway 
transportation requirements being imposed must cover both properties.  City Code requires these 
improvements to be made at the time of development or redevelopment, and this partition 
constitutes redevelopment, per Code definition, as found in Section 4.001(79). 
 
City Code Section 4.005 lists certain activities that are exempt from development permit 
requirements, and a partition is not listed as an exception.  This required condition is applied to 
all partitions, including recently to a three-lot partition located one property away from that of 
the Applicant, as well as a similar two-lot partition located just a few blocks away.  The 
requirement is not in any way unique to the Applicant’s property, nor is it based on any 
development assumptions.  Section 4.177(.01) requires that development and related public 

Page 26 of 301



 
Final Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision – Appeal DB15-0006 Page 3 

facility improvements shall comply with the standards in Section 4.177, the Wilsonville Public 
Works Standards, and the Transportation System Plan in rough proportion to the potential 
impacts of development.  In the case at hand, the Applicant is not being required to make any 
additional roadway improvements or deviate from standard sidewalk requirements.  The 
Applicant is not being asked to build the improvements in any area except directly in front of the 
Applicant’s own property.  No land is being exacted from the Applicant for the sidewalk.  The 
City Council finds this requirement is in rough proportion to the redevelopment being requested 
and is in accordance with the standards of the Code and the Public Works Standards, including 
the Public Works Standard that all sidewalks meet the Americans with Disabilities Act standards.  
See Public Works Standards, Section 201.2.25a.2. 
 
The City’s Comprehensive Plan, which is the City’s governing land use regulation, sets forth the 
requirements for a connected network of sidewalks and requires, at implementation 
Measure 3.3.2.d, that all gaps in the existing sidewalk network be filled so as to create safe and 
accessible bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  Thus, in accordance with that requirement, as each 
parcel in the City without sidewalks is developed or redeveloped, the placement of the sidewalk 
and related curb, gutter and street improvements to current City standards is required to be built 
by the developer in front of the developer’s property, as a proportionate requirement of 
development.  This requirement has been consistently imposed as a developer responsibility as 
development occurs, thereby resulting in fewer gaps in the sidewalk.  Just as the City Code, at 
Section 2.220, requires the property owner to be responsible for the sidewalk repairs that front 
the owner’s property, so does the Code require the property owner/developer to install those 
same sidewalks as a proportionate condition of development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

l:\drb-pc\downs appeal\findings of fact 

Page 27 of 301



 
  
 
 
 

Downs Partition Plat Appeal 
INDEX of RECORD 

 
 

Case Files: 
AR14-0077  Class II Administrative Review for Partition Plat 
DB15-0006 DRB Appeal of AR14-0077 decision 
 

1. Downs letter:  Appeal to City Council 
2. February 23, 2015 DRB Panel B meeting minutes (DRAFT) 
3. DRB Notice of Decision and Resolution (Affirming decision in AR14-0077 and 

denying appeal in DB15-0006) dated February 23, 2015 
4. DRB Amended and Adopted Staff Report, dated February 23, 2015 
5. Exhibits entered into the record at the February 23, 2015 DRB Panel B meeting: 

· Exhibit A5: Memorandum from Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney, dated 
February 20, 2015, providing a legal response to the Appeal Letter submitted by the 
Applicant. (Exhibit B10) 

· Exhibit B10: Letter entitled “Appeal Pursuant to Section 4.022” submitted by the 
Applicant, Ronald Downs PC, dated February 13, 2015. 

· Exhibit B11: Bound booklet titled, “Appeal of Downs Partition Plat #AR14-0077 
Index”, containing colored photographs and discussing the opposition to Condition of 
Approval PFA-27. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

· Exhibit B12: Multiple-page, stapled packet, “II. Takings Issue...The Nollan “Nexus” 
Test” printed from OSB Legal Publications. Distributed by the Applicant at the 
meeting. 

· Exhibit B13: Multiple-page, stapled packet, titled, “Subdivision Law and Growth 
Management Database updated November 2014; Chapter 6. Financing Capital 
Improvements References.” Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

· Exhibit B14: Stapled, 9-page packet, titled, “US Department of Justice Title II 
Highlights” discussing ADA requirements. Distributed by the Applicant at the 
meeting. 

· Exhibit B15: Stapled, 11-page packet, titled, “US Department of Justice Title III 
Highlights” discussing ADA requirements. Distributed by the Applicant at the 
meeting. 

· Exhibit B16: Stapled, 5-page packet, Louis F. Schultz and Anna May Schultz, 
Appellants v. City of Grants Pass Oregon Court of Appeals case. Distributed by the 
Applicant at the meeting. 

· Exhibit D1: Email received February 23, 2015 from Wayne Kirk, which was read 
into the record by Mr. Edmonds. 

 
6. February 23, 2015 DRB Panel B meeting record, including: 

· DRB Packet, including Redlined version of staff report (for DRB review), 
Clean version of staff report (for DRB approval)  and Exhibits: 

Page 28 of 301



 
EXHIBITS (AR14-0077):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the Class 2 
Administrative Review of Tentative Land Partition Application in AR14-0077. 

 
· A1. Original Staff Report 
· B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
· B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
· B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
· B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
· B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
· B5. Vicinity Map 
· B6. Tax Lot Information  
· B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
· B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
· C1. Tax Map 
· C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB 

D3 
· C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 

 
EXHIBITS (DB15-0006):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the appeal to the DRB in 
appeal application DB15-0006 as submitted. 

 
Staff Report:  
· A2.  Revised Staff Report (this one), including Proposed Revised Findings of Fact,  

Conditions of Approval and Conclusionary Findings.  (Changes to the original  
are shown in redline for DRB and applicant ease of review.) 

· A3.  PowerPoint presentation. (10 slides) 
· A4.  Memorandum to Development Review Board members from Blaise Edmonds  

and Barbara Jacobson, dated February 12, 2015 Re:  Director’s 
Decisions/ Applicant Appeal 

   
Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials:  
· B9.  Letter of appeal, dated January 17, 2015. 

     
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 29 of 301



Page 30 of 301



Page 31 of 301



Wilsonville City Hall 
29799 SW Town Center Loop East 
Wilsonville, Oregon 
 
Development Review Board – Panel B 
Minutes–February 23, 2015   6:30 PM 
 
I. Call to Order 
Chair Aaron Woods called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
II. Chair’s Remarks 
The Conduct of Hearing and Statement of Public Notice were read into the record. 
 
III. Roll Call 
Present for roll call were:   Aaron Woods, Cheryl Dorman, Dianne Knight, Richard Martens, Shawn 

O’Neil, and Council Liaison Julie Fitzgerald 
 
Staff present:  Blaise Edmonds, Barbara Jacobson, and Steve Adams  
 
IV. Citizens’ Input This is an opportunity for visitors to address the Development Review Board 
(DRB) on items not on the agenda.  There were no comments. 
 
V. City Council Liaison Report 
No Councilor liaison report was given due to Councilor Fitzgerald’s absence. 
 
VI. Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of minutes of November 24, 2014 DRB Panel B meeting 
Dianne Knight moved to approve the November 24, 2014 DRB Panel B meeting minutes as 
presented. Cheryl Dorman seconded the motion, which passed 3 to 0 to 2 with Shawn O’Neil and 
Richard Martens abstaining. 

 
B. Approval of minutes of January 26, 2015 DRB Panel A meeting 

Dianne Knight moved to approve the January 26, 2015 DRB Panel B meeting minutes as presented. 
Shawn O’Neil seconded the motion, which passed 4 to 0 to 1 with Cheryl Dorman abstaining. 
 
VII. Public Hearing: 

A. Resolution 299.  Downs Appeal: Gerald and Joanne Downs – owners. The applicant is 
appealing the Staff Decision of a two parcel land partition approval in Case File AR14-0077.  
The property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road South on Tax Lot 2700, Section 
13BA, T3S-R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  Blaise Edmonds 
 
Case Files: DB15-0006 – Appeal 

 
Chair Woods called the public hearing to order at 6:36 pm and read the conduct of hearing format into 
the record. All Board members declared for the record that they had visited the site. No board member, 
however, declared a conflict of interest, bias, or conclusion from a site visit. No board member 
participation was challenged by any member of the audience. 

Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney, noted Staff’s memorandum (Exhibit A4) in the packet 
explained that as a de novo hearing, the Applicant had appealed specific criteria as outlined in the 
Applicant’s letter; however, the DRB could look at the entire application and was free to ask questions on 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 1 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 32 of 301



any issues. While the hearing was open to all issues, the focus would be on the criteria that were appealed. 
She confirmed that the Board received the revised, redlined Staff report. Originally, some of the red lines 
had gotten deleted, so a revised Staff report was sent so the Board and Applicant could see exactly all of 
the changes made from the original Director’s decision to the revised Staff report. 
• She also noted her legal memorandum (Exhibit A5), which was distributed to the Board. As the 

representative of the City, it was her duty to look at the legal issues on appeal and render an opinion 
on whether or not the recommendations in the Staff report were correct under the law and 
particularly, under the City’s Code and land use regulations. While she concurred with Staff’s 
recommendation, this was a public hearing; it would be the Board’s decision to weigh tonight’s 
testimony and the information in Staff’s memo as well as the Applicant’s memo and presentation. 

 
Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning, announced that the criteria applicable to the 
application were stated on page 2 of the Staff report, which was entered into the record. Copies of the 
report were made available to the side of the room.  
 
Mr. Edmonds noted that all references to DB14-0077 in the revised Staff report needed to be corrected to 
AR14-0077. He entered the following new exhibits were entered into the record as follows: 

• Exhibit B10: Letter entitled, “Appeal Pursuant to Section 4.022” submitted by the Applicant, 
Ronald Downs PC, dated February 13, 2015. 

• Exhibit A5: Memorandum from Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney, dated February 20, 
2015, providing a legal response to the Appeal Letter submitted by the Applicant. (Exhibit B10) 

• Exhibit D1: Email received February 23, 2015 from Wayne Kirk, which was read into the record 
by Mr. Edmonds. 

• He explained that as mentioned, this was a de novo hearing. It was a brand new hearing, and did not 
just involve sidewalks. Board and audience members could comment on anything found in the Staff 
report as if it were a brand new application for the first time.  

• Comments would be heard regarding new conditions of approval, including: 
• Condition PFA8 on Page 6 of 36 of the revised Staff report which referred to a waiver of 

remonstrance. This type of condition was added to practically every planned development in the 
city for the past 35 years. 
• If a local improvement district existed for Canyon Creek South for improvements, such as 

storm drainage, the property owners had the right to challenge the cost assessment, but as 
written, this particular remonstrance condition required the Applicant to participate in a local 
improvement district.  

• Condition PFA27 on Page 14 of 36 would be the focus of most of tonight’s discussion as some 
additional language was added by the Engineering Division. 

• He noted the revised redlined Staff report also included new language shown green colored text.  
• He continued by presenting the Staff report via PowerPoint, noting the subject site’s location, 

surrounding features and nearby development with these comments: 
• Canyon Creek Rd South used to intersect with Boeckman Rd, but was closed off into a cul-de-sac a 

few years back due to sight distance. The road intersection was too close to the major intersection of 
Boeckman Rd and Canyon Creek Rd.  

• The subject property was approved through administrative action for a tentative land partition 
resulting in two land parcels with an existing house on the north parcel owned by Gerald and Joanne 
Downs.  
• The portion of the tentative plat approved through administrative action was displayed. Parcel 2 

showed the footprint of a future brand new house the Applicant, representing his parents, 
proposed to build. 

• Slide 4 indicated the existing sidewalks as well as future sidewalks that would be built throughout the 
neighborhood. Both the Renaissance development and CrossCreek Subdivision have sidewalks on 
both sides of the street. A sidewalk would also be installed along the Renaissance properties 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 2 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 33 of 301



purchased to the south of the site when those homes were built. Other sidewalk segments included the 
one built by James Knorr as building street frontage was a condition of their property being 
partitioned. Some connectivity could start to be seen and with effort over time the street would 
eventually have sidewalks. 

• He reviewed several pictures showing views of the streets and sidewalks adjacent to recent 
developments in the immediate neighborhood, and especially along Canyon Creek Rd South. His key 
comments included: 
• Parcel 2, the future home site, had a small swale or drainage ditch on the east side facing Canyon 

Creek Rd South and Parcel 1 with the existing house owned by Gerald and Joanne Downs. 
• Both curbside and offset sidewalks could be seen along each side of Canyon Creek Rd South. 

Hopefully over time there would be more of a semblance of one sidewalk over another. 
• CrossCreek Subdivision is a good example of an offset sidewalk along Canyon Creek Rd South. 

• Staff’s memorandum summarized Staff’s recommendation. Should the DRB affirm the Director’s 
decision, a draft Resolution was included that would accept the revised Staff report, thereby denying 
the appeal.  
• If the DRB granted the appeal tonight, revisions would be required to the Staff report and 

conditions of approval, in addition to the need to prepare new findings and conclusions. Due to 
the time needed to craft those findings and conclusions, Staff advised continuing the matter to 
March 23, 2015.    

 
Ms. Jacobson clarified if the Board was satisfied with everything and wanted to close the hearing, but 
decided to grant the appeal, the hearing would not really be continued, but the record kept open solely to 
bring in the revised findings. The Board would direct Staff to work with the Applicant on the revised 
findings and then bring them back at the March 23rd meeting.   
 
Mr. Edmonds noted Steve Adams from the Engineering Division was present to answer any technical 
questions about streets, patches, sidewalks, drainage, etc. and why street frontage was required. 
 
Richard Martens asked what triggered the requirement for the improvement. If the Applicant were 
endeavoring just to replace the existing house, would that trigger the street improvements as well? 
 
Mr. Edmonds replied the Development Code allowed a homeowner one year to replace a house in its 
current configuration in the case of a house fire or other disaster, but he did not believe that would trigger 
a new sidewalk or street improvement. The new house would have to be built close to the same size and 
location as the previous house. A larger, Street of Dreams type house might trigger some additional 
improvement. 
 
Ms. Jacobson clarified that the Development Code cited in her memorandum included a definition of 
development as well as the Code section that required the sidewalk. There might be an exception in the 
Code if there was a fire, but the definition of development under the City’s Code was quite broad. 
 
Mr. Edmonds said the issue had not come up before, so whether development would trigger street 
improvements was uncertain; it was a gray area. 
 
Chair Woods called for the Applicant’s presentation. 
 
Ron Downs, Attorney, stated he was representing the Applicants, Gerald and Joanne Downs, who were 
also his parents. He distributed several items to the Board, which were later entered into the record by 
Staff as noted. The handouts included a bound notebook, as well as several literature pieces from the 
Oregon State Bar Continuing Legal Education (CLE) on land use planning and subdivision law with a 
case attached as well as Title II and Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act because it was cited in 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 3 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 34 of 301



Staff’s memorandum and warranted a short discussion. He noted these applicable materials were for the 
Board to read at a future time. 
• He presented the notebook (Exhibit B11), titled Appeal of Downs Partition Plat #AR14-0077, with 

these comments: 
• The law in this area was fairly succinct and stated that a government entity may not impose 

conditions of approval on a permit unless they establish two things. First, there had to be a direct 
relationship between the conditions that are imposed and the impact created by the development 
or project.  

• Second, there had to be a rough proportionality determined, essentially, the condition 
imposed was roughly proportional both in terms of the scope and the cost to the actual 
impact created by the development or project. The law said and the courts had defined 
this to say that the government had to make individualized findings on each applicant. 
This came from Supreme Court case Dolan v City of Tigard that addressed the 
constitutionality in takings and established the law that was the focus of most of the 
discussion in the material provided. 

• It was a two-part test and the Supreme Court had established that it was a must, not a shall or 
should, the government entity must meet both those criteria. A governmental entity had to 
impose conditions that mitigate whatever new impact was created by whatever the condition, 
development or project before them. 

• Since Dolan, a number of cases, including Oregon Court of Appeals cases, had tinkered with the 
language on what the limits were and tried to interpret it in various ways, including whether or 
not the imposed standards were legislative in nature, in which case some courts of appeals 
decided they do not apply.  Dolan did not apply to those kinds of decisions. 
• Recently, the Supreme Court case of Koontz v St Johns River put that to rest. The Supreme 

Court was literal and said, “We meant what we said in Dolan and if it is a condition that 
required exactions then the government have to meet that test.” This was the standard by 
which all land applications and permits were to be judged. 

• The Applicant’s moved to Wilsonville 45 years ago and bought the subject property, which was 
featured in several pictures included in Part 1 of the notebook. The third picture showed Parcel 2, 
which had been used for gardening, horses, a number of different things over the years. The 
Applicants wanted their son to move home and build a house on this new parcel.  

• Parcel 2 measured 60 ft across and it was on that parcel and that parcel alone that a single-family 
house would be developed. Any new impacts in terms of the sewer system, sidewalks, water, 
electricity, gutters, system development charges (SDCs) and permit fees would all be associated with 
this newly created 60-ft parcel. 
• The remaining parcel, as shown on subsequent pages, measured 90 ft across, so both parcels 

together were 150 ft total. There would be no new development or impacts to the system caused 
by the 90-foot parcel. While a separate tax lot with a separate owner, the land would remain as it 
had for the last 45 years, the single-family residence of the Applicants. 

• The simplest way to look at the issue before the Board was Condition PFA27, noted in Part 2 of the 
notebook. The only issue, which was very narrow, was the street frontage required to have utilities 
and, specifically, facilities, such as sidewalks, curbs, etc. The issue was should the street frontage be 
60 ft or along the entire 150-ft parcel. 

• The requirement was that the Applicant either deposit roughly $45,000 into an account for 
future construction of that sidewalk and gutter for the entire 150-ft, or design and construct 
those additional facilities themselves. 

• Parts 3 and 4 of the notebook (Exhibit B11) discussed his interpretation of the Code provisions 
themselves and then reverted back to the law with regard to this notion. 

• Part 3 addressed the difference between a land partition and a development. The Code contained 
definitions for both which was important because, per the Code definition, partition and 
development require two different things. 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 4 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 35 of 301



• As defined, land partition meant to divide an area or tract of land into two parcels, an act of 
partitioning land or an area or tract of land. It was more of a paper type process. An applicant 
would fill out an application for a partition, pay the fee, hire a land surveyor to do a metes 
and bounds description, and then submit it. Once approved, the partition would be filed with 
the County and the County would then create two separate tax lots. 

• The definition of a development went to the next step. A development was any human-caused 
change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to, buildings or 
other structures. The definition also talked about mining; basically, physical acts. 
Development was really what it sounded like; actually doing something to develop the land, 
improve the land, or change the land physically, which he believed was a completely 
different definition from a partition. Nowhere in the definition of a development did it say 
partition; a partition was completely separate. 

• A partition required a whole separate process for approval. Section 4.030.01(b)5  listed the 
specific conditions that had to be met for a land partition. He believed everyone, including 
Staff agreed for the most part that Sections A through H were all met; the submittal, 
materials, if any easements or public right-of-ways would need to be provided, and the plan 
met the lot size and yard setbacks. 
• Section G was probably the one condition that was going to be an issue and was probably 

the basis from which Condition PFA27 had come from. It stated, “All public utilities and 
facilities are available or can be provided prior to the issuance of any development permit 
for any lot or parcel.” It literally stated that as a condition for granting the partition, the 
applicant had to tell the City that public utilities, sewer, water, electricity, and the 
sidewalks, gutters, and all those facilities would be available or could be provided prior to 
the issuance of any development permit for any lot or parcel. 
• The assumption was that it would be for any development permit. In this particular 

case, once the partition was done and filed with the County, there would be two 
separate legal parcels, two separate tax lots, two separate owners. At that point, he 
would be going through the permit process, the development process, paying the fees 
and the associated SDCs, and going through the new process to develop that newly 
created parcel. Again, nothing would happen on the remaining parcel. 

• In reading Section G, the only development permit that would be submitted was for 
the newly created parcel. Having read that to the extent that was the whole hang up or 
basis for whether or not it was 60 ft or 150 ft, the Applicant was not developing 
Parcel 1, the remaining parcel. 

• He had pointed out the literal definitions because the City’s position was that the definition of 
development was to be broadly interpreted, and under Staff’s reading of it, if that was what 
the Board accepted, the definition of development included a partition, and if a partition was 
considered a development then that in and of itself would trigger all of the rest of the Codes, 
not just for the newly created parcel, but the entire parcel as one, which was the basis for 
wanting to impose the condition that facilities were to be provided for the entire 150 ft. 
• He submitted that Staff had interpreted the definitions in the Code in an overbroad 

manner that went too far. Even without the constitutional analysis, which he would 
discuss, calling a partition a development did not meet the Code definition. If the Board 
agreed, Staff could simply be advised to change the required facilities from 150 ft to 60 ft 
because it met the definition and requirements for a land partition. 

• Part 4, the Applicant’s legal argument, was where the Dolan standard came into play. Dolan did, 
in fact, set the tone for all permit conditions. Nexus and proportionality were the tests the 
Supreme Court had established as having to be met. 
• He did not dispute that utilities and facilities had to be provided for a portion of the property. 

In this case, about 40 percent of the 150 ft was the new parcel and he agreed that all of the 
facilities would need to be provided to that parcel. The Dolan standard stated there had to be 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 5 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 36 of 301



a relationship, a nexus, between the imposed condition, in this case regarding facilities, and 
the impact that would be caused by the newly created development or project. When applying 
a strict reading of Dolan, the only thing that would be newly created was the 60-ft street 
frontage, so for the City to impose 150 ft was well beyond what the Supreme Court 
established as reasonable in Dolan.  

• The Court also stated that the government entity had to go through a finding to determine 
rough proportionality. As mentioned with the 2013 Koontz case, the Supreme Court stated 
that they meant what they said in Dolan, which was the condition imposed had to be 
proportional to the actual impact created by the project. 
• In applying that analysis to the current application, the conditions that should be imposed 

would be simply limited to 60 ft, not 150 ft. No argument could be made that would fit 
going beyond that rough proportionality standard because no new impacts were being 
created. 

• The Hallmark case cited in Staff’s memorandum (Exhibit A5) was one of the decisions Staff had 
relied on to argue that the conditions were reasonable and met the Dolan rough proportionality 
standard. However, he submitted that was not an apples-to-apples analysis.  
• The Hallmark case involved Hallmark Inns and Resorts, which had a large property site in Lake 

Grove on which they were going to build their new corporate headquarters. The City of Lake 
Oswego imposed a condition requiring Hallmark to build a pedestrian sidewalk to connect 
Waluga Park and the residential homes on one side of the corporate headquarters with the 
shopping center on the other side. The Hallmark property did not include multiple parcels, but 
was one big parcel on which Hallmark wanted to build a corporate headquarters with parking and 
all of the related facilities. Factually, it was different; a completely different scenario than what 
was being addressed tonight. 

• In his reading of the Hallmark case, he realized that the Court of Appeals was really saying the 
same thing that he had said. The Court of Appeals noted that the conditions focused on “The 
expected use of the facility that Hallmark applied to build and actually built.” The focus was not 
on what was going on at some other parcel. It was focused on what Hallmark was doing. The 
Court talked about the standards saying, “Here the City’s findings demonstrate that without the 
pathway, the development would impede the flow of pedestrian and bicycle traffic from the 
adjoining residential area to the adjoining shopping center. The pathway removes that 
impediment.” 

• He noted that the need for the pathway was directly related to the development itself and, thus, 
satisfied the related-in-nature aspect. This case showed the basis for the rough proportionality and 
what the Supreme Court said, that it had to be related to that parcel. There was no relationship to 
the remaining parcel that had been there for 45 years. Nothing new would be added, so it would 
not create any impact or affect on the system. 

• He also noted the third paragraph on Page 2 of Staff’s memorandum (Exhibit A5) stated, “The 
requirement being imposed by Wilsonville was simply that street frontage improvements be placed in 
front of the full length of the partitioned property only, which improvements will directly serve those 
two partitioned lots.” Not only did that statement go beyond what the Supreme Court stated could be 
done, but it was also an acknowledgement by the City that there are two parcels. The City was trying 
to argue it both ways. On the one hand, the City was imposing conditions on the whole thing, but, in 
reality, after being filed with the Country and creating two separate tax lots, both lots would be served 
by that. He believed that was going too far, which was also what the Courts had consistently held. 

• He noted the excerpts pertaining to American with Disabilities Act (ADA) laws that were provided 
for the Board’s review and explained that ADA had three parts. Title I pertained to prohibiting 
discriminating people with disabilities with regard to employment. Title II regarded public 
accommodations and was created to require public entities’ facilities to be accessible to individuals 
with disabilities. It required public entities to change their policies and practices to allow individuals 
with disabilities access to public facilities, public meetings like this, etc. Title III took it to the next 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 6 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 37 of 301



level by addressing commercial facilities, such as restaurants and malls. These regulations were 
designed to provide accommodations to individuals with commercial facilities, requiring such things 
as wide enough aisles and water fountains low enough for people with disabilities.  
• Title III did not extend to or regard residential or private houses. He did a lot of ADA work and, 

as he read the statute, Title II did extend beyond providing access and services to public entities 
either. It did not mandate that individual residents build a sidewalk in front of their house to allow 
people with disabilities access onto that sidewalk. That was not what the ADA regulations stated.  

• From a practical standpoint, this was a 60-feet parcel, essentially, what would be seen for a single-
family home. The Applicant was going to build a single-family home and was open to providing the 
sidewalks and public facilities for that parcel.  
• After submitting the materials and paying to get the survey done, he was surprised to learn that 

per the Staff report, if he agreed to the conditions, he would have to write a check for $45,000 
now, and when it came time to build, he would have to pay another $25,000 for SDCs, in addition 
to the building permit fees. So he would have to pay roughly $70,000 to $80,000 for the right to 
build a single-family home in the town he grew up in. He found this excessive and believed the 
Board might suffer the same shock factor if they were in his shoes and received the report.  

• He reiterated that he did not oppose improving streets or changes in Wilsonville, but there had to be a 
limit and it had to be considered reasonable and fair. That was what the Supreme Court said. That was 
what the Supreme Court demanded. And that was all the Applicant was asking from the DRB. 

 
Mr. Edmonds entered the additional exhibits distributed by the Applicant into the record.as follows: 

• Exhibit B11: Bound notebook titled, “Appeal of Downs Partition Plat #AR14-0077 Index”, 
containing colored photographs and the applicant’s comments in opposition to Condition of 
Approval PFA-27. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

• Exhibit B12: Multiple-page, stapled packet, “II. Takings Issue...The Nollan “Nexus” Test” 
printed from OSB Legal Publications. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

• Exhibit B13: Multiple-page, stapled packet, titled, “Subdivision Law and Growth Management 
Database updated November 2014; Chapter 6. Financing Capital Improvements References.” 
Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

• Exhibit B14: Stapled, 9-page packet, titled, “US Department of Justice Title II Highlights” 
discussing ADA requirements. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

• Exhibit B15: Stapled, 11-page packet, titled, “US Department of Justice Title III Highlights” 
discussing ADA requirements. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

• Exhibit B16: Stapled, 5-page packet, Louis F. Schultz and Anna May Schultz, Appellants v. City 
of Grants Pass Oregon Court of Appeals case. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

• In response to the question submitted by Mr. Martens about an existing house being burned or 
destroyed, he cited Section 4.190.03, noting he believed that when the existing house was built, it 
predated the Development Code. He read, “When a non-conforming structure is damaged by any 
cause exceeding 75 percent of the replacement cost, as determined by the building official, the non-
conforming structure shall not be reestablished unless all required building permits for repair and 
replacement are received within 18 months of damage. The City will endeavor to contact the owner of 
properties that have been damaged to alert them of the time limitations for receiving a building permit 
for repair or replacement. The property owner’s failure to receive such notification does not alter or 
extend the time limit specified in this subsection.” 

• He did not know if it was considered a development permit. In past practice for a non-conforming 
structure, the City only required a building permit to replace the house. 

 
Ms. Jacobson agreed, noting that was an exception to the Code for a catastrophic happening to an 
existing dwelling, which was why it was called out separately. 
 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 7 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 38 of 301



Mr. Martens understood the Applicant’s argument early on was that the proposed partition should not 
trigger the improvements, as it was a paper process that would get recorded with the County and should 
be separated from the requirement to do any improvements. 
 
Mr. Downs clarified he was asserting that the partition was not considered a development, so that in and 
of itself would only trigger Subsection G; it would trigger that “when.” The partition was a paper process. 
The partition itself would be approved under Subsection G conditioned upon the applicant being able to 
provide those utilities. The trigger was that when the partition, the new piece of property, was developed, 
the Applicant could assure that adequate utilities and facilities were provided. The partition itself did not 
trigger all of it. Subsection G did only to the extent that the applicant could assure the City that those 
things would be provided for that newly created parcel. 
 
Mr. Martens asked if the Applicant was asking the Board to approve the partition without any 
requirements, and then have those requirements wait and be contingent upon the ultimate construction of 
the home. 
 
Mr. Downs answered no; he was asking the Board to only change one thing, that the Board require, as a 
condition of approval of the land partition, that the Applicant provide all of that for 60 ft, which was 
being developed, not 150 ft. 
 
Mr. Martens responded that if it was based upon a partition that was not requiring anything, why would 
the Applicant not then say there should be no requirement at all for the entire 150 ft until such time as the 
Applicant applied for a building permit. 
 
Mr. Downs confirmed that would be the condition, and was, in fact, what Subsection G stated.  
Subsection G stated that the applicant had to assure the City that the facilities could be provided at the 
time of development. At that time the partition is granted and as a condition of granting the partition, the 
applicant assures that those facilities would be provided when the parcel is developed. If the partition was 
done and the owner just sat on the property, it would just sit there. The condition of installing and 
providing utilities and sidewalks did not go into effect until the land was developed, from both a practical 
and definitional standpoint, as he read the Code. 
 
Cheryl Dorman understood that this would be granting approval to partition the land. 
 
Mr. Edmonds agreed the administrative review application was for a land partition. 
 
Ms. Dorman stated in her interpretation, it had nothing to do with the future and that although the future 
was being discussed, in order to grant approval for the partition, these terms would need to be met, 150 ft. 
 
Ms. Jacobson agreed that was Staff’s opinion as well. 
 
Ms. Dorman asked if that was the Applicant’s interpretation as well; that to grant partition, the 150 ft had 
to be met.  
 
Mr. Downs agreed that was the issue; whether it was 150 ft or some other configuration that was the 
issue as a condition of granting the partition. There was still a whole other process related to 
development, such as the requirement to pay SDCs and etc. It was a separate issue, the cart before the 
horse, so to speak. 
 
Chair Woods called for public testimony in favor of, opposed and neutral to the application. Seeing 
none, he asked if Staff had further comments. 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 8 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 39 of 301



 
Ms. Jacobson stated that Staff’s reading of the definition of development included a partition, as outlined 
in her memorandum. It was any action; it did not need to be physical. The applicant did not need to be 
turning soil. The act of taking one parcel and making it into two to provide the ability to have two homes, 
or 20 homes, would be making a change to improve property. Section 4.005 listed those things that were 
exempted from development permit requirements, and a partition was not listed as exempt. The City’s 
Development Code stated that any time there was development that was when there was a requirement 
under both the City’s Comprehensive Plan and City Code that sidewalks, which were public 
improvements that serve not only the properties they front, but the public in general, had to be installed in 
order to achieve the connectivity standard needed so people could safely walk in the neighborhoods. 
Although the improvement would be put in by a private party, it was, in fact, a public sidewalk and would 
have to meet certain City requirements that would make it level and accessible for wheelchairs or any 
member of the public to be able to use.  
 
Chair Woods confirmed there was no further questions and closed the public hearing at 7:33 pm. 
 
Ms. Jacobson confirmed the Board could accept the amended Staff report with the exhibits that were 
read into the record first, and then address the resolution. 
 
Chair Woods moved to deny the Applicant’s appeal of the Director’s Class II Administrative 
Decision of application AR14-0077, case file DB15-0006, and that the Board approve Resolution 
299, which affirms the Director’s Class II Administrative Decision, Findings and Conditions, 
approving a tentative land partition for two parcels, as rendered in Case File AR14-0077 Class II 
Administrative Review, but as amended by the revised staff report, dated February 12, 2015, 
correcting references to “DB14-0077” to state “AR14-0077” and including Exhibits A5, B10, B11, 
B12, B13, B14, B15, B16, and D1 as read into the record by Blaise Edmonds. Dianne Knight 
seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Woods clarified his motion would approve the Resolution 299, which affirmed the Director’s 
Class II administrative decision, findings, and conditions that approved a tentative land partition for those 
two parcels, as rendered in Case AR14-0077, the Class II administrative review, but as amended by the 
revised Staff report dated February 12, and including all the exhibits as read into the record by Mr. 
Edmonds. Basically, the Board would be accepting the revised Staff report and its contents and 
particulars. 
 
Ms. Dorman appreciated the process the Applicants had gone through, and their hard work in providing 
the Board with a lot of information. While she was sympathetic to their cause, she strongly believed the 
partition, by its very nature of dividing one property into two, was a human-caused change to the 
improved real estate in this case, and would trigger the requirements of the improvements as Staff had 
recommended. The human-caused change to improve real estate caused Condition PFA27 to come into 
play.  
 
Chair Woods added that it would be for the entire 150.01 ft of frontage.  
 
Shawn O’Neil agreed. He noted the email (Exhibit D1) Staff received regarding the neighborhood in 
question. After seeing the site and envisioning children and older citizens trying to walk down that road, it 
just made sense to require improvements for that entire parcel. 
 
Chair Woods believed with the City’s imposed requirements to require a sidewalk on that portion in 
front of the property, which he believed was 60.01 ft, appeared to be consistent with the requirements of 
the City Code, Comprehensive Plan, Transportation System Plan, ADA requirements, and sidewalk 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 9 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 40 of 301



requirements, and it appeared to him that the entire 150 ft would fall under this and would then need to be 
developed, particularly in light of the definitions. 
 
Chair Woods called the question. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Woods read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
VIII. Board Member Communications  

A. Results of the February 9, 2015 DRB Panel A meeting 
There were none. 
 
IX. Staff Communications 
There were none. 
 
X. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 
Paula Pinyerd, ABC Transcription Services, Inc. for  
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 
 

Development Review Board Panel A  February 23, 2015 
Minutes  Page 10 of 10  

DRAFT

Page 41 of 301



Page 42 of 301



Page 43 of 301



Page 44 of 301



Exhibit A2 
 

REVISED STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

Appeal Class II Administrative Review Decision 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘B’ 
QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 

AMENDED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 23, 2015 
 

ADDED LANGUAGE bold italics underline     DELETED LANGUAGE strikethrough 
 
HEARING DATES:  February 23, 2015 
 
DATE OF REPORT:  February 12, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
APPLICATION NOS.:  DBAR14-0077 and DB15-0006  
 
APPLICANT/OWNERS: Gerald and Joanne Downs (collectively “Applicant”) 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER  
REPRESENTATIVE: Ronald Downs 
 
REQUEST: Appeal AR14-0077 (Class II Tentative Land Partition) and 

including Condition of Approval PFA27   
 
LOCATION: The subject property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road 

South, on the west side of SW Canyon Creek Road South.  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tax Lot 2700 of Section 13BA, T3S, R1W, Willamette Meridian, 

Clackamas County, Wilsonville, Oregon.   
 
LAND USE  
DESIGNATION: Comprehensive Plan Map Designation: Residential – 4 to 5 

dwelling units an acre. 
  
ZONING  
DESIGNATION: Residential Agricultural - Holding (RA-H) 
 
STAFF REVIEWERS: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning; Jennifer Scola, 

Assistant Planner, Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney and 
Steve Adams, Development Engineering Manager.  

 
 
 
Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 1 of 36 

Page 45 of 301



 
 
 
 
Applicable Review Criteria: Planning and Land Development Ordinance:  
 
Sections 4.008 - 4.015 Administration Sections 
Section 4.022(.01) Administrative Action Appeal 
Section 4.022(.04) Appeal Notice 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review 
Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review 
Sections 4.030(.01)(B)(5); 4.034(.05); 4.035; 
4.035(.03) 

Class II AR  

Section 4.202 Land Divisions General 
Section 4.210 Application Procedure 
Section 4.120 Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
Section 4.031 Authority of the DRB  
Section 4.113 Standards to all Residential Zones 
Section 4.118(.03)C.9 Waiver of Right of Remonstrance 
Section 4.167 Access 
Section 4.177(.01) and  (.02) Street Improvement Standards 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks 
Section 4.236(.01) Conformity to the Transportation Systems Plan 
Section 4.236(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System 
Section 4.237 Land Divisions General Requirements 
Section 4.260(.02) Improvement Procedures 
Sections  4.262 (.01 through .10) Improvement Requirements  
Sections 4.300-4.320 Underground Utilities 
 
Other: Administrative Decision AR14-0077 
Comprehensive Plan: Plan Policy 3.3.2, Implementation Measures 3.3.2c and 3.3.2d.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Option 2, which consists of this revised staff report, 
as outlined in the ‘Summary’ statement of this revised staff report (Exhibit A2) below, with 
proposed revised findings and conditions of approval in case file DB15-0006 (Exhibit A2). 
  

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 2 of 36 

Page 46 of 301



VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The applicant is appealing the staff decision for a Class II administrative approval of a two (2) 
parcel land partition in case file AR14-0077.  Section 4.022(.05)WC Scope of Review requires 
“that the standard on an appeal or call up of a staff decision to be heard by the Development 
Review Board is de novo.”  De novo is a Latin expression meaning "from the beginning," 
"afresh," "anew," "beginning again.”  Although the applicant may want to contest only certain 
portions of the staff decision, the entire Class II administrative approval record will be open for 
public testimony and admission of new evidence. 
 
The applicant is objecting to certain sidewalk, street and utility improvements required by City 
engineering condition PFA27.  See Exhibit B9 for the applicant’s detailed objection.  The 
applicant, by and through the Applicant Representative (Ron Downs), is seeking to partition their 
land into two parcels so that one may be deeded to Ron Downs for construction of a new home.  
The applicant, however, only wants to make the required improvements in front of that newly 
created lot and not in front of the other lot that is a part of the application and partition; in other 
words, the applicant is seeking to divide their property into two lots but to only provide street 
and sidewalks for the portion located in front of the newly created lot and not the remainder of 
the partitioned property.  It is City staff’s opinion that, by virtue of the partition, as the City’s 
definition as “Development” as set forth in City Code, the entire property is being redeveloped 
and, thus, the City conditions for redevelopment apply across the entire parcel and, therefore, 
sidewalk, curb, and gutter must be provided to front the entire parcel.  Authority for this position 
is found under the City’s Comprehensive Plan Section 3.3.2; Implementation Measure 3.3.2.c.; 
Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 3 of 36 

Page 47 of 301



Implementation Measure 3.3.2.d; and the City’s Development Code Section 4.236.  
Development is defined in Code Section 4.001, subsection 79. 
 
Based on the foregoing, the Development Review Board has three options to consider at the 
upcoming DRB hearing: 
 
Option 1:  Approve the original staff report, findings of fact, conclusionary findings and 
conditions of approval in case file AR14-0077 (Exhibit A1).  This action would deny the appeal.  
The applicant would then be free to either abandon the application, comply with the required 
conditions, or appeal  the DRB decision to City Council. 
 
Option 2:  Approve the proposed revised staff report, findings of fact, conclusionary findings 
and conditions of approval in case file DB15-0006 (Exhibit A2).  The proposed changes are 
being recommended by staff to give more clarity to the DRB and to the applicant, as well as to 
give the applicant some alternatives options with respect to implementation of the challenged 
condition.  The applicant would then be free to abandon the application, comply with the 
required revised or original conditions, or appeal the DRB decision to City Council.  These 
proposed revisions are highlighted in the revised staff report to show all as additions and strike-
outs to the original staff report for DRB and applicant ease of reference. 
 
Option 3:  The DRB could reject portions of the recommended revised staff report by modifying 
conditions, applying new conditions, or removing conditions, should the DRB find that the 
applicant has sustained the burden of proving that the staff conditions are incorrect or not 
proportionate and therefore not legally permissible. 
 
 
  

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 4 of 36 

Page 48 of 301



EXHIBITS (AR14-0077):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the Class 2 Administrative Review 
of Tentative Land Partition Application in AR14-0077. 
 
A1. Original Staff Report 
B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
B5. Vicinity Map 
B6. Tax Lot Information  
B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
 
C1. Tax Map 
C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB D3 
C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 
 
EXHIBITS (DB15-0006):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the appeal to the DRB in appeal 
application DB15-0006 as submitted. 
 
Staff Report:  
A2.   Revised Staff Report (this one), including Proposed Revised Findings of Fact, Conditions 

of Approval and Conclusionary Findings.  (Changes to the original are shown in redline for 
DRB and applicant ease of review.) 

A3.   PowerPoint presentation. 
A4.   Memorandum to Development Review Board members from Blaise Edmonds and Barbara 

Jacobson, dated February 12, 2015 Re:  Director’s Decisions/Applicant Appeal 
A5.   Memorandum from Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney, dated February 20, 2015, 

providing a legal response to the Appeal Letter submitted by the Applicant. (Exhibit B10) 
   
Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials:  
B9.     Letter of appeal, dated January 17, 2015. 
B10.  Letter entitled “Appeal Pursuant to Section 4.022” submitted by the Applicant, Ronald Downs 

PC, dated February 13, 2015. 
B11.  Bound booklet titled, “Appeal of Downs Partition Plat #AR14-0077 Index”, containing colored   

photographs and discussing the opposition to Condition of Approval PFA-27. Distributed by the 
Applicant at the meeting. 

B12.  Multiple-page, stapled packet, “II. Takings Issue...The Nollan “Nexus” Test” printed from OSB 
Legal Publications. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

B13.   Multiple-page, stapled packet, titled, “Subdivision Law and Growth Management Database 
updated November 2014; Chapter 6. Financing Capital Improvements References.” Distributed 
by the Applicant at the meeting. 

B14.   Stapled, 9-page packet, titled, “US Department of Justice Title II Highlights” discussing ADA 
requirements. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 5 of 36 

Page 49 of 301



B15.  Stapled, 11-page packet, titled, “US Department of Justice Title III Highlights” discussing ADA 
requirements. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

B16.  Stapled, 5-page packet, Louis F. Schultz and Anna May Schultz, Appellants v. City of Grants 
Pass Oregon Court of Appeals case. Distributed by the Applicant at the meeting. 

 
     
Development Review Team: None submitted 
  
D1. General Correspondence: 
D1. Letters (neither For nor Against): Email received February 23, 2015 from Wayne Kirk. 
D2. Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
D3. Letters (Opposed): None submitted 
  

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 6 of 36 

Page 50 of 301



 
 
DB15-0006 - PROPOSED APPROVED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
PD = Planning Division Conditions 
PF = City Engineering Division Conditions 
 
Bold/Italic = New words 

Planning Conditions: 

PDA1. Approval of the partition is effective for two (2) years from the date of the notice 
of decision. Time extensions may be granted per Section 4.023 of the City’s 
Development Code. The Applicant/Owner shall submit final plat application 
within two (2) years of date of the notice of decision. 

PDA2.  The final plat for the land partition shall be in substantial compliance with the 
approved tentative plat and narrative submitted to the Planning Division as part 
of this application. 

PDA3. The Applicant/Owner shall provide the City’s Engineering and Planning Division 
with a copy of the final plat of the land partition recorded with the Clackamas 
County Surveyor’s Office. 

PDA4. Any improvements installed shall conform to the City’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards. 

PDA5. Any utilities installed as part of development on the property shall be installed 
underground. 

PDA6.  A Reduced Setback Agreement shall be recorded concurrently with the final plat.  

PDA7.  The final plat shall not display the ten-foot No Construction Easement, nor shall 
the proposed building outline for the southern parcel of the partition. 

PDA8. Applicant/Owner shall waive the right of remonstrance against any local 
improvement district that may be formed to provide public improvements to 
serve the subject site.  Before the start of construction, a waiver of right to 
remonstrance shall be submitted to the City Attorney for review. See Finding 51. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 7 of 36 

Page 51 of 301



Engineering Division Conditions: 

New development on the two lots shall be in compliance with the following Engineering conditions 
of approval. 

Standard Comments: 

PFA1.       All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to 
the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards - 2014. 

PFA2.       Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 
following amounts: 

General Aggregate                                                                        $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate                                 $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                                                                           $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                                                   $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)                                                           $50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)                                               $10,000 

PFA3.       No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained 
and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFA4.        All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22” x 
34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public 
Work’s Standards. 

PFA5.       Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

a. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not contained within 
a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access acceptable to the City. The 
public utility improvements shall be centered in a minimum 15-ft. wide public easement 
for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft. wide public easement for two parallel utilities 
and shall be conveyed to the City on its dedication forms. 

b. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the issuance 
of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to review and 
approval by the City Building Department. 

c. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed new 
private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public improvements 
shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

d. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 Datum.  
e. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply with the 

State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any other applicable 
codes. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 8 of 36 

Page 52 of 301



f. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private utility 
within the general construction area. 

g. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, fiber-optic 
and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  Existing overhead 
utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably possible. 

h. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or existing 
driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

i. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
j. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be identified. 
k. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in the State 

of Oregon.  
PFA6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works construction to 

be maintained by the City: 
 

a. Cover sheet 
b. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
c. General construction note sheet 
d. Existing conditions plan. 
e. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
f. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, sidewalk 

improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements (existing/proposed), and 
sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

g. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
h. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm and 

sanitary manholes. 
i. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all utility 

crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at crossings; 
vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

j. Street plans. 
k. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and cleanouts for 

easier reference 
l. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts for 

easier reference. 
m. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), including 

water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide detail of inlet 
structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain inlets, structures, and 
piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm water detention facilities are 
typically privately maintained they will be inspected by engineering, and the plans must 
be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

n. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that although 
storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they will be inspected by 
Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

o. Composite franchise utility plan. 
p. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
q. Illumination plan. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 9 of 36 

Page 53 of 301



r. Striping and signage plan. 
s. Landscape plan.  

PFA7.        Design engineer shall coordinate with the City in numbering the sanitary and 
stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and 
sanitary manhole testing will refer to City’s numbering system. 

PFA8.      The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in 
conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482 
during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements until 
such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed. 

PFA9.      Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil on 
the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall obtain 
a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 to less 
than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of Wilsonville 
is required. 

PFA10.     The applicant shall be in conformance with all stormwater and flow control 
requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards. 

PFA11.      A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City. 

PFA12.     The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality 
system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a letter 
from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per specifications 
and is functioning as designed. 

PFA13.     Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some other 
erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior to streets 
and/or alleys being paved. 

PFA14.      The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department and inform them 
of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any existing well shall be limited to 
irrigation purposes only.  Proper separation, in conformance with applicable State 
standards, shall be maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems.  Should the project abandon any existing wells, they shall be 
properly abandoned in conformance with State standards. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 10 of 36 

Page 54 of 301



PFA15.     All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within 
the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be 
adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a registered 
professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument to its original 
condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State law.  A copy of 
any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFA16.     Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFA17.      No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 

PFA18.     The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each connection 
point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 

PFA19.     The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by driveway 
placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and approved by the 
City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with driveways on the 
opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFA20.     Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's Transportation 
Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping plantings shall 
be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street intersections and 
alley/street intersections. 

PFA21.     The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm 
system to be privately maintained.  Stormwater or rainwater LID facilities may be 
located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  Applicant 
shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water 
facilities; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it is 
formed. 

PFA22.     Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to all 
public right-of-ways. 

PFA23.     For any new public easements created with the project the Applicant shall be required to 
produce the specific survey exhibits establishing the easement and shall provide the City 
with the appropriate  Easement document (on City approved forms). 

PFA24.     MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before a 
'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said 
survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as the 
physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, originally 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 11 of 36 

Page 55 of 301



approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record survey as a 
guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans and/or 
specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall consist of 
drawings on 3 mil. Mylar and an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current version, and a 
digitally signed PDF. 

PFA25.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
Paper copies of all proposed subdivision/partition plats shall be provided to the City for 
review.  Once the subdivision/partition plat is approved, applicant shall have the 
documents recorded at the appropriate County office.  Once recording is completed by 
the County, the applicant shall be required to provide the City with a 3 mil Mylar copy 
of the recorded subdivision/partition plat. 

PFA26.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
All newly created easements shown on a subdivision or partition plat shall also be 
accompanied by the City’s appropriate Easement document (on City approved forms) 
with accompanying survey exhibits that shall be recorded immediately after the 
subdivision or partition plat. 

Specific Comments: 
PFA27. The City has estimated the costs to reconstruct Canyon Creek Road South to meet the 

requirements of the Residential Street at $1,135,099.88. The estimated costs of street 
improvements shall be divided proportionately between all owners of record based on 
property street frontage along Canyon Creek Road South; this breaks down to $232.82 per 
foot of property frontage. 

 
 Applicant/Owner shall either: 
 

1. Be responsible to submit funds to the City to equal 130% of their estimated proportionate 
share; City will undertake street reconstruction at some time in the future.  For the 150.01 
feet of property frontage, this comes to $45,402.93; or 

2. Design and construct 150.01 feet of frontage improvements that include curb and gutter, 
5-foot sidewalk, stormwater LID for new residence and driveway, and installation of three 
4” conduits terminating in vaults at the north and south end of the properties.  Applicant 
shall provide the City a cash deposit for cost to purchase and install a new streetlight 
equivalent to streetlights recently installed with the adjacent Renaissance Development.    
Construction and street repair shall be done in accordance with PFA1. 
 

PFA28.    Each lot shall be allowed one driveway access onto Canyon Creek Road South. 

PFA29.  Applicant shall obtain water and sanitary sewer service from the existing systems in 
Canyon Creek Road South.  

PFA30. If stormwater detention and/or water quality facilities are designed for joint usage between 
the tax lots, maintenance plans or the system(s) shall be required and approved prior to 
acceptance. The applicant shall be required to establish a homeowners association with 
responsibility to maintain the private stormwater detention and/or water quality. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 12 of 36 

Page 56 of 301



 

Natural Resources Conditions: 

The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 

Stormwater Management 

NRA1.         Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, stormwater facilities are required when 
proposed development establishes or increases the impervious surface area by more 
than 5,000 square feet. Development includes new development, redevelopment, 
and/or partial redevelopment. 

NRA2.         Submit a drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
the proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the requirements of the Public Works 
Standards.  

NRA3.         Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for the proposed stormwater facilities 
consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 

NRA4.        Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 
plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for the 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NRA5.         Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of the 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other 

NRA6.        Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 
an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary: 

a. Gravel construction entrance; 
b. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
c. Sediment fence; 
d. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
e. Dust control;  
f. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
g. Limits of construction; and 
h. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NRA7.         The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN permit). 

 
  

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 13 of 36 

Page 57 of 301



Exhibit A2 - FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. The statutory 120-day time limit begun with the date that staff rendered the application 

for the Tentative Partition complete. The Tentative Partition application (AR14-0077) 
was deemed complete on December 4, 2014. Thus the City, including appeals, before 
May 4, 2015, must render a final decision. 

 
2.   Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
East:  RA-H SW Canyon Creek Rd. South, Single-

family residential 
South:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
West:  PDR-1 Single-family residential 

 
3.  The subject site contains an existing single-family home. 
 
5.  The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.210 and 4.233 pertaining to review 

procedures and submittal requirements for review of an appeal. 
 

Exhibit A2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General: This section lists general application 
procedures applicable to a number of types of land use applications and also lists unique features 
of Wilsonville’s development review process. 
 
The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable general procedures of this 
Section. These criteria are met.  
 
Section 4.009 Who May Initiate Application: Except for a Specific Area Plan (SAP), applications 
involving specific sites may be filed only by the owner of the subject property, by a unit of government 
that is in the process of acquiring the property, or by an agent who has been authorized by the owner, 
in writing, to apply. 
 
Signed application form has been submitted by the property owners. 
 
Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference: This section lists the pre-application 
process 
 
A pre-application conference was held in 2014 for the tentative partition application – AR14-
0077 in accordance with this subsection. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval: City Council Resolution 
No. 796 precludes the approval of any development application without the prior payment of all 
applicable City liens for the subject property. Applicants shall be encouraged to contact the City 
Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 14 of 36 

Page 58 of 301



Finance Department to verify that there are no outstanding liens. If the Planning Director is 
advised of outstanding liens while an application is under consideration, the Director shall advise 
the applicant that payments must be made current or the existence of liens will necessitate denial of 
the application. 
 
No applicable liens exist for the subject property. The application for the appeal can thus move 
forward. This criterion is satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements: An 
application for a Site Development Permit shall consist of the materials specified as follows, plus any 
other materials required by this Code.” Listed 1. through 6.j. 
 
The applicant has provided all of the applicable general submission requirements contained in 
this subsection. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally: The use of any building or premises or the construction of any 
development shall be in conformity with the regulations set forth in this Code for each Zoning District 
in which it is located, except as provided in Sections 4.189 through 4.192. The General Regulations 
listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 shall apply to all zones unless the text indicates otherwise. 
 
This tentative partition with the city conditions of approval is in conformity with the RA-H zone 
and general development regulations listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 have been applied in 
accordance with this Section. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Section 4.009(.01) Ownership: Who may initiate application 
 
The application has been submitted by the property owners meeting the above criteria.   
 
Sections 4.013-4.031, 4.113, 4.118, 4.124 Review procedures and submittal requirements 
 
The required public notices have been sent and all proper notification procedures have been 
satisfied. The applicant has complied with these sections of the Code.  
 
Section 4.120 – Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
  
The subject property is designated Residential – 4 to 5 dwelling units an acre on the 
Comprehensive Plan Map and is zoned Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H). The RA-H 
Zone allows residential outright.  
 
Section 4.022. Appeal and Call-up Procedures. 
(.01) Administrative Action Appeals. A decision by the Planning Director on issuance of a Site 
Development Permit may be appealed. Such appeals shall be heard by the Development Review Board 
for all quasi-judicial land use matters except expedited land divisions, which may be appealed to a 
referee selected by the City to consider such cases. Only the applicant may appeal a Class I decision 
unless otherwise specified in Section 4.030, and such appeals shall be filed, including all of the 
required particulars and filing fee, with the City recorder as provided in this Section. Any affected 
party may appeal a Class II decision by filing an appeal, including all of the required particulars and 
filing fee, with the City Recorder within fourteen (14) calendar days of notice of the decision. Either 
panel of the Development Review Board, or both panels if convened together, may also initiate a call-
Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 15 of 36 

Page 59 of 301



up of the Director's decision by motion, without the necessity of paying a filing fee, for matters other 
than expedited land divisions. The notice of appeal shall indicate the nature of the action or 
interpretation that is being appealed or called up and the matter at issue will be a determination of the 
appropriateness of the action or interpretation of the requirements of the Code. 
 
(.04)     Notice. Legal notice of a hearing on an appeal shall set forth: 

A. The date of the hearing. 
B. The issue(s) being appealed. C. Whether the review will be on the record or whether new 
evidence will be accepted, if known. 
 

The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable general procedures of this 
Section including legal notice requirements. The applicant’s representative is requesting de novo 
review of the appeal.  Section 4.022(.04) is met.  
 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review. 
A. At its discretion, the hearing body may limit an appeal or review to a review of the record and a 
hearing for receipt of oral arguments regarding the record, or may accept new evidence and testimony. 
Except, however, that the standard of review on an appeal or call up of a staff decision to be heard by 
the Development Review Board is de novo. 

B. The reviewing body shall issue an order stating the scope of review on appeal to be one of 
the following: 
1. Restricted to the record made on the decision being appealed. 
2. Limited to such issues as the reviewing body determines necessary for a proper resolution of 
the matter. 
3. A de novo hearing on the merits. 

 
The subject application involves an appeal of a staff decision. Thus, as provided in 
Section 4.002(.05) the appeal of this staff decision to the DRB is de novo. 
 
Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review. 
A. Except as otherwise specified in this Code, or required by State law, the reviewing body may hear 
the entire matter de novo; or it may admit additional testimony and other evidence without holding a de 
novo hearing if it is satisfied that that additional testimony or other evidence could not reasonably have 
been presented at the prior hearing. The reviewing body shall consider all of the following in making 
such a decision. 

1. Prejudice to the parties. 
2. Convenience or availability of evidence at the time of the initial hearing. 
3. Surprise to opposing parties. 
 4. The competency, relevancy and materiality of the proposed testimony or other evidence. 
5. Such other factors as may be determined by the reviewing body to be appropriate. 
B. "De novo hearing" shall mean a hearing by the review body as if the action had not been 
previously heard and as if no decision had been rendered, except that all testimony, evidence 
and other material from the record of the previous consideration shall be included in the 
record of the review. 

 
Because the standard of review on an appeal of a staff decision to the DRB is generally by its 
nature de novo, meaning all matters may be considered and new evidence received, these criteria 
are satisfied by the nature of the type of appeal. 
 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 16 of 36 

Page 60 of 301



 
Exhibit A1 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS – AR14-0077 
 

STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

LAND PARTITION - DOWNS 
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND DECISION 

 
 
DATE OF REPORT: January 22, 2015 
 
APPLICATION NO.: AR14-0077 
 
REQUEST: The applicants, Gerald and Joanne Downs, together with their representative, 
Ronald Downs, are requesting administrative approval of a land partition of 28205 SW Canyon 
Creek Road South, located between SW Summerton Street and Boeckman Road on the west side 
of SW Canyon Creek Road South. The land partition would allow for the existing home to 
remain, as well as the creation of one additional parcel to the south. This request is being 
processed through the Class II Administrative Review process. 
 
LOCATION: The subject property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road South, on the 
west side of SW Canyon Creek Road South. The subject site more specifically described in tax 
records as Tax Lot 2700 in Section 13BA, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, Willamette 
Meridian, City of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon. 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Gerald and Joanne Downs 
 
APPLICANT’S  
REPRESENTATIVE: Ronald Downs  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIG.:  Residential – 4 to 5 dwelling units an acre 
 
ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  Planned Development Residential (PDR-3) 
 
Applicable Review Criteria: 
City of Wilsonville Planning and Land Development Ordinance: Sections 4.008 through 4.015; 
4.030(.01)(B)(5); 4.034(.05); 4.035; 4.035(.03); 4.113; 4.118; 4.124.3; 4.167; 4.177; 4.202; 
4.210; 4.236; 4.237; 4.262; and 4.300-4.320 
 
ACTION TAKEN: Approval of the application, together with conditions of approval, as found 
beginning on page 15 of this report. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 17 of 36 

Page 61 of 301



STAFF REVIEWERS: Jennifer Scola, Assistant Planner; Blaise Edmonds, Manager of 
Current Planning; and, Steve Adams, Development Engineering 
Manager 

 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
A1. Staff Report (this document) 
 
B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
B5. Vicinity Map 
B6. Tax Lot Information  
B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
 
C1. Tax Map 
C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB D3 
C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
East:  RA-H SW Canyon Creek Rd. South, Single-

family residential 
South:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
West:  PDR-1 Single-family residential 

 
2. The Comprehensive Plan does not place this site in an Area of Special Concern. 
 
3. The subject site contains an existing single-family home. 
 
5. The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.210 and 4.233 pertaining to review procedures 
and submittal requirements for review of a tentative partition plat. 
 
 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 18 of 36 

Page 62 of 301



SUMMARY OF PROPOSAL: 
 
The project summary submitted by the Applicant is found in the Applicant’s narrative (Exhibit 
B1), and on accompanying drawing (Exhibit B5).  Except where a discrepancy is determined to 
exist, and may be discussed in this report, the Applicant’s will not be duplicated here. 
 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS: 

 
Sections 4.008-4.009 Application Procedures and Applicant’s Rights   
 
1. The Applicant’s submitted documents meet these code criteria. 

 
Section 4.014 Burden of Proof 

 
2. Subsection 4.014 provides that the Applicant bears the burden of proving that the 

necessary findings of fact can be made for approval of any land use or development 
application.  Staff finds that the Applicant has provided sufficient information proving 
the necessary findings of fact.   

 
Subsection 4.030(.01)(B)(5) Class II Administrative Review - Land Partitions 
 
3. This subsection directs land partitions, other than expedited land partitions, to be 

processed according to the Class II Administrative Review procedures pursuant to 
Section 4.210. In addition, it directs approval of land partitions to be based on the 
following criteria: 

 
a. The applicant has made a complete submittal of materials for the Director to review, as 
required by Section 4.210. 
 

4. The Applicant has submitted the required documents, satisfying this subsection. 
 

b. The proposed plan meets the requirements of the Code regarding minimum lot size and yard 
setbacks. 
 

5. The tentative plat demonstrates that two (2) proposed parcels meet the requirements for 
minimum lot size. The northernmost lot of the two (2) proposed parcels does not meet 
minimum setback requirements; however condition of approval PDA6 requires that a 
Reduced Setback Agreement be recorded with the final plat.  
 
c. The approval will not impede or adversely affect the orderly development of any adjoining 
property or access thereto. 
 

6. Access to adjoining properties will not be affected, and the abutting sites have already 
been developed. This provision is met. 
 
d. The public right-of-way bordering the lots will meet City standards. 
 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 19 of 36 

Page 63 of 301



7. An Engineering Condition of Approval, PFA4, will ensure any improvements in the 
right-of-way bordering the lots meet City standards. 

 
e. Any required public dedications of land have been approved for acceptance by the City and 
will be recorded with the County prior to final plat approval. 
 

8. No dedication of land to the public is required as part of this partition. This provision is 
met. 

 
f. Adequate easements are proposed where an existing utility line crosses or encroaches upon 
any other parcel to be created by the partition. 
 

9. No existing utility lines cross or encroach upon any of the proposed parcels as discussed 
in this subsection.  This provision does not apply. 

 
g. All public utilities and facilities are available or can be provided prior to the issuance of any 
development permit for any lot or parcel. 
 

10. Engineering PFA3 ensures that prior to any development permit is issued, all public 
utility and facility plans will be submitted and reviewed. This provision is satisfied. 

 
h. Roads extended or created as a result of the land partition will meet City standards. 
 

11. No roads will be extended or created as result of the proposed partition. This provision 
does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.034(.05) Application Requirements 
 
12. The Applicant has submitted all of the materials required by this subsection. 
 
Subsection 4.035(.03) Procedure for Processing Class II - Administrative Review. 
 
13. The Applicant's proposal will, together with the attached conditions of approval, result in 

conformance with applicable provisions of the City's Planning and Land Development 
Ordinance. Staff has followed the provisions of this code section. Staff notes that this 
approval is contingent upon final plat approval by the City and recordation of the final 
approved partition plat with the Clackamas County Clerk's Office. 
 

Section 4.113 Standards for Residential Development in All Zones 
 

14. Provisions of this section regarding landscaping are not applicable to partitions.  The area 
of the two proposed parcels will allow all other applicable provisions of this section, 
including setbacks, to be met. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 20 of 36 

Page 64 of 301



Sections 4.124 Standards Applying to All Planned Development Residential Zones 
      Subsection 4.124 (.01)-(.04) Uses allowed in Planned Development Residential Zones 
 

15. These subsections lists uses associated with the Planned Development Residential Zones. 
The parcels will be sufficient for a number of uses allowed in the Planned Development 
Residential Zones. 

 
Subsection 4.124 (.06) Block and Access Standards 

 
16. No new blocks or streets are involved with the proposal. 

 
Section 4.124.3 Planned Development Residential-3 Zone 
 
Subsection 4.124.3 (.01) Average Lot Size 

 
17. The average lot size for a lot in the PDR-3 Zone is 7,000 square feet, of which the 

proposed parcels exceed 7,000 square feet.  
 

Subsection 4.124.3 (.02) Minimum Lot Size 
 

18. The minimum lot size for PDR-3 Zone is 5,000 square feet. At 8,100 square feet, and 
12,150 square feet, the two (2) proposed parcels meet this minimum requirement. This 
provision is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.124.3 (.03) Minimum density at build-out 

 
19. The minimum density at build-out for the PDR-3 Zone is 8,000 square feet. Both 

proposed parcels would meet this minimum. This provision is satisfied.  
 

Subsection 4.124.3 (.04) Other Standards 
 

20. All other applicable standards will or can be met by the proposed parcels. This provision 
is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 

 
21. The subject parcel was part of a previously approved Planned Development, subject to 

this Section. All requirements of this section were found to be satisfied by the 
development (see case file 03DB43). As shown in Exhibit 44 of Case File 03DB43 
(Exhibit C3), the partition of the subject property was anticipated as a future phase of the 
planned development.  Because certain frontage and other requirements were not required 
at the time of that approval, due to lack of planned development on the parcel at hand, 
certain development requirements were deferred but must be put into place now that this 
property is being further partitioned and redeveloped. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 21 of 36 

Page 65 of 301



Section 4.155 Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking 
 
22. This section requires that each dwelling provide a minimum of one parking space. The 

proposed parcel Number Two (2) will enable siting of a future dwelling that will be 
required to provide one off-street parking space.  This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.167 General Regulations – Access, Ingress and Egress 
 
23. These provisions require that safe access be provided to each of the proposed uses.  The 

proposed parcel Number Two (2) will have direct access to Canyon Creek Road South, 
and the parcel with the existing structure has a driveway, also taking access from Canyon 
Creek Road South.  This criteria is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.176 Landscaping, Screening and Buffering 
 
24. Because the proposal is for a partition, rather than a subdivision, there are no landscape 

requirements applicable to the request.  While Subsection 4.176(.06)(d) provides for the 
installation of street trees along the frontage of the proposed parcels, such requirement is 
appropriately limited to subdivisions, not partitions.  This section is not applicable. 
 

Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
 
25. This Subsection requires that all development, which by its definition includes a partition 

of a property into two or more lots, comply with the requirements of this Section, the 
Wilsonville Public Works Standards, and the Transportation Plan in rough proportion to 
the potential impacts of development, including redevelopment.  The required options 
contained in PFA27 satisfy this criterion. 

 
Subsection 4.202 (.04) B. Parcel Partitions Not Allowed that Make Remaining Parcels Less than 
Allowed in Zone. 
 
26. This subsection does not allow parcel partitions to create parcels less than that allowed in 

the zone. The minimum parcel size for the Planned Development Residential Zone (PDR-
3) is 5,000 square feet. Proposed Parcel 1 will be 12,150 square feet, proposed Parcel 2 
will be 8,100 square feet, with both two (2) parcels exceeding the required minimum.  
This criterion is met.  [See also findings for Subsection 4.124.3 (.02), above.] 

 
Section 4.210 Land Divisions - Application Procedure. 

      Subsection 4.210 (.01) A. Pre-Application Meeting 
 
27. This subsection requires a pre-application meeting as part of the process. While no formal 

pre-application meeting was held, the applicant did contact staff to understand required 
submittal materials and the review process. This provision is satisfied. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 22 of 36 

Page 66 of 301



Subsection 4.210 (.01) B. Tentative Plat Submission 
 

28. This subsection sets forth the submission requirements for tentative plats. The Applicant 
submitted the required documents, meeting the requirements of this subsection. [See also 
finding for Subsection 4.030(.01)(B)(5)(a), above.] 

 
Section 4.236 General Requirements – Streets 

     Subsection 4.236 (.01) Conformity to the Master Plan or Map 
 

29. This subsection requires land partitions to be in harmony with adopted Transportation 
Master Plans, Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans, Park and Recreation Master Plans, 
and the Master Street Plan. The proposed land partition does not create any new 
infrastructure associated with these plans, nor is any required. There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposed partition would affect the harmony of existing infrastructure 
with the above plans.  This criterion is met. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) A. Relation to Adjoining Street System 

 
30. This subsection requires land partitions to provide for the continuation of the principal 

streets existing in the adjoining area and proposed streets to be the width required 
elsewhere in the Wilsonville City Code.  No new streets are planned or proposed with 
this partition. There are no adjoining streets that would continue through the subject 
property. This criterion does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) B. Requirement to Submit Prospective Future Street System  

 
31. This subsection requires the submission of prospective future street systems when the 

land partition does not cover the entire tract. The proposed land partition covers the 
Applicant’s entire tract and no streets are proposed. This criterion does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) C. Arrangement of Parcels to Allow Future Subdivision 

 
32. This subsection requires the arrangement of streets and parcels to allow for future land 

partition if allowed by the Comprehensive Plan. The parcels are arranged in a manner to 
allow the partition, if found compliant with the Comprehensive Plan. This provision is 
satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.03) Conformity with Section 4.177 and Block Standards of Zone. 

 
33. This subsection requires all streets to conform to Section 4.177 of the Wilsonville City 

Code and block standards of the zone. No new streets or will result from this application. 
This provision does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.04) Creation of Easements 

 
34. This subsection allows the Planning Director to approve easements as a reasonable 

method to allow vehicular access and adequate utilities to the lots in this two-parcel land 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 23 of 36 

Page 67 of 301



partition. The applicant is required to provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement 
on lot frontages to all public right-of-ways See Condition PFA22.  This provision is 
satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.08) Existing Streets 

 
35. No additional right-of-way is being required as part of the proposed partition.  Therefore, 

the standards in this subsection are not affected.  
 

Section 4.237 General Requirements – Other. 
      Subsection 4.237 (.01) Block Standards 
 

36. This subsection provides standards for new blocks created by land partitions. No block 
creation is involved in the proposed land partition. These criteria do not apply. 

 
 
Subsection 4.237 (.02) Easements 

 
37. This subsection requires easements for existing and needed utility lines. As indicated in 

Finding 34, above, a six-foot-wide public utility easement will be required along the 
frontage of the two parcels. Condition of Approval PFA22 requires a six-foot-wide public 
utility easement along the Canyon Creek Road South frontage for potential future 
franchise utilities. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.03) Pedestrian and Bicycle Pathway 

 
38. This subsection requires an improved public path for blocks that exceed the length 

standard for the zone they are located in. No new blocks are involved in this partition. 
Compliance with this subsection is not altered by the proposed partition. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.04) Street Tree Planting 

 
39. This subsection presents requirements for street trees, as applicable.  No street trees are 

proposed by the Applicant.  Because the application is for a partition, rather than a 
subdivision, street trees are not required.  This provision is satisfied.  

 
Subsection 4.237 (.05) Parcel Size, Shape, Width, and Orientation. 

 
40. This subsection requires the parcels resulting from the land partition have the size, width, 

shape and orientation appropriate for the location of the land partition and for the 
development and use that are contemplated as well as for the zone in which they are 
located. Proposed parcel sizes, widths, shapes and orientation are appropriate for 
contemplated future development and are in conformance with the PDR-3 requirements. 
The proposed partition complies with the standards of this subsection. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 24 of 36 

Page 68 of 301



Subsection 4.237 (.06) Access 
 

41. This subsection requires parcels resulting from the land partition have the minimum 
frontage of public streets. The parcels resulting from proposed land partition meet the 
street frontage requirements for the zone. This provision is met.  

 
Subsection 4.237 (.07) Through Lots 

 
42. The current parcel is not a through lot, and the proposed parcel also will not be a through 

lot. The applicable provisions of this subsection are satisfied. 
 

Subsection 4.237 (.08) Parcel Side Lines 
 
43. This subsection requires side parcel lines be at right angles to the street the parcels face as 

far as practical. All parcel lines are at right angles. This provision is met. 
 

Subsection 4.237 (.10) Building Line 
 

44. This subsection gives the Planning Director authority to create building setback lines to 
be recorded on the plat to allow for future repartition or other development or to support 
other findings. In a separate Class I Administrative Application, the Applicant is seeking 
a setback agreement to allow reduced setbacks between the existing house and the future 
house at a side property line. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.11) Build-to Line 

 
45. This subsection gives the Planning Director authority to create build-to lines for the 

development. The Applicant is not requesting nor is the Planning Director requiring the 
creation of build-to-lines. 

 
Section 4.250 Legal Lots of Record 

 
46. The existing parcel is a legal lot of record. Upon satisfaction of conditions of approval 

and recordation of a final plat, the one (1) resulting parcel will also be a legal lot of 
record, meeting this provision. 

 
Section 4.260 Improvements-Procedure 

 
47. This section requires, in addition to other requirements, improvements installed by the 

developer to conform to the requirements of Wilsonville’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards.  Condition of Approval PDA4 will ensure the requirements of this section are 
met. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 25 of 36 

Page 69 of 301



Section 4.262 Improvements-Requirements 
 

48. This section presents improvement requirements for individual improvements and 
utilities including curbs, sidewalks, sewer, and water. Engineering Conditions will ensure 
the requirements of this section are met. 

 
Section 4.264 Improvements - Assurance 

 
49. This section requires assurance for improvements. An engineering condition of approval 

will ensure the requirements of this section are met. 
 

Section 4.320 Underground Utility Requirements 
 

50. This section requires all utilities to be underground. Condition of Approval PDA5 will 
ensure any utilities are installed underground. 

 
 
ACTION TAKEN AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR REQUEST AR14-0077: 
Based on the analysis above, and conclusionary findings 1 through 50 the request is hereby 
approved, together with the following conditions of approval: 

This decision approves only the tentative partition described in the request above, as modified by 
the conditions below, and is on file with the City of Wilsonville’s Planning Division as Case File 
AR14-0077.  

Planning Conditions: 

PDA1. Approval of the partition is effective for two (2) years from the date of the notice 
of decision. Time extensions may be granted per Section 4.023 of the City’s 
Development Code. The Applicant shall submit final plat application within two 
(2) years of date of the notice of decision. 

PDA2.  The final plat for the land partition shall be in substantial compliance with the 
approved tentative plat and narrative submitted to the Planning Division as part 
of this application. 

PDA3. The Applicant/Owner shall provide the City’s Engineering and Planning Division 
with a copy of the final plat of the land partition recorded with the Clackamas 
County Surveyor’s Office. 

PDA4. Any improvements installed shall conform to the City’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards. 

PDA5. Any utilities installed as part of development on the property shall be installed 
underground. 

PDA6.  A Reduced Setback Agreement shall be recorded concurrently with the final plat.  

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 26 of 36 

Page 70 of 301



PDA7.  The final plat shall not display the ten-foot No Construction Easement, nor shall 
the proposed building outline for the southern parcel of the partition. 

 

Engineering Division Conditions: 

New development on the two lots shall be in compliance with the following Engineering 
conditions of approval. 

Standard Comments: 

PFA 1. All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to 
the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards - 2014. 

PFA 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 
following amounts: 
 
General Aggregate                                                                        $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate                                 $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                                                                           $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                                                   $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)                                                           $50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)                                               $10,000 

PFA 3. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained 
and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFA 4. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22” x 
34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public 
Work’s Standards. 

PFA 5. Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

l. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not contained 
within a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access acceptable to the 
City. The public utility improvements shall be centered in a minimum 15-ft. wide 
public easement for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft. wide public easement for 
two parallel utilities and shall be conveyed to the City on its dedication forms. 

m. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the 
issuance of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to review 
and approval by the City Building Department. 

n. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed new 
private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public improvements 
shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 27 of 36 

Page 71 of 301



o. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 
Datum.   

p. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply with the 
State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any other applicable 
codes. 

q. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private utility 
within the general construction area. 

r. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, fiber-
optic and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  Existing 
overhead utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably possible. 

s. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or existing 
driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

t. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
u. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be identified. 
v. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in the 

State of Oregon.  
PFA 6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works 

construction to be maintained by the City: 
 

t. Cover sheet 
u. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
v. General construction note sheet 
w. Existing conditions plan. 
x. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
y. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, sidewalk 

improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements (existing/proposed), and 
sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

z. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
aa. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm and 

sanitary manholes. 
bb. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all utility 

crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at crossings; 
vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

cc. Street plans. 
dd. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and cleanouts 

for easier reference 
ee. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts for 

easier reference. 
ff. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), 

including water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide detail of 
inlet structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain inlets, structures, 
and piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm water detention facilities are 
typically privately maintained they will be inspected by engineering, and the plans 
must be part of the Public Works Permit set. 
 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 28 of 36 

Page 72 of 301



gg. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that 
although storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they will be 
inspected by Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public Works 
Permit set. 

hh. Composite franchise utility plan. 
ii. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
jj. Illumination plan. 
kk. Striping and signage plan. 
ll. Landscape plan.  

PFA 7. Design engineer shall coordinate with the City in numbering the sanitary and 
stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and 
sanitary manhole testing will refer to City’s numbering system. 

PFA 8. The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in 
conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 
482 during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements 
until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed. 

PFA 9. Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil 
on the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall 
obtain a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 
to less than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of 
Wilsonville is required. 

PFA 10. The applicant shall be in conformance with all stormwater and flow control 
requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards. 

PFA 11. A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City. 

PFA 12. The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality 
system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a 
letter from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per 
specifications and is functioning as designed. 

PFA 13. Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some 
other erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior 
to streets and/or alleys being paved. 

PFA 14. The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department and inform them 
of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any existing well shall be limited to 
irrigation purposes only.  Proper separation, in conformance with applicable State 
standards, shall be maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems.  Should the project abandon any existing wells, they shall be 
properly abandoned in conformance with State standards. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 29 of 36 

Page 73 of 301



PFA 15. All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within 
the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be 
adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a 
registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument 
to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State 
law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFA 16. Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFA 17. No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 

PFA 18. The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each 
connection point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 

PFA 19. The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by 
driveway placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and 
approved by the City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with 
driveways on the opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFA 20. Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's 
Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping 
plantings shall be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street 
intersections and alley/street intersections. 

PFA 21. The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm 
system to be privately maintained.  Stormwater or rainwater LID facilities may be 
located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  Applicant 
shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water 
facilities; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it 
is formed. 

PFA 22. Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to 
all public right-of-ways. 

PFA 23. For any new public easements created with the project the Applicant shall be required 
to produce the specific survey exhibits establishing the easement and shall provide the 
City with the appropriate  Easement document (on City approved forms). 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 30 of 36 

Page 74 of 301



PFA 24. MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before 
a 'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said 
survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as 
the physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, 
originally approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record 
survey as a guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans 
and/or specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall 
consist of drawings on 3 mil. Mylar and an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current 
version, and a digitally signed PDF. 

PFA 25. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
Paper copies of all proposed subdivision/partition plats shall be provided to the City 
for review.  Once the subdivision/partition plat is approved, applicant shall have the 
documents recorded at the appropriate County office.  Once recording is completed by 
the County, the applicant shall be required to provide the City with a 3 mil Mylar copy 
of the recorded subdivision/partition plat. 

PFA 26. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
All newly created easements shown on a subdivision or partition plat shall also be 
accompanied by the City’s appropriate Easement document (on City approved forms) 
with accompanying survey exhibits that shall be recorded immediately after the 
subdivision or partition plat. 

Specific Comments: 
PFA27. The City has estimated the costs to reconstruct Canyon Creek Road South to meet the 

requirements of the Residential Street at $1,135,099.88. The estimated costs of street 
improvements shall be divided proportionately between all owners of record based on 
property street frontage along Canyon Creek Road South; this breaks down to $232.82 per 
foot of property frontage.  

                                                                     
 PFA28.    Each lot shall be allowed one driveway access onto Canyon Creek Road South. 

PFA29.  Applicant shall obtain water and sanitary sewer service from the existing systems in 
Canyon Creek Road South.  

PFA30. If stormwater detention and/or water quality facilities are designed for joint usage 
between the tax lots, maintenance plans or the system(s) shall be required and approved 
prior to acceptance. The applicant shall be required to establish a homeowners association 
with responsibility to maintain the private stormwater detention and/or water quality. 

  
 

Natural Resources Conditions: 

The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 31 of 36 

Page 75 of 301



subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 

Stormwater Management 

NRA 1. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, stormwater facilities are required when 
proposed development establishes or increases the impervious surface area by more 
than 5,000 square feet. Development includes new development, redevelopment, 
and/or partial redevelopment. 

NRA 2. Submit a drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
the proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the requirements of the Public Works 
Standards.  

NRA 3. Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for the proposed stormwater facilities 
consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 

NRA 4. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 
plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for the 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NRA 5. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of the 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other 

NRA 6. Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 
an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary: 

i. Gravel construction entrance; 
j. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
k. Sediment fence; 
l. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
m. Dust control;  
n. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
o. Limits of construction; and 
p. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NRA 7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN permit). 

 
  

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 32 of 36 

Page 76 of 301



 
Exhibit A2, DB15-0006  - PROPOSED ADDITIONAL FINDINGS: 
 
Section 4.118(03)C. 9.  A waiver of the right of remonstrance by the applicant to the formation of a 

Local Improvement District (LID) for streets, utilities and/or other public purposes.  
 
51. In tentative partition approval (AR14-0077) waiver of remonstrance was not included as 

a condition of approval. Staff is proposing the above requirement be added as condition 
PDA8.  

 
Section 4.177. Street Improvement Standards.  This section contains the City’s requirements and 

standards for pedestrian, bicycle, and transit facility improvements to public streets, or 
within public easements. The purpose of this section is to ensure that development, 
including redevelopment, provides transportation facilities that are safe, convenient, and 
adequate in rough proportion to their impacts. 

 
52. To satisfy the foregoing PFA27 requires that the applicant/owner construct sidewalk and 

integrated road improvements to front only that land that is the subject of this application 
and not beyond those boundaries.  The City Development Code at this Section sets the 
standards for pedestrian, bicycle and transit facilities for public streets, including curb 
and sidewalk, to ensure that development, including redevelopment, provides safe 
convenient and adequate facilities in rough proportion to their impacts.  As this property 
is now being subdivided into two separate lots with two separate homes, the sidewalk 
/roadway transportation requirements being imposed cover only those properties.  City 
Code requires these improvements to be made at the time of development or 
redevelopment, and this partition constitutes redevelopment, per Code definition. 

 
 Further to this requirement, the City’s Comprehensive Plan sets forth the requirements 

for a connected network of sidewalks and requires, at implementation Measure 3.3.2.d 
that all gaps in the existing sidewalk network be filled so as to create safe and accessible 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  Thus, in accordance with that requirement, as each 
parcel in the City without sidewalks is developed or redeveloped, the placement of the 
sidewalk and related curb, gutter and street improvements to current City standards is 
required to be built by the developer in front of the developer’s property, as a 
proportionate requirement of development.  This requirement has been consistently 
imposed as a developer responsibility as development occurs, thereby resulting in fewer 
gaps in the sidewalk.  Just as the City Code at Section 2.220 requires the property owner 
to be responsible for the sidewalk repairs that front the owner’s property, so does the 
Code require the property owner/developer to install those same sidewalks as a 
proportionate condition of development. 

 
 State and Federal law requires that all Development conform to the requirements of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, thus requiring sidewalks to meet exact construction 
criteria and connectivity requirements as properties are developed or redeveloped.  The 
applicant has one property that is being redeveloped into two (2) home sites and is 
therefore required to bring that property up to current ADA requirements. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 33 of 36 

Page 77 of 301



Section 4.177(.01).  Development and related public facility improvements shall comply with the 
standards in this section, the Wilsonville Public Works Standards, and the Transportation 
System Plan, in rough proportion to the potential impacts of the development. Such 
improvements shall be constructed at the time of development or as provided by 
Section 4.140, except as modified or waived by the City Engineer for reasons of safety or 
traffic operations. 

 
53. See Finding 52. 
 
Section 4.177(.02) Street Design Standards. 
 

A. All street improvements and intersections shall provide for the continuation of 
streets through specific developments to adjoining properties or subdivisions. 
 
1. Development shall be required to provide existing or future connections to adjacent 
sites through the use of access easements where applicable. Such easements shall be 
required in addition to required public street dedications as required in Section 4.236(.04). 

 
54. Canyon Creek Road South fronting the east side of the subject property is a public street. 

It provides direct connections to existing and future to adjacent sites. 
 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be provided on the public street frontage of all 

development. Sidewalks shall generally be constructed within the dedicated public right-of-
way, but may be located outside of the right-of-way within a public easement with the 
approval of the City Engineer. 

 
A. Sidewalk widths shall include a minimum through zone of at least five feet. The 
through zone may be reduced pursuant to variance procedures in Section 4.196, a waiver 
pursuant to Section 4.118, or by authority of the City Engineer for reasons of traffic 
operations, efficiency, or safety. 

 
55. See Finding 52. 
 
Section 4.177(.04) Bicycle Facilities.  Bicycle facilities shall be provided to implement the 

Transportation System Plan, and may include on-street and off-street bike lanes, shared 
lanes, bike boulevards, and cycle tracks. The design of on-street bicycle facilities will vary 
according to the functional classification and the average daily traffic of the facility. 

 
56. Applicant is not required to add Bicycle facilities. 
 
Section 4.236. General Requirements - Streets. 
 

(.01) Conformity to the Transportation System Plan. Land divisions shall conform to and be 
in harmony with the Transportation Systems Plan, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan, 
and the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 
 
(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System. 
A. A land division shall provide for the continuation of the principal streets existing in the 
adjoining area, or of their proper projection when adjoining property is not developed, and 
shall be of a width not less than the minimum requirements for streets set forth in these 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 34 of 36 

Page 78 of 301



regulations. Where, in the opinion of the Planning Director or Development Review Board, 
topographic conditions make such continuation or conformity impractical, an exception 
may be made. In cases where the Board or Planning Commission has adopted a plan or plat 
of a neighborhood or area of which the proposed land division is a part, the subdivision 
shall conform to such adopted neighborhood or area plan. 

 
57. Based on conditions of approval, all of the above applicable conditions will be met. 
 
Section 4.260. Improvements - Procedures. 

In addition to other requirements, improvements installed by the developer, either as a 
requirement of these regulations or at the developer's own option, shall conform to the 
requirements of this Code and improvement standards and specifications of the City. The 
improvements shall be installed in accordance with the City's Public Works Standards. 

 
58. Applicant has the option under PDF 27 of installing or paying the City to perform the 

work. 
 
Section 4.262. Improvements - Requirements. 
 

(.01) Streets. Streets within or partially within the development shall be graded for the 
entire right-of-way width, constructed and surfaced in accordance with the Transportation 
Systems Plan and City Public Works Standards. Existing streets which abut the 
development shall be graded, constructed, reconstructed, surfaced or repaired as 
determined by the City Engineer. 
 

59. Design and construction requirements for all public transportation facilities shall be done 
in conformance with the 2014 Public Works Standards, Section 2, “Transportation 
Design and Construction Standards.”  Specific street design standards are found in 
Section 201.2.00 of the Public Works Standards; detail drawing RD-1015 shows the 
design standards for Residential Streets. 
 
(.02) Curbs. Curbs shall be constructed in accordance with standards adopted by the City. 
 

60. Curb and gutters are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing 
RD-1015.  Specific design standards for curbs are provided in Section 201.2.24 of the 
Public Works Standards. 
 
(.03) Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with standards adopted by 
the City. 
 

61. Sidewalks are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing RD-1015.  
Specific design standards for sidewalks are provided in Section 201.2.25 of the Public 
Works Standards. 
 
(.04) Sanitary sewers. When the development is within two hundred (200) feet of an existing 
public sewer main, sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve each lot or parcel in 
accordance with standards adopted by the City. When the development is more than two 
hundred (200) feet from an existing public sewer main, the City Engineer may approve an 
alternate sewage disposal system. 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 35 of 36 

Page 79 of 301



 
62. An existing sanitary sewer main is located in Canyon Creek Road South.  Applicant is 

required to install a sanitary sewer service line to the new parcel being created with the 
partition.  Specific design standards for sanitary sewer lateral service lines is provided in 
Section 401.2.02.f., Section 401.2.02.g., and Section 401.2.02.i. of the Public Works 
Standards and in detail drawing S-2175. 
 
(.05) Drainage. Storm drainage, including detention or retention systems, shall be provided 
as determined by the City Engineer. 
 

63. Applicant is required to be in conformance with the 2014 Public Works Standards, 
Section 3, “Stormwater & Surface Water Design & Construction Standards” for all 
stormwater, flow control, and water quality facilities installed within the proposed 
development.  Specific design requirements and options are located in numerous 
subsections of Section 3 and also found in several detail drawings. 
 
(.06) Underground utility and service facilities. All new utilities shall be subject to the 
standards of Section 4.300 (Underground Utilities). The developer shall make all necessary 
arrangements with the serving utility to provide the underground services in conformance 
with the City's Public Works Standards. 
 

64. Underground utility and service facilities are required elements of Residential Streets, per 
detail drawing RD-1015 and Section 201.2.31.a. of the Public Works Standards.  
However, with only 150 feet of street improvements, it is not economical to underground 
the existing overhead franchise utilities.  Applicant has been allowed to install three 
conduits, terminating in vaults, for future use when the City moves forward with 
undergrounding these utilities.  Applicant is also required to provide a 6-foot wide public 
utility easement per Section 201.2.31.b. of the Public Works Standards and per detail 
drawing RD-1015. 

 
(.07) Streetlight standards. Streetlight standards shall be installed in accordance with 
regulations adopted by the City. 
 

65. Streetlights are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing RD-1015.  
Specific design standards for streetlights are provided in Section 201.9.00 of the Public 
Works Standards.  With existing overhead utility lines, installation of a street light is not 
possible.  Applicant has been required to provide the City with a cash deposit for cost to 
purchase and install a new streetlight equivalent to streetlights recently installed within 
nearby development. 
 
(.10) Water. Water mains and fire hydrants shall be installed to serve each lot in accordance 
with City standards. 
 

66. Water mains and fire hydrants were installed on Canyon Creek Road South in 2005 and 
no additional requirements were placed on the Applicant. 

 

Amended & Adopted Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006 February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 36 of 36 

Page 80 of 301



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Development Review Board Members, Panel B 
 
FROM: Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney 
 
DATE:  February 20, 2015 
 
RE: Application No. DB14-0077 and DB15-0006 
 Gerald and Joanne Downs, Applicant 
 Ronald Downs, Applicant Representative 

Response to Appeal Letter 
 
              
 
 
The following is the City’s legal response to the Appeal Letter submitted by the Applicant’s 
Representative, Ron Downs.  Please take note that the DRB is not bound to take this legal advice if 
it believes it to be incorrect, just as the DRB is not bound to accept the findings and conclusions of 
the staff report.  Any DRB decision may be appealed to the City Council and any City Council 
decision may be appealed to the Land Use Board of Appeals, and thereafter through the Oregon 
court system. 
 
Summary of the Issue: 
 
The Applicant is appealing Condition PFA 27, which requires certain street improvements, 
including sidewalk, curb, and gutters (meeting current City requirements for residential street 
construction), to be placed across the frontage of Applicant’s parcel as a condition for the partition 
of that parcel into two separate lots.  This partition is requested to allow the Applicant to cause a 
second home to be built on the property.  The Applicant contends that this requirement, as written, 
is overbroad and should be reduced to only require street frontage improvements across the front of 
the parcel where the new home will be located and that no frontage improvements should be 
required across the other half of the parcel, where an existing  home is located.  The Applicant 
states that his argument is based on the nexus and on the proportionality standards set forth in the 
United States Supreme Court cases of  Dolan v. City of Tigard, 512 US 374 (1994). 
 
Argument: 
 
Since 1994, many land use decisions have been challenged based on the foregoing standards.  In the 
more recent case of Brown v. City of Medford, 251 Or.App. 42, 283 P.3rd 367 (2012), the Oregon 
Court of Appeals succinctly summarized two relevant constitutional requirements that are derived 
from two Supreme Court cases, Nollan v. California Coastal Comm’n, 483 U.S. 825, 831-832, 107 
S.Ct. 3141, 97 L.Ed.2nd 677 (1987), and Dolan v. City of Tigard, 512 U.S. 374, 384, 114 S.Ct. 2309, 
129 L.Ed.2nd 304 (1994).  The Court held that, together, these cases establish a two-part test for 

Page 81 of 301

swhite
Stamp



  Page 2 

assessing the constitutionality of a government exaction of a dedication of private property:  “First, 
the exaction must substantially advance the same government interest that would furnish a valid 
ground for denial of the development permit—also known as the ‘essential nexus’ prong of the test.  
Nollan, 483 US at 836-37.  Second, the nature and extent of the exaction must be ‘roughly 
proportional’ to the effect of the proposed development.  Dolan, 512 US at 385.”  It is the City’s 
position that if a court were to find these standards applicable to the case at hand, as discussed in 
more detail below, the City requirements would satisfy both tests, for all of the reasons set forth in 
the staff report and in this memo, below. 
 
In support of the Applicant’s argument that Wilsonville’s requirement to build a sidewalk, with 
required attendant curb and gutter, across the entire parcel does not pass these tests, the Applicant 
cites to the case of Schultz v. Grants Pass, 131 Or.App. 220 (1994).  After careful review of that 
case and others, the City finds the facts in the Schultz case inapposite to those in the case at hand 
and easily distinguishable. 
 
In the Schultz case, the owner wished to divide his property into two lots but presented no plans for 
development beyond the two lot partition.  In response to that application, the City of Grants Pass 
assumed that in the future his two lots might become 20 lots, despite the fact no approval was 
requested or given for 20 lots.  Based on that extraordinary assumption, Grants Pass imposed 
extensive land dedication requirements in order to widen two adjoining streets that it felt would be 
needed to accommodate 20 additional families at some point in the future.  In the case at hand, no 
street dedication is being required.  No assumption of any further land division is being made by the 
City of Wilsonville.  The requirement being imposed by Wilsonville is simply that street frontage 
improvements be placed in front of the full length of the partitioned property only, which 
improvements will directly serve those two partitioned lots. 
 
Contrary to the finding in Schultz, in Hallmark Inns & Resort, Inc. v. City of Lake Oswego, 193 Or. 
24, 88 P.3rd 284 (2004), the Court of Appeals upheld the City of Lake Oswego’s imposition of a 
public path requirement through the Hallmark property as a condition of development, finding that 
“rough proportionality” is not restricted to considering the impacts of a single use of the site when 
the development application, as approved, allows a range of uses reasonably generating a variety of 
impacts.  Thus, the Court of Appeals held for Lake Oswego, finding that the City Council’s report 
on Hallmark’s application cogently explained that principal as follows:  “[T]he pedestrian patterns 
are ‘people-dependent’ and will naturally change as the specific individuals change.  For example, 
when a new residence is constructed, a sidewalk is required because the occupants statistically will 
utilize the sidewalk system at some time in the future.  Although a homebound first owner of a 
residence will not use the pedestrian system in the neighborhood, when the residence is sold to a 
couple with 4 young children, they will extensively utilize the pedestrian system.  Exaction of a 
sidewalk is not something that is temporal—imposed when one person moves in, removed when 
they move out.  It is based on the expectation that over the life of the residence, occupants will 
statistically utilize the pedestrian system….” Id at 38. 
 
The Court of Appeals, in upholding Lake Oswego’s challenged conditions of development in 
Hallmark, distinguished the Schultz case from the Hallmark case as follows:  “… the local 
government required roadway dedications as conditions of approving a partition application.  The 
local government’s justification for imposing that exaction was that the property in question might, 
upon further and future applications, be subdivided and that, in turn, might result in up to 20 homes 
being built on the site.  Thus, the justification for the roadway dedications conditions was that those 

Page 82 of 301



  Page 3 

conditions would mitigate transportation impacts that could be generated if, at some point in the 
future, these sites were developed in a manner that was not yet permitted.  Applying Dolan, we 
rejected that rationale.”  “[T]he city’s justification for the conditions is, in the words of the city’s 
own supplemental findings, the impact of ‘potential development of the partitioned tract.’  In other 
words, the city imagined a worst case scenario—assuming that petitioners would, at some undefined 
point in the future, attempt to develop their land to its full development potential of as many as 20 
subdivided residential lots, further assuming that petitioners would obtain all the necessary permits 
and approvals—and on the basis of that scenario, it calculated the impacts of the development and 
tailored conditions to address them.”  Id at 38.  As in Hallmark, and unlike Schultz, the Wilsonville 
condition of development is based on a reasonable assumption that contemplates nothing more than 
the basic division of the property into two home sites.  The requirement imposed by Wilsonville is 
for a sidewalk that will serve the property whose occupants, over the life of each residence, will 
statistically utilize the pedestrian system, as stated by the Court of Appeals in the Hallmark case.  
Id. at 38. 
 
In the Shultz case, cited by the Applicant, the Court, in paraphrasing the Supreme Court decision in 
Dolan, held that when a condition is based on city ordinances that are functionally the equivalent of 
a legislative decision, or quasi legislative enactment, that is applied generally to all similarly 
situated property, the Dolan test will not apply.  Schultz v. Grants Pass, 131 Or.App. 220, 227 
(1994).   In this case, the Wilsonville ordinances impose a standard requirement on all development 
in the City that requires sidewalks, curb, and gutter to be placed in front of the developed property.  
The City Comprehensive Plan, which is the governing law for land use in the City, provides at 
Policy 3.3.2 that the City shall work to improve accessibility for all citizens to all modes of 
transportation, and at Implementation Measure 3.3.2.d requires that gaps in existing sidewalks be 
filled to create a safe and continuous network of safe and accessible bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities.  It is the standard and consistent requirement of the City to require street frontage 
improvements, including the placement of sidewalks, curb, and gutter with every new development.  
This requirement is not in any way unique to the Appellant’s property, nor is it based on any 
development assumptions.  Thus, it is the City’s position that the Dolan “rough proportionality 
standard” actually does not apply here due to the legislative or quasi legislative nature of this 
decision. 
 
The Applicant further appears to argue that merely partitioning the property into two lots should not 
trigger development conditions.  The City disagrees.  “Development” is broadly defined in the 
City’s Code as “Any human-caused change to improved or unimproved real estate.”  “Partition 
land” is defined as the act of dividing an area or tract of land into two or more parcels.  Thus, this 
partition, by its very nature of dividing one property into two, is a human caused change to the 
improved real estate in this case.  Furthermore, the partition will necessarily trigger the requirement 
to provide additional City services to the newly created lot, thereby causing actual physical changes 
to the land. 
 
The Wilsonville City Code, at 4.177(3), expressly requires that sidewalks shall be provided on the 
public street frontage of all development.  In his letter, the Applicant sites to one example where 
street improvements were not required along the frontage of an existing house.  This is really not an 
accurate statement.  Street improvements were required along the front of the house but was 
allowed to stop short, as it turned around the corner and ended.  Allowing the sidewalk to end was 
an error on the part of the City that has not been made since.  In fact, that same property owner, 
Mr. Knorr, purchased property one lot to the north of the Applicant’s land, which he recently 

Page 83 of 301



  Page 4 

divided into three parcels.  As a condition of that partition, Mr. Knorr was required to pay the City 
for future street improvements, including installation of a sidewalk, curb, gutter, and half-street 
asphalt grind and overlay across all three newly created parcels.  The only difference between this 
situation and the Knorr development is that the City has offered the Applicant the opportunity to 
install the street improvements himself instead of being required to deposit 130% of the estimated 
cost with the City and wait for the City to build the improvements.  Mr. Knorr was not offered that 
option.  In a second recent partition on Canyon Creek Road South, Ms. Dorothy Bernard was 
provided an option to either deposit funds with the City for future street improvements along her 
two-lot partition or cause the improvements to be done.  She chose the latter option and installed 
sidewalk, curb, gutter, and curb inlet, extended the public storm system 125 feet, and added a storm 
manhole and half-street asphalt grind and overlay.  It should be noted that, as a concession already 
made by engineering staff, the Applicant is not being required to do a grind and overlay of the road, 
nor is the Applicant being required to perform any stormwater work.  In other words, the minimum 
requirements were imposed on this Applicant. 
 
Returning to Applicant’s position that the City must meet the Dolan test, assuming arguendo that 
the Dolan rough proportionality test and the Nollan nexus test actually apply here, both tests are met 
by the City for all of the reasons stated above and in the staff report.  The City is requiring that the 
Applicant build or pay for street frontage improvements, including a sidewalk, curb, and gutter 
across the front of Applicant’s own property only.  There is no requirement to expand the sidewalk 
beyond his boundaries or to dedicate land for a road widening to accommodate future development, 
as in the Schultz case.  The primary beneficiary of the sidewalk will be the occupants and future 
occupants of Applicant’s property, although the public will also benefit, as is required by City 
Code.  The Applicant’s argument that the sidewalk should only be required in front of half of his 
property is contrary to the requirements of the Comprehensive Plan, the City Code, the City 
Transportation Plan, the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements, and sidewalk requirements 
consistently imposed throughout the City to create accessible connected pathways for all residents.  
Just as all residents are responsible for maintaining the sidewalks in front of their homes under the 
City Code, a person wishing to develop property is responsible for installing the sidewalk for the 
benefit of those who will occupy that property now and in the future. 
 
As the Applicant states in his letter, in the future, the Applicant may ask to further divide this 
property into even more lots.  Unlike the City of Grants Pass in Schultz, however, Wilsonville is not 
making assumptions concerning what that maximum future development might be and is therefore 
only imposing conditions that have a direct nexus to and are roughly proportionate to the current 
division of one lot into two. 
 
For all of the foregoing reasons, Condition PFA 27 is a reasonable condition with a nexus to the 
partition that is roughly proportional to the development that will take place. 
 
cc: Gerald and Joanne Downs, Applicant 
 Ron Downs, Applicant Representative 
 Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning 
 Steve Adams, Development Engineering Manager 
 Nancy Kraushaar, City Engineer/Community Development Director 
 Mike Kohlhoff, City Attorney 
 

l:\drb-pc\downs appeal\mx drb response to appeal ltr~downs 

Page 84 of 301



RONALD DOWNS P.C. 
Trial Attorney  

 
    Telephone (503) 375-8898 
P.O. Box 12613               Fax (503) 371-4781 
Salem, Oregon 97309-0613    E-Mail rdowns@sdao.com 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

APPEAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 4.022 
 
February 13, 2015 
 
City of Wilsonville Planning Department 
Attn: Nancy Kraushaar & Barbara Jacobsen 
29799 SW Town Center Loop E 
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 
 

Application Number:  AR14-0077 
 

Project Name:  Tentative Partition Plat 
 

Property Owners: Gerald and Joanne Downs 
 

Applicant’s Rep: Ronald W. Downs 
 

Property Description: Legal Tax Lot 2700 in Section 13BA; T3S R1W; 
Clackamas County, Oregon  

 
Dear Ms. Kraushaar & Ms. Jacobsen: 
 
As we prepare for the upcoming hearing, I wanted to share my analysis of the law as it 
relates to PFA 27, and the connection between the requirement and actual impact of the 
proposed development.   
 
The issue before the Design Review Board is PFA 27 and the Cities condition that we 
provide improvements for the entire 150’ of frontage and not just the 60’ of frontage that 
will make up the new parcel. For the reasons set forth, this position is overbroad and fails 
to meet the tests for imposing such conditions on a property owner.     
 
As you know, Dolan v. City of Tigard, 512 US 374 (1974) established that a jurisdiction 
must meet two tests before imposing a condition requiring dedication and/or 
improvements related to a development application: 
 

1. Nexus; There must be a clear and direct connection or relationship between 
the requirement and the actual impact of the proposed development; and 
 

2. Proportionality; The requirement (both in cost and scope) must be roughly 
proportional to the actual impact of the development.  

 

Page 85 of 301

mailto:rdowns@sdao.com
swhite
Stamp



In determining the degree of proportionality, the Supreme Court has held “the required 
dedication [must be] related both in nature and extent to the impact of the proposed 
development.” Id. 
 
In Schultz v. City of Grants Pass, 131 Or. App. 220 (1994), the Oregon Court of Appeals 
applied this analysis in a case of a land owner partitioning a 3.85 acre lot into two 
parcels. In this case, the City approved the petition subject to a number of conditions 
affecting both parcels. Concluding that the City was unable to meet the test of “rough 
proportionality,” the Court of Appeals noted “the proposed development in this case is 
the partitioning of a single lot into two lots and nothing more.” “There is absolutely 
nothing in the record to connect the dedication of a substantial portion of petitioners’ 
land, for the purpose of widening city streets, with petitioners’ limited application.” Id  
 
Essentially, the Court of Appeals in Schultz, held there was no relationship between the 
conditions the city imposed and the impact of the land owners’ proposed development. 
The Courts reasoning in Dolan and Schultz are applicable to the Downs petition before 
the Development Review Board.    
 
In this case, the partition creates one new lot, and leaves a remaining lot with an existing 
home that has been there since the 1960’s. Therefore, the impact is limited to one new lot 
and nothing more. The impact from the older lot and home already existed prior to the 
petition.  
 
In addition, the older lot is 12,150 square feet and can be further divided under the PDR-3 
zoning. This results in future development potential with no immediate new impacts. Any 
future potential for development of this older lot still leaves the City with the opportunity 
to impose conditions on any such land division, at the appropriate time for development.  
 
One final thought relates to the City applying the standards to the property owners along 
Canyon Creek South in a consistent and fair manner. During the course of the 
Renaissance at Canyon Creek (North Plat), it is apparent that the Knor property and 
existing house to the south, (Lot 6, existing house and Lot 7, new lot) was allowed to be 
partitioned with no improvements required along the frontage of the existing house. If so, 
then I respectfully submit that PFA-27 imposes conditions that are inconsistent with prior 
partitions. Such an inconsistent application negates any governmental interest advanced 
by the dedication.  
 
Applying the Court’s analysis, it is our position that PFA 27 is overbroad and not in 
compliance with the test set-out for such conditions.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Ronald W. Downs 
 
Ronald W. Downs  
CC: Gerald and Joanne Downs 

Page 86 of 301



Page 87 of 301

swhite
Stamp



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
1 

Page 88 of 301



Page 89 of 301



Page 90 of 301



Page 91 of 301



Page 92 of 301



Page 93 of 301



Page 94 of 301



Page 95 of 301



Page 96 of 301



Page 97 of 301



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2 

Page 98 of 301



Page 99 of 301



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
3 

Page 100 of 301



Page 101 of 301



Page 102 of 301



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
4 

Page 103 of 301



Page 104 of 301



Page 105 of 301



Page 106 of 301



Page 107 of 301

swhite
Stamp



Page 108 of 301



Page 109 of 301



Page 110 of 301



Page 111 of 301



Page 112 of 301



Page 113 of 301



Page 114 of 301



Page 115 of 301



Page 116 of 301



Page 117 of 301



Page 118 of 301



Page 119 of 301



Page 120 of 301



Page 121 of 301



Page 122 of 301



Page 123 of 301

swhite
Stamp



Page 124 of 301



Page 125 of 301



Page 126 of 301



Page 127 of 301



Page 128 of 301



Page 129 of 301



Page 130 of 301



Page 131 of 301



Page 132 of 301



Page 133 of 301



Page 134 of 301



Page 135 of 301



Page 136 of 301



Page 137 of 301



Page 138 of 301



Page 139 of 301



Page 140 of 301



Page 141 of 301



Page 142 of 301



Page 143 of 301



Page 144 of 301

swhite
Stamp



Page 145 of 301



Page 146 of 301



Page 147 of 301



Page 148 of 301



Page 149 of 301



Page 150 of 301



Page 151 of 301



Page 152 of 301



Page 153 of 301

swhite
Stamp



Page 154 of 301



Page 155 of 301



Page 156 of 301



Page 157 of 301



Page 158 of 301



Page 159 of 301



Page 160 of 301



Page 161 of 301



Page 162 of 301



Page 163 of 301



Page 164 of 301

swhite
Stamp



Page 165 of 301



Page 166 of 301



Page 167 of 301



Page 168 of 301



From: Wayne Kirk [mailto:summerton97070@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, February 23, 2015 7:52 AM
To: Scola, Jennifer
Subject: Case file AR14-0077

Dear Development Review Board

We had seen the stand up sign in front of 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road and thought it meant
 development in the empty lot.Then one of our neighbors called the city and was told it had to
 do with appealing street improvements for that address.We still don’t know the entire scope
 of what that means, but we are concerned.
 Many of us walk down the street with our children, our friends and other families. Currently
 we often have to walk in the street as there are no sidewalks in many spots. We have been
 looking forward to more sidewalks as the neighborhood has been changing.
If this is an action to avoid installing a sidewalk when other improvements are made, please do
 not allow that to happen.
 Please help Wilsonville be a city that encourages walking, not one that discourages it.
Thank you; concerned neighbors

Page 169 of 301

mailto:/O=CIY OF WILSONVILLE/OU=CITY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=EDMONDS
mailto:swhite@ci.wilsonville.or.us
mailto:scola@ci.wilsonville.or.us
mailto:edmonds@ci.wilsonville.or.us
mailto:summerton97070@yahoo.com
swhite
Stamp



 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2015 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

VII. Public Hearing:   
A. Resolution 299.   Downs Appeal: Gerald and 

Joanne Downs – owners.  The applicant is 
appealing the Staff Decision of a two parcel land 
partition approval in Case File AR14-0077.  The 
property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek 
Road South on Tax Lot 2700, Section 13BA, T3S-
R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon.  Staff:  Blaise 
Edmonds 

 
Case Files: DB15-0006 – Appeal 

  

Page 170 of 301



 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Development Review Board Members 
 
FROM: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning 
  Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2015 
 
RE Director’s Decisions/Applicant Appeal 
 Applicant/Owner: Gerald and Joanne Downs; Ron Downs, Applicant/Owner 

Representative 
 
              
 
 
 
On February 23, 2015, you will be hearing an appeal of City staff’s Class 2 Administrative 
Decision involving the partition of a parcel into two parcels for the purpose of constructing a 
second home on the parcel. 
 
In accordance with the City’s Code, although the applicant may only be challenging portions of 
the decision,  this DRB public hearing is de novo, meaning the DRB may consider all aspects of 
staff’s decision and, likewise, may take additional testimony or input from staff, the applicant, 
and any other member of the public wishing to offer testimony. 
 
In reviewing the applicant’s concerns, staff has made some revisions to the staff report in an 
attempt to give the applicant other options, as well as a better explanation of why certain 
conditions of approval are required by City Code.  Certain conditions were also clarified, 
modified, or added by staff for this de novo review.  To make it easy for the Applicant and the 
DRB panel to see the change between the original staff decision, which the applicant has 
appealed, and this revised staff report with recommendation for DRB approval, changes made to 
the original staff decision issued to the Applicant are shown in redline.  A clean copy of the 
Revised staff report is also enclosed. 
 
Staff is recommending to the DRB that the revised staff report be adopted, the appeal denied, but 
the application be allowed to move forward subject to the conditions imposed by the revised staff 
report. 
 
Finally, we have enclosed a draft Resolution that can be used if DRB affirms the Director’s 
decision and accepts the revised staff report, thereby denying the appeal.  If, however, the DRB 
wishes to grant the appeal and thus require revisions to the staff report and conditions of 

Page 171 of 301

swhite
Stamp



  Page 2 

approval, new findings and conclusions will need to be prepared and the matter continued to 
allow for presentation of those revised findings and conclusions. 
 
If any DRB member has procedural questions regarding this appeal, please feel free to contact 
Barbara Jacobson. 
 
cc: Gerald and Joanne Downs, Applicant 
 Ron Downs, Applicant Representative 
 

Page 172 of 301



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Redlined Staff Report 
for DRB Review 

Page 173 of 301



Exhibit A2 
 

REVISED STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

Appeal Class II Administrative Review Decision 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘B’ 
QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
HEARING DATES:  February 23, 2015 
 
DATE OF REPORT:  February 12, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
APPLICATION NOS.:  DB14-0077 and DB15-0006  
 
APPLICANT/OWNERS: Gerald and Joanne Downs (collectively “Applicant”) 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER  
REPRESENTATIVE: Ronald Downs 
 
REQUEST: Appeal AR14-0077 (Class II Tentative Land Partition) and 

including Condition of Approval PFA27   
 
LOCATION: The subject property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road 

South, on the west side of SW Canyon Creek Road South.  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tax Lot 2700 of Section 13BA, T3S, R1W, Willamette Meridian, 

Clackamas County, Wilsonville, Oregon.   
 
LAND USE  
DESIGNATION: Comprehensive Plan Map Designation: Residential – 4 to 5 

dwelling units an acre. 
  
ZONING  
DESIGNATION: Residential Agricultural - Holding (RA-H) 
 
STAFF REVIEWERS: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning; Jennifer Scola, 

Assistant Planner, Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney and 
Steve Adams, Development Engineering Manager.  

 
 
 
 
 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 1 of 36 

Page 174 of 301



 
 
Applicable Review Criteria: Planning and Land Development Ordinance:  
 
Sections 4.008 - 4.015 Administration Sections 
Section 4.022(.01) Administrative Action Appeal 
Section 4.022(.04) Appeal Notice 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review 
Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review 
Sections 4.030(.01)(B)(5); 4.034(.05); 4.035; 
4.035(.03) 

Class II AR  

Section 4.202 Land Divisions General 
Section 4.210 Application Procedure 
Section 4.120 Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
Section 4.031 Authority of the DRB  
Section 4.113 Standards to all Residential Zones 
Section 4.118(.03)C.9 Waiver of Right of Remonstrance 
Section 4.167 Access 
Section 4.177(.01) and  (.02) Street Improvement Standards 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks 
Section 4.236(.01) Conformity to the Transportation Systems Plan 
Section 4.236(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System 
Section 4.237 Land Divisions General Requirements 
Section 4.260(.02) Improvement Procedures 
Sections  4.262 (.01 through .10) Improvement Requirements  
Sections 4.300-4.320 Underground Utilities 
 
Other: Administrative Decision AR14-0077 
Comprehensive Plan: Plan Policy 3.3.2, Implementation Measures 3.3.2c and 3.3.2d.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Option 2, which consists of this revised staff report, 
as outlined in the ‘Summary’ statement of this revised staff report (Exhibit A2) below, with 
proposed revised findings and conditions of approval in case file DB15-0006 (Exhibit A2). 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 2 of 36 

Page 175 of 301



VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The applicant is appealing the staff decision for a Class II administrative approval of a two (2) 
parcel land partition in case file AR14-0077.  Section 4.022(.05)WC Scope of Review requires 
“that the standard on an appeal or call up of a staff decision to be heard by the Development 
Review Board is de novo.”  De novo is a Latin expression meaning "from the beginning," 
"afresh," "anew," "beginning again.”  Although the applicant may want to contest only certain 
portions of the staff decision, the entire Class II administrative approval record will be open for 
public testimony and admission of new evidence. 
 
The applicant is objecting to certain sidewalk, street and utility improvements required by City 
engineering condition PFA27.  See Exhibit B9 for the applicant’s detailed objection.  The 
applicant, by and through the Applicant Representative (Ron Downs), is seeking to partition their 
land into two parcels so that one may be deeded to Ron Downs for construction of a new home.  
The applicant, however, only wants to make the required improvements in front of that newly 
created lot and not in front of the other lot that is a part of the application and partition; in other 
words, the applicant is seeking to divide their property into two lots but to only provide street 
and sidewalks for the portion located in front of the newly created lot and not the remainder of 
the partitioned property.  It is City staff’s opinion that, by virtue of the partition, as the City’s 
definition as “Development” as set forth in City Code, the entire property is being redeveloped 
and, thus, the City conditions for redevelopment apply across the entire parcel and, therefore, 
sidewalk, curb, and gutter must be provided to front the entire parcel.  Authority for this position 
is found under the City’s Comprehensive Plan Section 3.3.2; Implementation Measure 3.3.2.c.; 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 3 of 36 

Page 176 of 301



Implementation Measure 3.3.2.d; and the City’s Development Code Section 4.236.  
Development is defined in Code Section 4.001, subsection 79. 
 
Based on the foregoing, the Development Review Board has three options to consider at the 
upcoming DRB hearing: 
 
Option 1:  Approve the original staff report, findings of fact, conclusionary findings and 
conditions of approval in case file AR14-0077 (Exhibit A1).  This action would deny the appeal.  
The applicant would then be free to either abandon the application, comply with the required 
conditions, or appeal  the DRB decision to City Council. 
 
Option 2:  Approve the proposed revised staff report, findings of fact, conclusionary findings 
and conditions of approval in case file DB15-0006 (Exhibit A2).  The proposed changes are 
being recommended by staff to give more clarity to the DRB and to the applicant, as well as to 
give the applicant some alternatives options with respect to implementation of the challenged 
condition.  The applicant would then be free to abandon the application, comply with the 
required revised or original conditions, or appeal the DRB decision to City Council.  These 
proposed revisions are highlighted in the revised staff report to show all as additions and strike-
outs to the original staff report for DRB and applicant ease of reference. 
 
Option 3:  The DRB could reject portions of the recommended revised staff report by modifying 
conditions, applying new conditions, or removing conditions, should the DRB find that the 
applicant has sustained the burden of proving that the staff conditions are incorrect or not 
proportionate and therefore not legally permissible. 
 
 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 4 of 36 

Page 177 of 301



EXHIBITS (AR14-0077):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the Class 2 Administrative Review 
of Tentative Land Partition Aapplication in AR14-0077.  
 
A1. Original Staff Report (this document) 
B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
B5. Vicinity Map 
B6. Tax Lot Information  
B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
 
C1. Tax Map 
C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB D3 
C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 
 
EXHIBITS (DB15-0006):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the appeal to the DRB in appeal 
application DB15-0006 as submitted. 
 
Staff Report:  
A2. Revised Staff Report (this one), including Proposed rRevised Findings of Fact, Conditions of 
Approval and Conclusionary Findings.  (Changes to the original are shown in redline for DRB 
and applicant ease of review.). 
A3. PowerPoint presentation. 
   
Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials: (Distributed Separately) 
B9. Letter of appeal ___, dated     , 2015. 
 
Development Review Team: None submitted 
  
D1. General Correspondence: 
D1. Letters (neither For nor Against): None submitted 
D2. Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
D3. Letters (Opposed): None submitted 
  

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 5 of 36 

Page 178 of 301



 
 
DB15-0006 - PROPOSED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
PD = Planning Division Conditions 
PF = City Engineering Division Conditions 
 
Bold/Italic = New words 

Planning Conditions: 

PDA1. Approval of the partition is effective for two (2) years from the date of the notice 
of decision. Time extensions may be granted per Section 4.023 of the City’s 
Development Code. The Applicant/Owner shall submit final plat application 
within two (2) years of date of the notice of decision. 

PDA2.  The final plat for the land partition shall be in substantial compliance with the 
approved tentative plat and narrative submitted to the Planning Division as part 
of this application. 

PDA3. The Applicant/Owner shall provide the City’s Engineering and Planning Division 
with a copy of the final plat of the land partition recorded with the Clackamas 
County Surveyor’s Office. 

PDA4. Any improvements installed shall conform to the City’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards. 

PDA5. Any utilities installed as part of development on the property shall be installed 
underground. 

PDA6.  A Reduced Setback Agreement shall be recorded concurrently with the final plat.  

PDA7.  The final plat shall not display the ten-foot No Construction Easement, nor shall 
the proposed building outline for the southern parcel of the partition. 

PDA8. Applicant/Owner shall waive the right of remonstrance against any local 
improvement district that may be formed to provide public improvements to 
serve the subject site.  Before the start of construction, a waiver of right to 
remonstrance shall be submitted to the City Attorney for review. See Finding 51. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 6 of 36 

Page 179 of 301



Engineering Division Conditions: 

New development on the two lots shall be in compliance with the following Engineering conditions 
of approval. 

Standard Comments: 

PFA1.       All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to 
the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards - 2014. 

PFA2.       Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 
following amounts: 

General Aggregate                                                                        $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate                                 $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                                                                           $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                                                   $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)                                                           $50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)                                               $10,000 

PFA3.       No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained 
and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFA4.        All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22” x 
34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public 
Work’s Standards. 

PFA5.       Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

a. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not contained within 
a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access acceptable to the City. The 
public utility improvements shall be centered in a minimum 15-ft. wide public easement 
for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft. wide public easement for two parallel utilities 
and shall be conveyed to the City on its dedication forms. 

b. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the issuance 
of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to review and 
approval by the City Building Department. 

c. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed new 
private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public improvements 
shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

d. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 Datum.  
e. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply with the 

State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any other applicable 
codes. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 7 of 36 

Page 180 of 301



f. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private utility 
within the general construction area. 

g. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, fiber-optic 
and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  Existing overhead 
utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably possible. 

h. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or existing 
driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

i. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
j. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be identified. 
k. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in the State 

of Oregon.  
PFA6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works construction to 

be maintained by the City: 
 

a. Cover sheet 
b. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
c. General construction note sheet 
d. Existing conditions plan. 
e. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
f. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, sidewalk 

improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements (existing/proposed), and 
sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

g. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
h. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm and 

sanitary manholes. 
i. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all utility 

crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at crossings; 
vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

j. Street plans. 
k. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and cleanouts for 

easier reference 
l. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts for 

easier reference. 
m. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), including 

water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide detail of inlet 
structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain inlets, structures, and 
piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm water detention facilities are 
typically privately maintained they will be inspected by engineering, and the plans must 
be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

n. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that although 
storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they will be inspected by 
Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

o. Composite franchise utility plan. 
p. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
q. Illumination plan. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 8 of 36 

Page 181 of 301



r. Striping and signage plan. 
s. Landscape plan.  

PFA7.        Design engineer shall coordinate with the City in numbering the sanitary and 
stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and 
sanitary manhole testing will refer to City’s numbering system. 

PFA8.      The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in 
conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482 
during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements until 
such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed. 

PFA9.      Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil on 
the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall obtain 
a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 to less 
than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of Wilsonville 
is required. 

PFA10.     The applicant shall be in conformance with all stormwater and flow control 
requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards. 

PFA11.      A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City. 

PFA12.     The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality 
system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a letter 
from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per specifications 
and is functioning as designed. 

PFA13.     Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some other 
erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior to streets 
and/or alleys being paved. 

PFA14.      The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department and inform them 
of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any existing well shall be limited to 
irrigation purposes only.  Proper separation, in conformance with applicable State 
standards, shall be maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems.  Should the project abandon any existing wells, they shall be 
properly abandoned in conformance with State standards. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 9 of 36 

Page 182 of 301



PFA15.     All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within 
the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be 
adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a registered 
professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument to its original 
condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State law.  A copy of 
any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFA16.     Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFA17.      No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 

PFA18.     The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each connection 
point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 

PFA19.     The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by driveway 
placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and approved by the 
City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with driveways on the 
opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFA20.     Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's Transportation 
Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping plantings shall 
be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street intersections and 
alley/street intersections. 

PFA21.     The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm 
system to be privately maintained.  Stormwater or rainwater LID facilities may be 
located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  Applicant 
shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water 
facilities; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it is 
formed. 

PFA22.     Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to all 
public right-of-ways. 

PFA23.     For any new public easements created with the project the Applicant shall be required to 
produce the specific survey exhibits establishing the easement and shall provide the City 
with the appropriate  Easement document (on City approved forms). 

PFA24.     MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before a 
'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said 
survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as the 
physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, originally 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 10 of 36 

Page 183 of 301



approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record survey as a 
guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans and/or 
specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall consist of 
drawings on 3 mil. Mylar and an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current version, and a 
digitally signed PDF. 

PFA25.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
Paper copies of all proposed subdivision/partition plats shall be provided to the City for 
review.  Once the subdivision/partition plat is approved, applicant shall have the 
documents recorded at the appropriate County office.  Once recording is completed by 
the County, the applicant shall be required to provide the City with a 3 mil Mylar copy 
of the recorded subdivision/partition plat. 

PFA26.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
All newly created easements shown on a subdivision or partition plat shall also be 
accompanied by the City’s appropriate Easement document (on City approved forms) 
with accompanying survey exhibits that shall be recorded immediately after the 
subdivision or partition plat. 

Specific Comments: 
PFA27. The City has estimated the costs to reconstruct Canyon Creek Road South to meet the 

requirements of the Residential Street at $1,135,099.88. The estimated costs of street 
improvements shall be divided proportionately between all owners of record based on 
property street frontage along Canyon Creek Road South; this breaks down to $232.82 per 
foot of property frontage. 

 
 Applicant/Owner shall either: 
 

1. Be responsible to submit funds to the City to equal 130% of their estimated proportionate 
share; City will undertake street reconstruction at some time in the future.  For the 150.01 
feet of property frontage, this comes to $45,402.93; or 

1.2. Design and construct 150.01 feet of frontage improvements that include curb and gutter, 
5-foot sidewalk, stormwater LID for new residence and driveway, and installation of three 
4” conduits terminating in vaults at the north and south end of the properties.  Applicant 
shall provide the City a cash deposit for cost to purchase and install a new streetlight 
equivalent to streetlights recently installed with the adjacent Renaissance Development.    
Construction and street repair shall be done in accordance with PFA1. 

PFA28.    Each lot shall be allowed one driveway access onto Canyon Creek Road South. 

PFA29.  Applicant shall obtain water and sanitary sewer service from the existing systems in 
Canyon Creek Road South.  

PFA30. If stormwater detention and/or water quality facilities are designed for joint usage between 
the tax lots, maintenance plans or the system(s) shall be required and approved prior to 
acceptance. The applicant shall be required to establish a homeowners association with 
responsibility to maintain the private stormwater detention and/or water quality. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 11 of 36 

Page 184 of 301



 

Natural Resources Conditions: 

The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 

Stormwater Management 

NRA1.         Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, stormwater facilities are required when 
proposed development establishes or increases the impervious surface area by more 
than 5,000 square feet. Development includes new development, redevelopment, 
and/or partial redevelopment. 

NRA2.         Submit a drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
the proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the requirements of the Public Works 
Standards.  

NRA3.         Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for the proposed stormwater facilities 
consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 

NRA4.        Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 
plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for the 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NRA5.         Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of the 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other 

NRA6.        Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 
an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary: 

a. Gravel construction entrance; 
b. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
c. Sediment fence; 
d. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
e. Dust control;  
f. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
g. Limits of construction; and 
h. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NRA7.         The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN permit). 

 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 12 of 36 

Page 185 of 301



Exhibit A2 - FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. The statutory 120-day time limit begun with the date that staff rendered the application 

for the Tentative Partition complete. The Tentative Partition application (AR14-0077) 
was deemed complete on December 4, 2014. Thus the City, including appeals, before 
May 4, 2015, must render a final decision. 

 
2.   Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
East:  RA-H SW Canyon Creek Rd. South, Single-

family residential 
South:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
West:  PDR-1 Single-family residential 

 
3.  The subject site contains an existing single-family home. 
 
5.  The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.210 and 4.233 pertaining to review 

procedures and submittal requirements for review of an appeal. 
 

Exhibit A2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General: This section lists general application 
procedures applicable to a number of types of land use applications and also lists unique features 
of Wilsonville’s development review process. 
 
The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable general procedures of this 
Section. These criteria are met.  
 
Section 4.009 Who May Initiate Application: Except for a Specific Area Plan (SAP), applications 
involving specific sites may be filed only by the owner of the subject property, by a unit of government 
that is in the process of acquiring the property, or by an agent who has been authorized by the owner, 
in writing, to apply. 
 
Signed application form has been submitted by the property owners. 
 
Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference: This section lists the pre-application 
process 
 
A pre-application conference was held in 2014 for the tentative partition application – AR14-
0077 in accordance with this subsection. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval: City Council Resolution 
No. 796 precludes the approval of any development application without the prior payment of all 
applicable City liens for the subject property. Applicants shall be encouraged to contact the City 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 13 of 36 

Page 186 of 301



Finance Department to verify that there are no outstanding liens. If the Planning Director is 
advised of outstanding liens while an application is under consideration, the Director shall advise 
the applicant that payments must be made current or the existence of liens will necessitate denial of 
the application. 
 
No applicable liens exist for the subject property. The application for the appeal can thus move 
forward. This criterion is satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements: An 
application for a Site Development Permit shall consist of the materials specified as follows, plus any 
other materials required by this Code.” Listed 1. through 6. j. 
 
The applicant has provided all of the applicable general submission requirements contained in 
this subsection. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally: The use of any building or premises or the construction of any 
development shall be in conformity with the regulations set forth in this Code for each Zoning District 
in which it is located, except as provided in Sections 4.189 through 4.192. The General Regulations 
listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 shall apply to all zones unless the text indicates otherwise. 
 
This tentative partition with the city conditions of approval is in conformity with the RA-H zone 
and general development regulations listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 have been applied in 
accordance with this Section. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Section 4.009(.01) Ownership: Who may initiate application 
 
The application has been submitted by the property owners meeting the above criteria.   
 
Sections 4.013-4.031, 4.113, 4.118, 4.124 Review procedures and submittal requirements 
 
The required public notices have been sent and all proper notification procedures have been 
satisfied. The applicant has complied with these sections of the Code.  
 
Section 4.120 – Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
  
The subject property is designated Residential – 4 to 5 dwelling units an acre on the 
Comprehensive Plan Map and is zoned Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H). The RA-H 
Zone allows residential outright.  
 
Section 4.022. Appeal and Call-up Procedures. 
(.01) Administrative Action Appeals. A decision by the Planning Director on issuance of a Site 
Development Permit may be appealed. Such appeals shall be heard by the Development Review Board 
for all quasi-judicial land use matters except expedited land divisions, which may be appealed to a 
referee selected by the City to consider such cases. Only the applicant may appeal a Class I decision 
unless otherwise specified in Section 4.030, and such appeals shall be filed, including all of the 
required particulars and filing fee, with the City recorder as provided in this Section. Any affected 
party may appeal a Class II decision by filing an appeal, including all of the required particulars and 
filing fee, with the City Recorder within fourteen (14) calendar days of notice of the decision. Either 
panel of the Development Review Board, or both panels if convened together, may also initiate a call-
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 14 of 36 

Page 187 of 301



up of the Director's decision by motion, without the necessity of paying a filing fee, for matters other 
than expedited land divisions. The notice of appeal shall indicate the nature of the action or 
interpretation that is being appealed or called up and the matter at issue will be a determination of the 
appropriateness of the action or interpretation of the requirements of the Code. 
 
(.04)     Notice. Legal notice of a hearing on an appeal shall set forth: 

A. The date of the hearing. 
B. The issue(s) being appealed. C. Whether the review will be on the record or whether new 
evidence will be accepted, if known. 
 

The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable general procedures of this 
Section including legal notice requirements. The applicant’s representative is requesting de novo 
review of the appeal.  Section 4.022(.04) is met.  
 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review. 
A. At its discretion, the hearing body may limit an appeal or review to a review of the record and a 
hearing for receipt of oral arguments regarding the record, or may accept new evidence and testimony. 
Except, however, that the standard of review on an appeal or call up of a staff decision to be heard by 
the Development Review Board is de novo. 

B. The reviewing body shall issue an order stating the scope of review on appeal to be one of 
the following: 
1. Restricted to the record made on the decision being appealed. 
2. Limited to such issues as the reviewing body determines necessary for a proper resolution of 
the matter. 
3. A de novo hearing on the merits. 

 
The subject application involves an appeal of a staff decision. Thus, as provided in 
Section 4.002(.05) the appeal of this staff decision to requires the appeal it be heard by the DRB 
is de novo. 
 
Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review. 
A. Except as otherwise specified in this Code, or required by State law, the reviewing body may hear 
the entire matter de novo; or it may admit additional testimony and other evidence without holding a de 
novo hearing if it is satisfied that that additional testimony or other evidence could not reasonably have 
been presented at the prior hearing. The reviewing body shall consider all of the following in making 
such a decision. 

1. Prejudice to the parties. 
2. Convenience or availability of evidence at the time of the initial hearing. 
3. Surprise to opposing parties. 
 4. The competency, relevancy and materiality of the proposed testimony or other evidence. 
5. Such other factors as may be determined by the reviewing body to be appropriate. 
B. "De novo hearing" shall mean a hearing by the review body as if the action had not been 
previously heard and as if no decision had been rendered, except that all testimony, evidence 
and other material from the record of the previous consideration shall be included in the 
record of the review. 

 
The applicant has the burden of proving to the DRB to approve his appeal relative to the above 
criteria.  Because the standard of review on an appeal of a staff decision to the DRB is generally 
by its nature de novo, meaning all matters may be considered and new evidence received, these 
criteria are satisfied by the nature of the type of appeal. 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 15 of 36 

Page 188 of 301



 
 

Exhibit A1 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS – AR14-0077 

 
STAFF REPORT 

WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 
LAND PARTITION - DOWNS 

ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND DECISION 
 
 
DATE OF REPORT: January 22, 2015 
 
APPLICATION NO.: AR14-0077 
 
REQUEST: The applicants, Gerald and Joanne Downs, together with their representative, 
Ronald Downs, are requesting administrative approval of a land partition of 28205 SW Canyon 
Creek Road South, located between SW Summerton Street and Boeckman Road on the west side 
of SW Canyon Creek Road South. The land partition would allow for the existing home to 
remain, as well as the creation of one additional parcel to the south. This request is being 
processed through the Class II Administrative Review process. 
 
LOCATION: The subject property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road South, on the 
west side of SW Canyon Creek Road South. The subject site more specifically described in tax 
records as Tax Lot 2700 in Section 13BA, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, Willamette 
Meridian, City of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon. 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Gerald and Joanne Downs 
 
APPLICANT’S  
REPRESENTATIVE: Ronald Downs  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIG.:  Residential – 4 to 5 dwelling units an acre 
 
ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  Planned Development Residential (PDR-3) 
 
Applicable Review Criteria: 
City of Wilsonville Planning and Land Development Ordinance: Sections 4.008 through 4.015; 
4.030(.01)(B)(5); 4.034(.05); 4.035; 4.035(.03); 4.113; 4.118; 4.124.3; 4.167; 4.177; 4.202; 
4.210; 4.236; 4.237; 4.262; and 4.300-4.320 
 
ACTION TAKEN: Approval of the application, together with conditions of approval, as found 
beginning on page 14 of this report. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 16 of 36 

Page 189 of 301



STAFF REVIEWERS: Jennifer Scola, Assistant Planner; Blaise Edmonds, Manager of 
Current Planning; and, Steve Adams, Development Engineering 
Manager 

 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
A1. Staff Report (this document) 
 
B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
B5. Vicinity Map 
B6. Tax Lot Information  
B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
 
C1. Tax Map 
C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB D3 
C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
East:  RA-H SW Canyon Creek Rd. South, Single-

family residential 
South:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
West:  PDR-1 Single-family residential 

 
2. The Comprehensive Plan does not place this site in an Area of Special Concern. 
 
3. The subject site contains an existing single-family home. 
 
5. The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.210 and 4.233 pertaining to review procedures 
and submittal requirements for review of a tentative partition plat. 
 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 17 of 36 

Page 190 of 301



SUMMARY OF PROPOSAL: 
 
The project summary submitted by the Applicant is found in the Applicant’s narrative (Exhibit 
B1), and on accompanying drawing (Exhibit B5).  Except where a discrepancy is determined to 
exist, and may be discussed in this report, the Applicant’s will not be duplicated here. 
 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS: 

 
Sections 4.008-4.009 Application Procedures and Applicant’s Rights   
 
1. The Applicant’s submitted documents meet these code criteria. 

 
Section 4.014 Burden of Proof 

 
2. Subsection 4.014 provides that the Applicant bears the burden of proving that the 

necessary findings of fact can be made for approval of any land use or development 
application.  Staff finds that the Applicant has provided sufficient information proving 
the necessary findings of fact.   

 
Subsection 4.030(.01)(B)(5) Class II Administrative Review - Land Partitions 
 
3. This subsection directs land partitions, other than expedited land partitions, to be 

processed according to the Class II Administrative Review procedures pursuant to 
Section 4.210. In addition, it directs approval of land partitions to be based on the 
following criteria: 

 
a. The applicant has made a complete submittal of materials for the Director to review, as 
required by Section 4.210. 
 

4. The Applicant has submitted the required documents, satisfying this subsection. 
 

b. The proposed plan meets the requirements of the Code regarding minimum lot size and yard 
setbacks. 
 

5. The tentative plat demonstrates that two (2) proposed parcels meet the requirements for 
minimum lot size. The northernmost lot of the two (2) proposed parcels does not meet 
minimum setback requirements; however condition of approval PDA6 requires that a 
Reduced Setback Agreement be recorded with the final plat.  
 
c. The approval will not impede or adversely affect the orderly development of any adjoining 
property or access thereto. 
 

6. Access to adjoining properties will not be affected, and the abutting sites have already 
been developed. This provision is met. 
 
d. The public right-of-way bordering the lots will meet City standards. 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 18 of 36 

Page 191 of 301



7. An Engineering Condition of Approval, PFA4, will ensure any improvements in the 
right-of-way bordering the lots meet City standards. 

 
e. Any required public dedications of land have been approved for acceptance by the City and 
will be recorded with the County prior to final plat approval. 
 

8. No dedication of land to the public is required as part of this partition. This provision is 
met. 

 
f. Adequate easements are proposed where an existing utility line crosses or encroaches upon 
any other parcel to be created by the partition. 
 

9. No existing utility lines cross or encroach upon any of the proposed parcels as discussed 
in this subsection.  This provision does not apply. 

 
g. All public utilities and facilities are available or can be provided prior to the issuance of any 
development permit for any lot or parcel. 
 

10. Engineering PFA3 ensures that prior to any development permit is issued, all public 
utility and facility plans will be submitted and reviewed. This provision is satisfied. 

 
h. Roads extended or created as a result of the land partition will meet City standards. 
 

11. No roads will be extended or created as result of the proposed partition. This provision 
does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.034(.05) Application Requirements 
 
12. The Applicant has submitted all of the materials required by this subsection. 
 
Subsection 4.035(.03) Procedure for Processing Class II - Administrative Review. 
 
13. The Applicant's proposal will, together with the attached conditions of approval, result in 

conformance with applicable provisions of the City's Planning and Land Development 
Ordinance. Staff has followed the provisions of this code section. Staff notes that this 
approval is contingent upon final plat approval by the City and recordation of the final 
approved partition plat with the Clackamas County Clerk's Office. 
 

Section 4.113 Standards for Residential Development in All Zones 
 

14. Provisions of this section regarding landscaping are not applicable to partitions.  The area 
of the two proposed parcels will allow all other applicable provisions of this section, 
including setbacks, to be met. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 19 of 36 

Page 192 of 301



Sections 4.124 Standards Applying to All Planned Development Residential Zones 
      Subsection 4.124 (.01)-(.04) Uses allowed in Planned Development Residential Zones 
 

15. These subsections lists uses associated with the Planned Development Residential Zones. 
The parcels will be sufficient for a number of uses allowed in the Planned Development 
Residential Zones. 

 
Subsection 4.124 (.06) Block and Access Standards 

 
16. No new blocks or streets are involved with the proposal. 

 
Section 4.124.3 Planned Development Residential-3 Zone 
 
Subsection 4.124.3 (.01) Average Lot Size 

 
17. The average lot size for a lot in the PDR-3 Zone is 7,000 square feet, of which the 

proposed parcels exceed 7,000 square feet.  
 

Subsection 4.124.3 (.02) Minimum Lot Size 
 

18. The minimum lot size for PDR-3 Zone is 5,000 square feet. At 8,100 square feet, and 
12,150 square feet, the two (2) proposed parcels meet this minimum requirement. This 
provision is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.124.3 (.03) Minimum density at build-out 

 
19. The minimum density at build-out for the PDR-3 Zone is 8,000 square feet. Both 

proposed parcels would meet this minimum. This provision is satisfied.  
 

Subsection 4.124.3 (.04) Other Standards 
 

20. All other applicable standards will or can be met by the proposed parcels. This provision 
is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 

 
21. The subject parcel was is part of a previously approved Planned Development, subject to 

this Section. All requirements of this section were found to be satisfied by the 
development (see case file 03DB43). As shown in Exhibit 44 of Case File 03DB43 
(Exhibit C3), the partition of the subject property was anticipated as a future phase of the 
planned development.  Because certain frontage and other requirements were not required 
at the time of that approval, due to lack of planned development on the parcel at hand, 
certain development requirements were deferred but must be put into place now that this 
property is being further partitioned and redeveloped. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 20 of 36 

Page 193 of 301



Section 4.155 Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking 
 
22. This section requires that each dwelling provide a minimum of one parking space. The 

proposed parcel Number Two (2) will enable siting of a future dwelling that will be 
required to provide one off-street parking space.  This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.167 General Regulations – Access, Ingress and Egress 
 
23. These provisions require that safe access be provided to each of the proposed uses.  The 

proposed parcel Number Two (2) will have direct access to Canyon Creek Road South, 
and the parcel with the existing structure has a driveway, also taking access from Canyon 
Creek Road South.  This criteria is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.176 Landscaping, Screening and Buffering 
 
24. Because the proposal is for a partition, rather than a subdivision, there are no landscape 

requirements applicable to the request.  While Subsection 4.176(.06)(d) provides for the 
installation of street trees along the frontage of the proposed parcels, such requirement is 
appropriately limited to subdivisions, not partitions.  This section is not applicable. 
  

 Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
  
24.25. This Subsection requires that all development, which by its definition includes a 

partition of a property into two or more lots, comply with the requirements of this 
Section, the Wilsonville Public Works Standards, and the Transportation Plan in rough 
proportion to the potential impacts of development, including redevelopment.  The 
required options contained in PFA27 satisfy this criterion. 

 
Subsection 4.202 (.04) B. Parcel Partitions Not Allowed that Make Remaining Parcels Less than 
Allowed in Zone. 
 
25.26. This subsection does not allow parcel partitions to create parcels less than that 

allowed in the zone. The minimum parcel size for the Planned Development Residential 
Zone (PDR-3) is 5,000 square feet. Proposed Parcel 1 will be 12,150 square feet, 
proposed Parcel 2 will be 8,100 square feet, with both two (2) parcels exceeding the 
required minimum.  This criterion is met.  [See also findings for Subsection 4.124.3 (.02), 
above.] 

 
Section 4.210 Land Divisions - Application Procedure. 

      Subsection 4.210 (.01) A. Pre-Application Meeting 
 
26.27. This subsection requires a pre-application meeting as part of the process. While 

no formal pre-application meeting was held, the applicant did contact staff to understand 
required submittal materials and the review process. This provision is satisfied. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 21 of 36 

Page 194 of 301



Subsection 4.210 (.01) B. Tentative Plat Submission 
 

27.28. This subsection sets forth the submission requirements for tentative plats. The 
Applicant submitted the required documents, meeting the requirements of this subsection. 
[See also finding for Subsection 4.030(.01)(B)(5)(a), above.] 

 
Section 4.236 General Requirements – Streets 

     Subsection 4.236 (.01) Conformity to the Master Plan or Map 
 

28.29. This subsection requires land partitions to be in harmony with adopted 
Transportation Master Plans, Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans, Park and Recreation 
Master Plans, and the Master Street Plan. The proposed land partition does not create any 
new infrastructure associated with these plans, nor is any required. There is no evidence 
to suggest that the proposed partition would affect the harmony of existing infrastructure 
with the above plans.  This criterion is met. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) A. Relation to Adjoining Street System 

 
29.30. This subsection requires land partitions to provide for the continuation of the 

principal streets existing in the adjoining area and proposed streets to be the width 
required elsewhere in the Wilsonville City Code.  No new streets are planned or proposed 
with this partition. There are no adjoining streets that would continue through the subject 
property. This criterion does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) B. Requirement to Submit Prospective Future Street System  

 
30.31. This subsection requires the submission of prospective future street systems when 

the land partition does not cover the entire tract. The proposed land partition covers the 
Applicant’s entire tract and no streets are proposed. This criterion does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) C. Arrangement of Parcels to Allow Future Subdivision 

 
31.32. This subsection requires the arrangement of streets and parcels to allow for future 

land partition if allowed by the Comprehensive Plan. The parcels are arranged in a 
manner to allow the partition, if found compliant with the Comprehensive Plan. This 
provision is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.03) Conformity with Section 4.177 and Block Standards of Zone. 

 
32.33. This subsection requires all streets to conform to Section 4.177 of the Wilsonville 

City Code and block standards of the zone. No new streets or will result from this 
application. This provision does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.04) Creation of Easements 

 
33.34. This subsection allows the Planning Director to approve easements as a 

reasonable method to allow vehicular access and adequate utilities to the lots in this two-

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 22 of 36 

Page 195 of 301



parcel land partition. The applicant is required to provide a minimum 6-foot Public 
Utility Easement on lot frontages to all public right-of-ways See Condition PFA22.  This 
provision is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.08) Existing Streets 

 
34.35. No additional right-of-way is being required as part of the proposed partition.  

Therefore, the standards in this subsection are not affected.  
 

Section 4.237 General Requirements – Other. 
      Subsection 4.237 (.01) Block Standards 
 

35.36. This subsection provides standards for new blocks created by land partitions. No 
block creation is involved in the proposed land partition. These criteria do not apply. 

 
 
Subsection 4.237 (.02) Easements 

 
36.37. This subsection requires easements for existing and needed utility lines. As 

indicated in Finding 34, above, a six-foot-wide public utility easement will be required 
along the frontage of the two parcels. Condition of Approval PFA22 requires a six-foot-
wide public utility easement along the Canyon Creek Road South frontage for potential 
future franchise utilities. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.03) Pedestrian and Bicycle Pathway 

 
37.38. This subsection requires an improved public path for blocks that exceed the length 

standard for the zone they are located in. No new blocks are involved in this partition. 
Compliance with this subsection is not altered by the proposed partition. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.04) Street Tree Planting 

 
38.39. This subsection presents requirements for street trees, as applicable.  No street 

trees are proposed by the Applicant.  Because the application is for a partition, rather than 
a subdivision, street trees are not required.  This provision is satisfied.  

 
Subsection 4.237 (.05) Parcel Size, Shape, Width, and Orientation. 

 
39.40. This subsection requires the parcels resulting from the land partition have the size, 

width, shape and orientation appropriate for the location of the land partition and for the 
development and use that are contemplated as well as for the zone in which they are 
located. Proposed parcel sizes, widths, shapes and orientation are appropriate for 
contemplated future development and are in conformance with the PDR-3 requirements. 
The proposed partition complies with the standards of this subsection. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 23 of 36 

Page 196 of 301



Subsection 4.237 (.06) Access 
 

40.41. This subsection requires parcels resulting from the land partition have the 
minimum frontage of public streets. The parcels resulting from proposed land partition 
meet the street frontage requirements for the zone. This provision is met.  

 
Subsection 4.237 (.07) Through Lots 

 
41.42. The current parcel is not a through lot, and the proposed parcel also will not be a 

through lot. The applicable provisions of this subsection are satisfied. 
 

Subsection 4.237 (.08) Parcel Side Lines 
 
42.43. This subsection requires side parcel lines be at right angles to the street the parcels 

face as far as practical. All parcel lines are at right angles. This provision is met. 
 

Subsection 4.237 (.10) Building Line 
 

43.44. This subsection gives the Planning Director authority to create building setback 
lines to be recorded on the plat to allow for future repartition or other development or to 
support other findings. In a separate Class I Administrative Application, the Applicant is 
seeking a setback agreement to allow reduced setbacks between the existing house and 
the future house at a side property line. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.11) Build-to Line 

 
44.45. This subsection gives the Planning Director authority to create build-to lines for 

the development. The Applicant is not requesting nor is the Planning Director requiring 
the creation of build-to-lines. 

 
Section 4.250 Legal Lots of Record 

 
45.46. The existing parcel is a legal lot of record. Upon satisfaction of conditions of 

approval and recordation of a final plat, the one (1) resulting parcel will also be a legal lot 
of record, meeting this provision. 

 
Section 4.260 Improvements-Procedure 

 
46.47. This section requires, in addition to other requirements, improvements installed 

by the developer to conform to the requirements of Wilsonville’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards.  Condition of Approval PDA4 will ensure the requirements of this section are 
met. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 24 of 36 

Page 197 of 301



Section 4.262 Improvements-Requirements 
 

47.48. This section presents improvement requirements for individual improvements and 
utilities including curbs, sidewalks, sewer, and water. Engineering Conditions will ensure 
the requirements of this section are met. 

 
Section 4.264 Improvements - Assurance 

 
48.49. This section requires assurance for improvements. An engineering condition of 

approval will ensure the requirements of this section are met. 
 

Section 4.320 Underground Utility Requirements 
 

49.50. This section requires all utilities to be underground. Condition of Approval PDA5 
will ensure any utilities are installed underground. 

 
 
ACTION TAKEN AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR REQUEST AR14-0077: 
Based on the analysis above, and conclusionary findings 1 through 50 the request is hereby 
approved, together with the following conditions of approval: 

This decision approves only the tentative partition described in the request above, as modified by 
the conditions below, and is on file with the City of Wilsonville’s Planning Division as Case File 
AR14-0077.  

Planning Conditions: 

PDA1. Approval of the partition is effective for two (2) years from the date of the notice 
of decision. Time extensions may be granted per Section 4.023 of the City’s 
Development Code. The Applicant shall submit final plat application within two 
(2) years of date of the notice of decision. 

PDA2.  The final plat for the land partition shall be in substantial compliance with the 
approved tentative plat and narrative submitted to the Planning Division as part 
of this application. 

PDA3. The Applicant/Owner shall provide the City’s Engineering and Planning Division 
with a copy of the final plat of the land partition recorded with the Clackamas 
County Surveyor’s Office. 

PDA4. Any improvements installed shall conform to the City’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards. 

PDA5. Any utilities installed as part of development on the property shall be installed 
underground. 

PDA6.  A Reduced Setback Agreement shall be recorded concurrently with the final plat.  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 25 of 36 

Page 198 of 301



PDA7.  The final plat shall not display the ten-foot No Construction Easement, nor shall 
the proposed building outline for the southern parcel of the partition. 

 

Engineering Division Conditions: 

New development on the two lots shall be in compliance with the following Engineering 
conditions of approval. 

Standard Comments: 

PFA 1. All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to 
the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards - 2014. 

PFA 2.  
Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 
following amounts: 
 
General Aggregate                                                                        $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate                                 $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                                                                           $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                                                   $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)                                                           $50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)                                               $10,000 

PFA 3. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained 
and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFA 4. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22” x 
34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public 
Work’s Standards. 

PFA 5. Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

l. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not contained 
within a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access acceptable to the 
City. The public utility improvements shall be centered in a minimum 15-ft. wide 
public easement for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft. wide public easement for 
two parallel utilities and shall be conveyed to the City on its dedication forms. 

m. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the 
issuance of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to review 
and approval by the City Building Department. 

n. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed new 
private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public improvements 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 26 of 36 

Page 199 of 301



shall be shown in bolder, black print. 
o. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 

Datum.   
p. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply with the 

State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any other applicable 
codes. 

q. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private utility 
within the general construction area. 

r. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, fiber-
optic and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  Existing 
overhead utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably possible. 

s. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or existing 
driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

t. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
u. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be identified. 
v. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in the 

State of Oregon.  
PFA 6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works 

construction to be maintained by the City: 
 

t. Cover sheet 
u. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
v. General construction note sheet 
w. Existing conditions plan. 
x. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
y. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, sidewalk 

improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements (existing/proposed), and 
sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

z. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
aa. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm and 

sanitary manholes. 
bb. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all utility 

crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at crossings; 
vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

cc. Street plans. 
dd. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and cleanouts 

for easier reference 
ee. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts for 

easier reference. 
ff. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), 

including water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide detail of 
inlet structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain inlets, structures, 
and piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm water detention facilities are 
typically privately maintained they will be inspected by engineering, and the plans 
must be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 27 of 36 

Page 200 of 301



gg. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that 
although storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they will be 
inspected by Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public Works 
Permit set. 

hh. Composite franchise utility plan. 
ii. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
jj. Illumination plan. 
kk. Striping and signage plan. 
ll. Landscape plan.  

PFA 7. Design engineer shall coordinate with the City in numbering the sanitary and 
stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and 
sanitary manhole testing will refer to City’s numbering system. 

PFA 8. The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in 
conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 
482 during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements 
until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed. 

PFA 9. Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil 
on the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall 
obtain a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 
to less than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of 
Wilsonville is required. 

PFA 10. The applicant shall be in conformance with all stormwater and flow control 
requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards. 

PFA 11. A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City. 

PFA 12. The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality 
system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a 
letter from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per 
specifications and is functioning as designed. 

PFA 13. Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some 
other erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior 
to streets and/or alleys being paved. 

PFA 14. The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department and inform them 
of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any existing well shall be limited to 
irrigation purposes only.  Proper separation, in conformance with applicable State 
standards, shall be maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems.  Should the project abandon any existing wells, they shall be 
properly abandoned in conformance with State standards. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 28 of 36 

Page 201 of 301



PFA 15. All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within 
the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be 
adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a 
registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument 
to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State 
law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFA 16. Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFA 17. No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 

PFA 18. The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each 
connection point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 

PFA 19. The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by 
driveway placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and 
approved by the City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with 
driveways on the opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFA 20. Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's 
Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping 
plantings shall be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street 
intersections and alley/street intersections. 

PFA 21. The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm 
system to be privately maintained.  Stormwater or rainwater LID facilities may be 
located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  Applicant 
shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water 
facilities; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it 
is formed. 

PFA 22. Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to 
all public right-of-ways. 

PFA 23. For any new public easements created with the project the Applicant shall be required 
to produce the specific survey exhibits establishing the easement and shall provide the 
City with the appropriate  Easement document (on City approved forms). 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 29 of 36 

Page 202 of 301



PFA 24. MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before 
a 'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said 
survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as 
the physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, 
originally approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record 
survey as a guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans 
and/or specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall 
consist of drawings on 3 mil. Mylar and an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current 
version, and a digitally signed PDF. 

PFA 25. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
Paper copies of all proposed subdivision/partition plats shall be provided to the City 
for review.  Once the subdivision/partition plat is approved, applicant shall have the 
documents recorded at the appropriate County office.  Once recording is completed by 
the County, the applicant shall be required to provide the City with a 3 mil Mylar copy 
of the recorded subdivision/partition plat. 

PFA 26. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
All newly created easements shown on a subdivision or partition plat shall also be 
accompanied by the City’s appropriate Easement document (on City approved forms) 
with accompanying survey exhibits that shall be recorded immediately after the 
subdivision or partition plat. 

Specific Comments: 
PFA27. The City has estimated the costs to reconstruct Canyon Creek Road South to meet the 

requirements of the Residential Street at $1,135,099.88. The estimated costs of street 
improvements shall be divided proportionately between all owners of record based on 
property street frontage along Canyon Creek Road South; this breaks down to $232.82 per 
foot of property frontage.  

                                                                     
 PFA28.    Each lot shall be allowed one driveway access onto Canyon Creek Road South. 

PFA29.  Applicant shall obtain water and sanitary sewer service from the existing systems in 
Canyon Creek Road South.  

PFA30. If stormwater detention and/or water quality facilities are designed for joint usage 
between the tax lots, maintenance plans or the system(s) shall be required and approved 
prior to acceptance. The applicant shall be required to establish a homeowners association 
with responsibility to maintain the private stormwater detention and/or water quality. 

  
 

Natural Resources Conditions: 

The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 30 of 36 

Page 203 of 301



subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 

Stormwater Management 

NRA 1. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, stormwater facilities are required when 
proposed development establishes or increases the impervious surface area by more 
than 5,000 square feet. Development includes new development, redevelopment, 
and/or partial redevelopment. 

NRA 2. Submit a drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
the proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the requirements of the Public Works 
Standards.  

NRA 3. Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for the proposed stormwater facilities 
consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 

NRA 4. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 
plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for the 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NRA 5. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of the 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other 

NRA 6. Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 
an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary: 

i. Gravel construction entrance; 
j. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
k. Sediment fence; 
l. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
m. Dust control;  
n. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
o. Limits of construction; and 
p. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NRA 7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN permit). 

 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 31 of 36 

Page 204 of 301



 
Exhibit A2, DB15-0006  - PROPOSED ADDITIONAL FINDINGS: 
 
Section 4.118(03)C. 9.  A waiver of the right of remonstrance by the applicant to the formation of a 

Local Improvement District (LID) for streets, utilities and/or other public purposes.  
 
51. In tentative partition approval (AR14-0077) waiver of remonstrance was not included as 

a condition of approval. Staff is proposing the above requirement be added as condition 
PDA8.  

 
Section 4.177. Street Improvement Standards.  This section contains the City’s requirements and 

standards for pedestrian, bicycle, and transit facility improvements to public streets, or 
within public easements. The purpose of this section is to ensure that development, 
including redevelopment, provides transportation facilities that are safe, convenient, and 
adequate in rough proportion to their impacts. 

 
52. To satisfy the foregoing PFA27 requires that the applicant/owner construct sidewalk and 

integrated road improvements to front only that land that is the subject of this application 
and not beyond those boundaries.  The City Development Code at this Section sets the 
standards for pedestrian, bicycle and transit facilities for public streets, including curb 
and sidewalk, to ensure that development, including redevelopment, provides safe 
convenient and adequate facilities in rough proportion to their impacts.  As this property 
is now being subdivided into two separate lots with two separate homes, the sidewalk 
/roadway transportation requirements being imposed cover only those properties.  City 
Code requires these improvements to be made at the time of development or 
redevelopment, and this partition constitutes redevelopment, per Code definition. 

 
 Further to this requirement, the City’s Comprehensive Plan sets forth the requirements 

for a connected network of sidewalks and requires, at implementation Measure 3.3.2.d 
that all gaps in the existing sidewalk network be filled so as to create safe and accessible 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  Thus, in accordance with that requirement, as each 
parcel in the City without sidewalks is developed or redeveloped, the placement of the 
sidewalk and related curb, gutter and street improvements to current City standards is 
required to be built by the developer in front of the developer’s property, as a 
proportionate requirement of development.  This requirement has been consistently 
imposed as a developer responsibility as development occurs, thereby resulting in fewer 
gaps in the sidewalk.  Just as the City Code at Section 2.220 requires the property owner 
to be responsible for the sidewalk repairs that front the owner’s property, so does the 
Code require the property owner/developer to install those same sidewalks as a 
proportionate condition of development. 

 
 State and Federal law requires that all Development conform to the requirements of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, thus requiring sidewalks to meet exact construction 
criteria and connectivity requirements as properties are developed or redeveloped.  The 
applicant has one property that is being redeveloped into two (2) home sites and is 
therefore required to bring that property up to current ADA requirements. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 32 of 36 

Page 205 of 301



Section 4.177(.01).  Development and related public facility improvements shall comply with the 
standards in this section, the Wilsonville Public Works Standards, and the Transportation 
System Plan, in rough proportion to the potential impacts of the development. Such 
improvements shall be constructed at the time of development or as provided by 
Section 4.140, except as modified or waived by the City Engineer for reasons of safety or 
traffic operations. 

 
53. See Finding 52. 
 
Section 4.177(.02) Street Design Standards. 
 

A. All street improvements and intersections shall provide for the continuation of 
streets through specific developments to adjoining properties or subdivisions. 
 
1. Development shall be required to provide existing or future connections to adjacent 
sites through the use of access easements where applicable. Such easements shall be 
required in addition to required public street dedications as required in Section 4.236(.04). 

 
5254. Canyon Creek Road South fronting the east side of the subject property is a public street. 

It provides direct connections to existing and future to adjacent sites meeting 
Section 4.022(.02). 

 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be provided on the public street frontage of all 

development. Sidewalks shall generally be constructed within the dedicated public right-of-
way, but may be located outside of the right-of-way within a public easement with the 
approval of the City Engineer. 

 
A. Sidewalk widths shall include a minimum through zone of at least five feet. The 
through zone may be reduced pursuant to variance procedures in Section 4.196, a waiver 
pursuant to Section 4.118, or by authority of the City Engineer for reasons of traffic 
operations, efficiency, or safety. 

 
55. See Finding 52. 
 

B. Within a Planned Development, the Development Review Board may approve a 
sidewalk on only one side. If the sidewalk is permitted on just one side of the street, the 
owners will be required to sign an agreement to an assessment in the future to construct the 
other sidewalk if the City Council decides it is necessary. 

 
Section 4.177(.04) Bicycle Facilities.  Bicycle facilities shall be provided to implement the 

Transportation System Plan, and may include on-street and off-street bike lanes, shared 
lanes, bike boulevards, and cycle tracks. The design of on-street bicycle facilities will vary 
according to the functional classification and the average daily traffic of the facility. 

 
56. Applicant is not required to add Bicycle facilities. 
 
Section 4.236. General Requirements - Streets. 

(.01) Conformity to the Transportation System Plan. Land divisions shall conform to and be 
in harmony with the Transportation Systems Plan, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan, 
and the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 33 of 36 

Page 206 of 301



 
(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System. 
A. A land division shall provide for the continuation of the principal streets existing in the 
adjoining area, or of their proper projection when adjoining property is not developed, and 
shall be of a width not less than the minimum requirements for streets set forth in these 
regulations. Where, in the opinion of the Planning Director or Development Review Board, 
topographic conditions make such continuation or conformity impractical, an exception 
may be made. In cases where the Board or Planning Commission has adopted a plan or plat 
of a neighborhood or area of which the proposed land division is a part, the subdivision 
shall conform to such adopted neighborhood or area plan. 
 

57. Based on conditions of approval, all of the above applicable conditions will be met. 
 
Section 4.260. Improvements - Procedures. 

In addition to other requirements, improvements installed by the developer, either as a 
requirement of these regulations or at the developer's own option, shall conform to the 
requirements of this Code and improvement standards and specifications of the City. The 
improvements shall be installed in accordance with the City's Public Works Standards. 
 

58. Applicant has the option under PDF 27 of installing or paying the City to perform the 
work. 

 
Section 4.262. Improvements - Requirements. 

(.01) Streets. Streets within or partially within the development shall be graded for the 
entire right-of-way width, constructed and surfaced in accordance with the Transportation 
Systems Plan and City Public Works Standards. Existing streets which abut the 
development shall be graded, constructed, reconstructed, surfaced or repaired as 
determined by the City Engineer. 
 

59. Design and construction requirements for all public transportation facilities shall be done 
in conformance with the 2014 Public Works Standards, Section 2, “Transportation 
Design and Construction Standards.”  Specific street design standards are found in 
Section 201.2.00 of the Public Works Standards; detail drawing RD-1015 shows the 
design standards for Residential Streets. 

 
(.02) Curbs. Curbs shall be constructed in accordance with standards adopted by the City. 
 

60. Curb and gutters are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing 
RD-1015.  Specific design standards for curbs are provided in Section 201.2.24 of the 
Public Works Standards. 

 
(.03) Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with standards adopted by 
the City. 
 

61. Sidewalks are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing RD-1015.  
Specific design standards for sidewalks are provided in Section 201.2.25 of the Public 
Works Standards. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 34 of 36 

Page 207 of 301



(.04) Sanitary sewers. When the development is within two hundred (200) feet of an existing 
public sewer main, sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve each lot or parcel in 
accordance with standards adopted by the City. When the development is more than two 
hundred (200) feet from an existing public sewer main, the City Engineer may approve an 
alternate sewage disposal system. 
 

62. An existing sanitary sewer main is located in Canyon Creek Road South.  Applicant is 
required to install a sanitary sewer service line to the new parcel being created with the 
partition.  Specific design standards for sanitary sewer lateral service lines is provided in 
Section 401.2.02.f., Section 401.2.02.g., and Section 401.2.02.i. of the Public Works 
Standards and in detail drawing S-2175. 

 
(.05) Drainage. Storm drainage, including detention or retention systems, shall be provided 
as determined by the City Engineer. 
 

63. Applicant is required to be in conformance with the 2014 Public Works Standards, 
Section 3, “Stormwater & Surface Water Design & Construction Standards” for all 
stormwater, flow control, and water quality facilities installed within the proposed 
development.  Specific design requirements and options are located in numerous 
subsections of Section 3 and also found in several detail drawings. 

 
(.06) Underground utility and service facilities. All new utilities shall be subject to the 
standards of Section 4.300 (Underground Utilities). The developer shall make all necessary 
arrangements with the serving utility to provide the underground services in conformance 
with the City's Public Works Standards. 
 

64. Underground utility and service facilities are required elements of Residential Streets, per 
detail drawing RD-1015 and Section 201.2.31.a. of the Public Works Standards.  
However, with only 150 feet of street improvements, it is not economical to underground 
the existing overhead franchise utilities.  Applicant has been allowed to install three 
conduits, terminating in vaults, for future use when the City moves forward with 
undergrounding these utilities.  Applicant is also required to provide a 6-foot wide public 
utility easement per Section 201.2.31.b. of the Public Works Standards and per detail 
drawing RD-1015. 

 
(.07) Streetlight standards. Streetlight standards shall be installed in accordance with 
regulations adopted by the City. 
 

65. Streetlights are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing RD-1015.  
Specific design standards for streetlights are provided in Section 201.9.00 of the Public 
Works Standards.  With existing overhead utility lines, installation of a street light is not 
possible.  Applicant has been required to provide the City with a cash deposit for cost to 
purchase and install a new streetlight equivalent to streetlights recently installed within 
nearby development. 

 
 (.08) Street signs. Street name signs shall be installed at all street intersections and dead 
end signs at the entrance to all dead-end streets and cul-de-sacs in accordance with 
standards adopted by the City. Other signs may be required by the City Engineer. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 35 of 36 

Page 208 of 301



 
(.09) Monuments. Monuments shall be placed at all lot and block corners, angle points, 
points of curves in streets, at intermediate points and shall be of such material, size and 
length as required by State Law. Any monuments that are disturbed before all 
improvements are completed by the developer and accepted by the City shall be replaced to 
conform to the requirements of State Law. 
 
(.10) Water. Water mains and fire hydrants shall be installed to serve each lot in accordance 
with City standards. 
 

66. Water mains and fire hydrants were installed on Canyon Creek Road South in 2005 and 
no additional requirements were placed on the Applicant. 

 
 
Regarding code criteria above, see Findings 53-55 under Section 4.177(.04). 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 36 of 36 

Page 209 of 301



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution, Clean Staff Report 
& Exhibits for DRB Approval 

Page 210 of 301



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 299 

 
A RESOLUTION AFFIRMING THE DIRECTOR’S CLASS II ADMINSITRATIVE 
DECISIONS, FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING A TENTATIVE LAND 
PARTITION FOR TWO PARCELS RENDERED IN CASE-FILE AR14-0077 AND 
DENYING THE APPLICANT’S APPEAL DB15-0006. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS 
LOCATED AT 28205 SW CANYON CREEK ROAD SOUTH. THE PROPERTY IS 
DESCRIBED AS TAX LOT 2700 OF SECTION 13BA, T3S, R1W, CLACKAMAS 
COUNTY, OREGON. GERALD AND JOANNE DOWNS, OWNERS.  
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-captioned 
development, has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.008 
of the Wilsonville Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared a staff report on the above-captioned 
subject dated February 12, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff report were duly considered by the 
Development Review Board at meetings conducted on February 23, 2015, at which time 
exhibits, together with findings and public testimony, were entered into the public record; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board, through de novo public hearing, 
considered the Applicant’s appeal of the Director’s Class II Administrative Decision for a two 
parcel Tentative Land Partition; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant, City staff, and all other interested parties, if any, have had 
an opportunity to be heard on the foregoing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board of the 
City of Wilsonville does hereby affirm the Director’s decision of the following application: 
 
AR14-0077: Class II Administrative Review 

 as amended by the  revised staff report, attached hereto as Exhibits A-2, with findings, 
conditions and recommendations contained therein, and approves the application consistent 
with said recommendations; 

And does hereby deny the following appeal: 

 

DB15-0006: Appeal of AR14-0077  

  
 

ADOPTED by the Development Review Board Panel B of the City of Wilsonville at a 
regular meeting thereof this 23rd day of February, 2015, and filed with the Planning 
Administrative Assistant on   , 2015. This resolution is final on the 15th calendar day 
Resolution No. 299  Page 1 of 2 
 

Page 211 of 301



after the postmarked date of the written notice of decision unless appealed or called up for 
review by the council in accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.09) 
 
 
 
 
       
 
      ______________________________ 
  Aaron Woods, Chair 

  Development Review Board, Panel B 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 
 

Resolution No. 299  Page 2 of 2 
 

Page 212 of 301



Exhibit A2 
 

REVISED STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

Appeal Class II Administrative Review Decision 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘B’ 
QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
HEARING DATES:  February 23, 2015 
 
DATE OF REPORT:  February 12, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
APPLICATION NOS.:  DB14-0077 and DB15-0006  
 
APPLICANT/OWNERS: Gerald and Joanne Downs (collectively “Applicant”) 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER  
REPRESENTATIVE: Ronald Downs 
 
REQUEST: Appeal AR14-0077 (Class II Tentative Land Partition) and 

including Condition of Approval PFA27   
 
LOCATION: The subject property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road 

South, on the west side of SW Canyon Creek Road South.  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tax Lot 2700 of Section 13BA, T3S, R1W, Willamette Meridian, 

Clackamas County, Wilsonville, Oregon.   
 
LAND USE  
DESIGNATION: Comprehensive Plan Map Designation: Residential – 4 to 5 

dwelling units an acre. 
  
ZONING  
DESIGNATION: Residential Agricultural - Holding (RA-H) 
 
STAFF REVIEWERS: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning; Jennifer Scola, 

Assistant Planner, Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney and 
Steve Adams, Development Engineering Manager.  

 
 
 
 
 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 1 of 35 

Page 1 of 79

Page 213 of 301



 
 
Applicable Review Criteria: Planning and Land Development Ordinance:  
 
Sections 4.008 - 4.015 Administration Sections 
Section 4.022(.01) Administrative Action Appeal 
Section 4.022(.04) Appeal Notice 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review 
Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review 
Sections 4.030(.01)(B)(5); 4.034(.05); 4.035; 
4.035(.03) 

Class II AR  

Section 4.202 Land Divisions General 
Section 4.210 Application Procedure 
Section 4.120 Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
Section 4.031 Authority of the DRB  
Section 4.113 Standards to all Residential Zones 
Section 4.118(.03)C.9 Waiver of Right of Remonstrance 
Section 4.167 Access 
Section 4.177(.01) and  (.02) Street Improvement Standards 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks 
Section 4.236(.01) Conformity to the Transportation Systems Plan 
Section 4.236(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System 
Section 4.237 Land Divisions General Requirements 
Section 4.260(.02) Improvement Procedures 
Sections  4.262 (.01 through .10) Improvement Requirements  
Sections 4.300-4.320 Underground Utilities 
 
Other: Administrative Decision AR14-0077 
Comprehensive Plan: Plan Policy 3.3.2, Implementation Measures 3.3.2c and 3.3.2d.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Option 2, which consists of this revised staff report, 
as outlined in the ‘Summary’ statement of this revised staff report (Exhibit A2) below, with 
proposed revised findings and conditions of approval in case file DB15-0006 (Exhibit A2). 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 2 of 35 

Page 2 of 79

Page 214 of 301



VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The applicant is appealing the staff decision for a Class II administrative approval of a two (2) 
parcel land partition in case file AR14-0077.  Section 4.022(.05)WC Scope of Review requires 
“that the standard on an appeal or call up of a staff decision to be heard by the Development 
Review Board is de novo.”  De novo is a Latin expression meaning "from the beginning," 
"afresh," "anew," "beginning again.”  Although the applicant may want to contest only certain 
portions of the staff decision, the entire Class II administrative approval record will be open for 
public testimony and admission of new evidence. 
 
The applicant is objecting to certain sidewalk, street and utility improvements required by City 
engineering condition PFA27.  See Exhibit B9 for the applicant’s detailed objection.  The 
applicant, by and through the Applicant Representative (Ron Downs), is seeking to partition their 
land into two parcels so that one may be deeded to Ron Downs for construction of a new home.  
The applicant, however, only wants to make the required improvements in front of that newly 
created lot and not in front of the other lot that is a part of the application and partition; in other 
words, the applicant is seeking to divide their property into two lots but to only provide street 
and sidewalks for the portion located in front of the newly created lot and not the remainder of 
the partitioned property.  It is City staff’s opinion that, by virtue of the partition, as the City’s 
definition as “Development” as set forth in City Code, the entire property is being redeveloped 
and, thus, the City conditions for redevelopment apply across the entire parcel and, therefore, 
sidewalk, curb, and gutter must be provided to front the entire parcel.  Authority for this position 
is found under the City’s Comprehensive Plan Section 3.3.2; Implementation Measure 3.3.2.c.; 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 3 of 35 

Page 3 of 79

Page 215 of 301



Implementation Measure 3.3.2.d; and the City’s Development Code Section 4.236.  
Development is defined in Code Section 4.001, subsection 79. 
 
Based on the foregoing, the Development Review Board has three options to consider at the 
upcoming DRB hearing: 
 
Option 1:  Approve the original staff report, findings of fact, conclusionary findings and 
conditions of approval in case file AR14-0077 (Exhibit A1).  This action would deny the appeal.  
The applicant would then be free to either abandon the application, comply with the required 
conditions, or appeal  the DRB decision to City Council. 
 
Option 2:  Approve the proposed revised staff report, findings of fact, conclusionary findings 
and conditions of approval in case file DB15-0006 (Exhibit A2).  The proposed changes are 
being recommended by staff to give more clarity to the DRB and to the applicant, as well as to 
give the applicant some alternatives options with respect to implementation of the challenged 
condition.  The applicant would then be free to abandon the application, comply with the 
required revised or original conditions, or appeal the DRB decision to City Council.  These 
proposed revisions are highlighted in the revised staff report to show all as additions and strike-
outs to the original staff report for DRB and applicant ease of reference. 
 
Option 3:  The DRB could reject portions of the recommended revised staff report by modifying 
conditions, applying new conditions, or removing conditions, should the DRB find that the 
applicant has sustained the burden of proving that the staff conditions are incorrect or not 
proportionate and therefore not legally permissible. 
 
 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 4 of 35 

Page 4 of 79

Page 216 of 301



EXHIBITS (AR14-0077):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the Class 2 Administrative Review 
of Tentative Land Partition Application in AR14-0077. 
 
A1. Original Staff Report 
B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
B5. Vicinity Map 
B6. Tax Lot Information  
B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
 
C1. Tax Map 
C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB D3 
C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 
 
EXHIBITS (DB15-0006):   
The following exhibits are entered into the public record for the appeal to the DRB in appeal 
application DB15-0006 as submitted. 
 
Staff Report:  
A2. Revised Staff Report (this one), including Proposed Revised Findings of Fact, Conditions of 
Approval and Conclusionary Findings.  (Changes to the original are shown in redline for DRB 
and applicant ease of review.) 
A3. PowerPoint presentation. 
A4. Memorandum to Development Review Board members from Blaise Edmonds and Barbara 

Jacobson, dated February 12, 2015 Re:  Director’s Decisions/Applicant Appeal 
   
Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials:  
B9. Letter of appeal, dated January 17, 2015. 
     
Development Review Team: None submitted 
  
D1. General Correspondence: 
D1. Letters (neither For nor Against): None submitted 
D2. Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
D3. Letters (Opposed): None submitted 
  

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 5 of 35 

Page 5 of 79

Page 217 of 301



 
 
DB15-0006 - PROPOSED REVISED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
PD = Planning Division Conditions 
PF = City Engineering Division Conditions 
 
Bold/Italic = New words 

Planning Conditions: 

PDA1. Approval of the partition is effective for two (2) years from the date of the notice 
of decision. Time extensions may be granted per Section 4.023 of the City’s 
Development Code. The Applicant/Owner shall submit final plat application 
within two (2) years of date of the notice of decision. 

PDA2.  The final plat for the land partition shall be in substantial compliance with the 
approved tentative plat and narrative submitted to the Planning Division as part 
of this application. 

PDA3. The Applicant/Owner shall provide the City’s Engineering and Planning Division 
with a copy of the final plat of the land partition recorded with the Clackamas 
County Surveyor’s Office. 

PDA4. Any improvements installed shall conform to the City’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards. 

PDA5. Any utilities installed as part of development on the property shall be installed 
underground. 

PDA6.  A Reduced Setback Agreement shall be recorded concurrently with the final plat.  

PDA7.  The final plat shall not display the ten-foot No Construction Easement, nor shall 
the proposed building outline for the southern parcel of the partition. 

PDA8. Applicant/Owner shall waive the right of remonstrance against any local 
improvement district that may be formed to provide public improvements to 
serve the subject site.  Before the start of construction, a waiver of right to 
remonstrance shall be submitted to the City Attorney for review. See Finding 51. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 6 of 35 

Page 6 of 79

Page 218 of 301



Engineering Division Conditions: 

New development on the two lots shall be in compliance with the following Engineering conditions 
of approval. 

Standard Comments: 

PFA1.       All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to 
the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards - 2014. 

PFA2.       Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 
following amounts: 

General Aggregate                                                                        $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate                                 $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                                                                           $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                                                   $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)                                                           $50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)                                               $10,000 

PFA3.       No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained 
and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFA4.        All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22” x 
34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public 
Work’s Standards. 

PFA5.       Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

a. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not contained within 
a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access acceptable to the City. The 
public utility improvements shall be centered in a minimum 15-ft. wide public easement 
for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft. wide public easement for two parallel utilities 
and shall be conveyed to the City on its dedication forms. 

b. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the issuance 
of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to review and 
approval by the City Building Department. 

c. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed new 
private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public improvements 
shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

d. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 Datum.  
e. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply with the 

State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any other applicable 
codes. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 7 of 35 

Page 7 of 79

Page 219 of 301



f. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private utility 
within the general construction area. 

g. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, fiber-optic 
and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  Existing overhead 
utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably possible. 

h. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or existing 
driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

i. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
j. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be identified. 
k. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in the State 

of Oregon.  
PFA6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works construction to 

be maintained by the City: 
 

a. Cover sheet 
b. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
c. General construction note sheet 
d. Existing conditions plan. 
e. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
f. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, sidewalk 

improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements (existing/proposed), and 
sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

g. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
h. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm and 

sanitary manholes. 
i. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all utility 

crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at crossings; 
vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

j. Street plans. 
k. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and cleanouts for 

easier reference 
l. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts for 

easier reference. 
m. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), including 

water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide detail of inlet 
structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain inlets, structures, and 
piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm water detention facilities are 
typically privately maintained they will be inspected by engineering, and the plans must 
be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

n. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that although 
storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they will be inspected by 
Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public Works Permit set. 

o. Composite franchise utility plan. 
p. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
q. Illumination plan. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 8 of 35 

Page 8 of 79

Page 220 of 301



r. Striping and signage plan. 
s. Landscape plan.  

PFA7.        Design engineer shall coordinate with the City in numbering the sanitary and 
stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and 
sanitary manhole testing will refer to City’s numbering system. 

PFA8.      The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in 
conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482 
during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements until 
such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed. 

PFA9.      Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil on 
the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall obtain 
a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 to less 
than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of Wilsonville 
is required. 

PFA10.     The applicant shall be in conformance with all stormwater and flow control 
requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards. 

PFA11.      A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City. 

PFA12.     The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality 
system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a letter 
from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per specifications 
and is functioning as designed. 

PFA13.     Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some other 
erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior to streets 
and/or alleys being paved. 

PFA14.      The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department and inform them 
of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any existing well shall be limited to 
irrigation purposes only.  Proper separation, in conformance with applicable State 
standards, shall be maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems.  Should the project abandon any existing wells, they shall be 
properly abandoned in conformance with State standards. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 9 of 35 

Page 9 of 79

Page 221 of 301



PFA15.     All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within 
the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be 
adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a registered 
professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument to its original 
condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State law.  A copy of 
any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFA16.     Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFA17.      No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 

PFA18.     The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each connection 
point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 

PFA19.     The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by driveway 
placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and approved by the 
City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with driveways on the 
opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFA20.     Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's Transportation 
Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping plantings shall 
be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street intersections and 
alley/street intersections. 

PFA21.     The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm 
system to be privately maintained.  Stormwater or rainwater LID facilities may be 
located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  Applicant 
shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water 
facilities; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it is 
formed. 

PFA22.     Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to all 
public right-of-ways. 

PFA23.     For any new public easements created with the project the Applicant shall be required to 
produce the specific survey exhibits establishing the easement and shall provide the City 
with the appropriate  Easement document (on City approved forms). 

PFA24.     MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before a 
'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said 
survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as the 
physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, originally 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 10 of 35 

Page 10 of 79

Page 222 of 301



approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record survey as a 
guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans and/or 
specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall consist of 
drawings on 3 mil. Mylar and an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current version, and a 
digitally signed PDF. 

PFA25.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
Paper copies of all proposed subdivision/partition plats shall be provided to the City for 
review.  Once the subdivision/partition plat is approved, applicant shall have the 
documents recorded at the appropriate County office.  Once recording is completed by 
the County, the applicant shall be required to provide the City with a 3 mil Mylar copy 
of the recorded subdivision/partition plat. 

PFA26.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
All newly created easements shown on a subdivision or partition plat shall also be 
accompanied by the City’s appropriate Easement document (on City approved forms) 
with accompanying survey exhibits that shall be recorded immediately after the 
subdivision or partition plat. 

Specific Comments: 
PFA27. The City has estimated the costs to reconstruct Canyon Creek Road South to meet the 

requirements of the Residential Street at $1,135,099.88. The estimated costs of street 
improvements shall be divided proportionately between all owners of record based on 
property street frontage along Canyon Creek Road South; this breaks down to $232.82 per 
foot of property frontage. 

 
 Applicant/Owner shall either: 
 

1. Be responsible to submit funds to the City to equal 130% of their estimated proportionate 
share; City will undertake street reconstruction at some time in the future.  For the 150.01 
feet of property frontage, this comes to $45,402.93; or 

2. Design and construct 150.01 feet of frontage improvements that include curb and gutter, 
5-foot sidewalk, stormwater LID for new residence and driveway, and installation of three 
4” conduits terminating in vaults at the north and south end of the properties.  Applicant 
shall provide the City a cash deposit for cost to purchase and install a new streetlight 
equivalent to streetlights recently installed with the adjacent Renaissance Development.    
Construction and street repair shall be done in accordance with PFA1. 
 

PFA28.    Each lot shall be allowed one driveway access onto Canyon Creek Road South. 

PFA29.  Applicant shall obtain water and sanitary sewer service from the existing systems in 
Canyon Creek Road South.  

PFA30. If stormwater detention and/or water quality facilities are designed for joint usage between 
the tax lots, maintenance plans or the system(s) shall be required and approved prior to 
acceptance. The applicant shall be required to establish a homeowners association with 
responsibility to maintain the private stormwater detention and/or water quality. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 11 of 35 

Page 11 of 79

Page 223 of 301



 

Natural Resources Conditions: 

The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 

Stormwater Management 

NRA1.         Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, stormwater facilities are required when 
proposed development establishes or increases the impervious surface area by more 
than 5,000 square feet. Development includes new development, redevelopment, 
and/or partial redevelopment. 

NRA2.         Submit a drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
the proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the requirements of the Public Works 
Standards.  

NRA3.         Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for the proposed stormwater facilities 
consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 

NRA4.        Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 
plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for the 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NRA5.         Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of the 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other 

NRA6.        Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 
an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary: 

a. Gravel construction entrance; 
b. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
c. Sediment fence; 
d. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
e. Dust control;  
f. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
g. Limits of construction; and 
h. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NRA7.         The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN permit). 

 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 12 of 35 

Page 12 of 79

Page 224 of 301



Exhibit A2 - FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. The statutory 120-day time limit begun with the date that staff rendered the application 

for the Tentative Partition complete. The Tentative Partition application (AR14-0077) 
was deemed complete on December 4, 2014. Thus the City, including appeals, before 
May 4, 2015, must render a final decision. 

 
2.   Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
East:  RA-H SW Canyon Creek Rd. South, Single-

family residential 
South:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
West:  PDR-1 Single-family residential 

 
3.  The subject site contains an existing single-family home. 
 
5.  The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.210 and 4.233 pertaining to review 

procedures and submittal requirements for review of an appeal. 
 

Exhibit A2 - GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General: This section lists general application 
procedures applicable to a number of types of land use applications and also lists unique features 
of Wilsonville’s development review process. 
 
The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable general procedures of this 
Section. These criteria are met.  
 
Section 4.009 Who May Initiate Application: Except for a Specific Area Plan (SAP), applications 
involving specific sites may be filed only by the owner of the subject property, by a unit of government 
that is in the process of acquiring the property, or by an agent who has been authorized by the owner, 
in writing, to apply. 
 
Signed application form has been submitted by the property owners. 
 
Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference: This section lists the pre-application 
process 
 
A pre-application conference was held in 2014 for the tentative partition application – AR14-
0077 in accordance with this subsection. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval: City Council Resolution 
No. 796 precludes the approval of any development application without the prior payment of all 
applicable City liens for the subject property. Applicants shall be encouraged to contact the City 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 13 of 35 

Page 13 of 79

Page 225 of 301



Finance Department to verify that there are no outstanding liens. If the Planning Director is 
advised of outstanding liens while an application is under consideration, the Director shall advise 
the applicant that payments must be made current or the existence of liens will necessitate denial of 
the application. 
 
No applicable liens exist for the subject property. The application for the appeal can thus move 
forward. This criterion is satisfied. 
 
Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements: An 
application for a Site Development Permit shall consist of the materials specified as follows, plus any 
other materials required by this Code.” Listed 1. through 6.j. 
 
The applicant has provided all of the applicable general submission requirements contained in 
this subsection. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally: The use of any building or premises or the construction of any 
development shall be in conformity with the regulations set forth in this Code for each Zoning District 
in which it is located, except as provided in Sections 4.189 through 4.192. The General Regulations 
listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 shall apply to all zones unless the text indicates otherwise. 
 
This tentative partition with the city conditions of approval is in conformity with the RA-H zone 
and general development regulations listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 have been applied in 
accordance with this Section. These criteria are satisfied. 
 
Section 4.009(.01) Ownership: Who may initiate application 
 
The application has been submitted by the property owners meeting the above criteria.   
 
Sections 4.013-4.031, 4.113, 4.118, 4.124 Review procedures and submittal requirements 
 
The required public notices have been sent and all proper notification procedures have been 
satisfied. The applicant has complied with these sections of the Code.  
 
Section 4.120 – Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H) 
  
The subject property is designated Residential – 4 to 5 dwelling units an acre on the 
Comprehensive Plan Map and is zoned Residential Agricultural – Holding Zone (RA-H). The RA-H 
Zone allows residential outright.  
 
Section 4.022. Appeal and Call-up Procedures. 
(.01) Administrative Action Appeals. A decision by the Planning Director on issuance of a Site 
Development Permit may be appealed. Such appeals shall be heard by the Development Review Board 
for all quasi-judicial land use matters except expedited land divisions, which may be appealed to a 
referee selected by the City to consider such cases. Only the applicant may appeal a Class I decision 
unless otherwise specified in Section 4.030, and such appeals shall be filed, including all of the 
required particulars and filing fee, with the City recorder as provided in this Section. Any affected 
party may appeal a Class II decision by filing an appeal, including all of the required particulars and 
filing fee, with the City Recorder within fourteen (14) calendar days of notice of the decision. Either 
panel of the Development Review Board, or both panels if convened together, may also initiate a call-
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 14 of 35 

Page 14 of 79

Page 226 of 301



up of the Director's decision by motion, without the necessity of paying a filing fee, for matters other 
than expedited land divisions. The notice of appeal shall indicate the nature of the action or 
interpretation that is being appealed or called up and the matter at issue will be a determination of the 
appropriateness of the action or interpretation of the requirements of the Code. 
 
(.04)     Notice. Legal notice of a hearing on an appeal shall set forth: 

A. The date of the hearing. 
B. The issue(s) being appealed. C. Whether the review will be on the record or whether new 
evidence will be accepted, if known. 
 

The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable general procedures of this 
Section including legal notice requirements. The applicant’s representative is requesting de novo 
review of the appeal.  Section 4.022(.04) is met.  
 
Section 4.022(.05) Scope of Review. 
A. At its discretion, the hearing body may limit an appeal or review to a review of the record and a 
hearing for receipt of oral arguments regarding the record, or may accept new evidence and testimony. 
Except, however, that the standard of review on an appeal or call up of a staff decision to be heard by 
the Development Review Board is de novo. 

B. The reviewing body shall issue an order stating the scope of review on appeal to be one of 
the following: 
1. Restricted to the record made on the decision being appealed. 
2. Limited to such issues as the reviewing body determines necessary for a proper resolution of 
the matter. 
3. A de novo hearing on the merits. 

 
The subject application involves an appeal of a staff decision. Thus, as provided in 
Section 4.002(.05) the appeal of this staff decision to the DRB is de novo. 
 
Section 4.022(.07) Review Consisting of Additional Evidence or De Novo Review. 
A. Except as otherwise specified in this Code, or required by State law, the reviewing body may hear 
the entire matter de novo; or it may admit additional testimony and other evidence without holding a de 
novo hearing if it is satisfied that that additional testimony or other evidence could not reasonably have 
been presented at the prior hearing. The reviewing body shall consider all of the following in making 
such a decision. 

1. Prejudice to the parties. 
2. Convenience or availability of evidence at the time of the initial hearing. 
3. Surprise to opposing parties. 
 4. The competency, relevancy and materiality of the proposed testimony or other evidence. 
5. Such other factors as may be determined by the reviewing body to be appropriate. 
B. "De novo hearing" shall mean a hearing by the review body as if the action had not been 
previously heard and as if no decision had been rendered, except that all testimony, evidence 
and other material from the record of the previous consideration shall be included in the 
record of the review. 

 
Because the standard of review on an appeal of a staff decision to the DRB is generally by its 
nature de novo, meaning all matters may be considered and new evidence received, these criteria 
are satisfied by the nature of the type of appeal. 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 15 of 35 

Page 15 of 79

Page 227 of 301



 
Exhibit A1 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS – AR14-0077 
 

STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

LAND PARTITION - DOWNS 
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND DECISION 

 
 
DATE OF REPORT: January 22, 2015 
 
APPLICATION NO.: AR14-0077 
 
REQUEST: The applicants, Gerald and Joanne Downs, together with their representative, 
Ronald Downs, are requesting administrative approval of a land partition of 28205 SW Canyon 
Creek Road South, located between SW Summerton Street and Boeckman Road on the west side 
of SW Canyon Creek Road South. The land partition would allow for the existing home to 
remain, as well as the creation of one additional parcel to the south. This request is being 
processed through the Class II Administrative Review process. 
 
LOCATION: The subject property is located at 28205 SW Canyon Creek Road South, on the 
west side of SW Canyon Creek Road South. The subject site more specifically described in tax 
records as Tax Lot 2700 in Section 13BA, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, Willamette 
Meridian, City of Wilsonville, Clackamas County, Oregon. 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Gerald and Joanne Downs 
 
APPLICANT’S  
REPRESENTATIVE: Ronald Downs  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIG.:  Residential – 4 to 5 dwelling units an acre 
 
ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  Planned Development Residential (PDR-3) 
 
Applicable Review Criteria: 
City of Wilsonville Planning and Land Development Ordinance: Sections 4.008 through 4.015; 
4.030(.01)(B)(5); 4.034(.05); 4.035; 4.035(.03); 4.113; 4.118; 4.124.3; 4.167; 4.177; 4.202; 
4.210; 4.236; 4.237; 4.262; and 4.300-4.320 
 
ACTION TAKEN: Approval of the application, together with conditions of approval, as found 
beginning on page 14 of this report. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 16 of 35 

Page 16 of 79

Page 228 of 301



STAFF REVIEWERS: Jennifer Scola, Assistant Planner; Blaise Edmonds, Manager of 
Current Planning; and, Steve Adams, Development Engineering 
Manager 

 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
A1. Staff Report (this document) 
 
B. Applicant’s Submittal Notebook, as follows: 
B1. Applicant’s Narrative, dated 10/21/2014 
B2. Completed City of Wilsonville Application Form  
B3. Public Record Report for New Subdivision, dated 09/04/2014 
B4. Preliminary Partition Plat Plan  
B5. Vicinity Map 
B6. Tax Lot Information  
B7. Certification of Assessment and Liens 
B8. Description of No-Construction Easement  
 
C1. Tax Map 
C2. Case File 03DB43, Findings E19, E30, and Condition of Approval DRB D3 
C3. Case File 03DB43 of Exhibit 44 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
East:  RA-H SW Canyon Creek Rd. South, Single-

family residential 
South:  PDR-3 Single-family residential 
West:  PDR-1 Single-family residential 

 
2. The Comprehensive Plan does not place this site in an Area of Special Concern. 
 
3. The subject site contains an existing single-family home. 
 
5. The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.210 and 4.233 pertaining to review procedures 
and submittal requirements for review of a tentative partition plat. 
 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 17 of 35 

Page 17 of 79

Page 229 of 301



SUMMARY OF PROPOSAL: 
 
The project summary submitted by the Applicant is found in the Applicant’s narrative (Exhibit 
B1), and on accompanying drawing (Exhibit B5).  Except where a discrepancy is determined to 
exist, and may be discussed in this report, the Applicant’s will not be duplicated here. 
 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS: 

 
Sections 4.008-4.009 Application Procedures and Applicant’s Rights   
 
1. The Applicant’s submitted documents meet these code criteria. 

 
Section 4.014 Burden of Proof 

 
2. Subsection 4.014 provides that the Applicant bears the burden of proving that the 

necessary findings of fact can be made for approval of any land use or development 
application.  Staff finds that the Applicant has provided sufficient information proving 
the necessary findings of fact.   

 
Subsection 4.030(.01)(B)(5) Class II Administrative Review - Land Partitions 
 
3. This subsection directs land partitions, other than expedited land partitions, to be 

processed according to the Class II Administrative Review procedures pursuant to 
Section 4.210. In addition, it directs approval of land partitions to be based on the 
following criteria: 

 
a. The applicant has made a complete submittal of materials for the Director to review, as 
required by Section 4.210. 
 

4. The Applicant has submitted the required documents, satisfying this subsection. 
 

b. The proposed plan meets the requirements of the Code regarding minimum lot size and yard 
setbacks. 
 

5. The tentative plat demonstrates that two (2) proposed parcels meet the requirements for 
minimum lot size. The northernmost lot of the two (2) proposed parcels does not meet 
minimum setback requirements; however condition of approval PDA6 requires that a 
Reduced Setback Agreement be recorded with the final plat.  
 
c. The approval will not impede or adversely affect the orderly development of any adjoining 
property or access thereto. 
 

6. Access to adjoining properties will not be affected, and the abutting sites have already 
been developed. This provision is met. 
 
d. The public right-of-way bordering the lots will meet City standards. 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 18 of 35 

Page 18 of 79

Page 230 of 301



7. An Engineering Condition of Approval, PFA4, will ensure any improvements in the 
right-of-way bordering the lots meet City standards. 

 
e. Any required public dedications of land have been approved for acceptance by the City and 
will be recorded with the County prior to final plat approval. 
 

8. No dedication of land to the public is required as part of this partition. This provision is 
met. 

 
f. Adequate easements are proposed where an existing utility line crosses or encroaches upon 
any other parcel to be created by the partition. 
 

9. No existing utility lines cross or encroach upon any of the proposed parcels as discussed 
in this subsection.  This provision does not apply. 

 
g. All public utilities and facilities are available or can be provided prior to the issuance of any 
development permit for any lot or parcel. 
 

10. Engineering PFA3 ensures that prior to any development permit is issued, all public 
utility and facility plans will be submitted and reviewed. This provision is satisfied. 

 
h. Roads extended or created as a result of the land partition will meet City standards. 
 

11. No roads will be extended or created as result of the proposed partition. This provision 
does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.034(.05) Application Requirements 
 
12. The Applicant has submitted all of the materials required by this subsection. 
 
Subsection 4.035(.03) Procedure for Processing Class II - Administrative Review. 
 
13. The Applicant's proposal will, together with the attached conditions of approval, result in 

conformance with applicable provisions of the City's Planning and Land Development 
Ordinance. Staff has followed the provisions of this code section. Staff notes that this 
approval is contingent upon final plat approval by the City and recordation of the final 
approved partition plat with the Clackamas County Clerk's Office. 
 

Section 4.113 Standards for Residential Development in All Zones 
 

14. Provisions of this section regarding landscaping are not applicable to partitions.  The area 
of the two proposed parcels will allow all other applicable provisions of this section, 
including setbacks, to be met. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 19 of 35 

Page 19 of 79

Page 231 of 301



Sections 4.124 Standards Applying to All Planned Development Residential Zones 
      Subsection 4.124 (.01)-(.04) Uses allowed in Planned Development Residential Zones 
 

15. These subsections lists uses associated with the Planned Development Residential Zones. 
The parcels will be sufficient for a number of uses allowed in the Planned Development 
Residential Zones. 

 
Subsection 4.124 (.06) Block and Access Standards 

 
16. No new blocks or streets are involved with the proposal. 

 
Section 4.124.3 Planned Development Residential-3 Zone 
 
Subsection 4.124.3 (.01) Average Lot Size 

 
17. The average lot size for a lot in the PDR-3 Zone is 7,000 square feet, of which the 

proposed parcels exceed 7,000 square feet.  
 

Subsection 4.124.3 (.02) Minimum Lot Size 
 

18. The minimum lot size for PDR-3 Zone is 5,000 square feet. At 8,100 square feet, and 
12,150 square feet, the two (2) proposed parcels meet this minimum requirement. This 
provision is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.124.3 (.03) Minimum density at build-out 

 
19. The minimum density at build-out for the PDR-3 Zone is 8,000 square feet. Both 

proposed parcels would meet this minimum. This provision is satisfied.  
 

Subsection 4.124.3 (.04) Other Standards 
 

20. All other applicable standards will or can be met by the proposed parcels. This provision 
is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 

 
21. The subject parcel was part of a previously approved Planned Development, subject to 

this Section. All requirements of this section were found to be satisfied by the 
development (see case file 03DB43). As shown in Exhibit 44 of Case File 03DB43 
(Exhibit C3), the partition of the subject property was anticipated as a future phase of the 
planned development.  Because certain frontage and other requirements were not required 
at the time of that approval, due to lack of planned development on the parcel at hand, 
certain development requirements were deferred but must be put into place now that this 
property is being further partitioned and redeveloped. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 20 of 35 

Page 20 of 79

Page 232 of 301



Section 4.155 Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking 
 
22. This section requires that each dwelling provide a minimum of one parking space. The 

proposed parcel Number Two (2) will enable siting of a future dwelling that will be 
required to provide one off-street parking space.  This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.167 General Regulations – Access, Ingress and Egress 
 
23. These provisions require that safe access be provided to each of the proposed uses.  The 

proposed parcel Number Two (2) will have direct access to Canyon Creek Road South, 
and the parcel with the existing structure has a driveway, also taking access from Canyon 
Creek Road South.  This criteria is satisfied. 

 
Section 4.176 Landscaping, Screening and Buffering 
 
24. Because the proposal is for a partition, rather than a subdivision, there are no landscape 

requirements applicable to the request.  While Subsection 4.176(.06)(d) provides for the 
installation of street trees along the frontage of the proposed parcels, such requirement is 
appropriately limited to subdivisions, not partitions.  This section is not applicable. 
 

Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
 
25. This Subsection requires that all development, which by its definition includes a partition 

of a property into two or more lots, comply with the requirements of this Section, the 
Wilsonville Public Works Standards, and the Transportation Plan in rough proportion to 
the potential impacts of development, including redevelopment.  The required options 
contained in PFA27 satisfy this criterion. 

 
Subsection 4.202 (.04) B. Parcel Partitions Not Allowed that Make Remaining Parcels Less than 
Allowed in Zone. 
 
26. This subsection does not allow parcel partitions to create parcels less than that allowed in 

the zone. The minimum parcel size for the Planned Development Residential Zone (PDR-
3) is 5,000 square feet. Proposed Parcel 1 will be 12,150 square feet, proposed Parcel 2 
will be 8,100 square feet, with both two (2) parcels exceeding the required minimum.  
This criterion is met.  [See also findings for Subsection 4.124.3 (.02), above.] 

 
Section 4.210 Land Divisions - Application Procedure. 

      Subsection 4.210 (.01) A. Pre-Application Meeting 
 
27. This subsection requires a pre-application meeting as part of the process. While no formal 

pre-application meeting was held, the applicant did contact staff to understand required 
submittal materials and the review process. This provision is satisfied. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 21 of 35 

Page 21 of 79

Page 233 of 301



Subsection 4.210 (.01) B. Tentative Plat Submission 
 

28. This subsection sets forth the submission requirements for tentative plats. The Applicant 
submitted the required documents, meeting the requirements of this subsection. [See also 
finding for Subsection 4.030(.01)(B)(5)(a), above.] 

 
Section 4.236 General Requirements – Streets 

     Subsection 4.236 (.01) Conformity to the Master Plan or Map 
 

29. This subsection requires land partitions to be in harmony with adopted Transportation 
Master Plans, Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plans, Park and Recreation Master Plans, 
and the Master Street Plan. The proposed land partition does not create any new 
infrastructure associated with these plans, nor is any required. There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposed partition would affect the harmony of existing infrastructure 
with the above plans.  This criterion is met. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) A. Relation to Adjoining Street System 

 
30. This subsection requires land partitions to provide for the continuation of the principal 

streets existing in the adjoining area and proposed streets to be the width required 
elsewhere in the Wilsonville City Code.  No new streets are planned or proposed with 
this partition. There are no adjoining streets that would continue through the subject 
property. This criterion does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) B. Requirement to Submit Prospective Future Street System  

 
31. This subsection requires the submission of prospective future street systems when the 

land partition does not cover the entire tract. The proposed land partition covers the 
Applicant’s entire tract and no streets are proposed. This criterion does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.02) C. Arrangement of Parcels to Allow Future Subdivision 

 
32. This subsection requires the arrangement of streets and parcels to allow for future land 

partition if allowed by the Comprehensive Plan. The parcels are arranged in a manner to 
allow the partition, if found compliant with the Comprehensive Plan. This provision is 
satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.03) Conformity with Section 4.177 and Block Standards of Zone. 

 
33. This subsection requires all streets to conform to Section 4.177 of the Wilsonville City 

Code and block standards of the zone. No new streets or will result from this application. 
This provision does not apply. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.04) Creation of Easements 

 
34. This subsection allows the Planning Director to approve easements as a reasonable 

method to allow vehicular access and adequate utilities to the lots in this two-parcel land 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 22 of 35 

Page 22 of 79

Page 234 of 301



partition. The applicant is required to provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement 
on lot frontages to all public right-of-ways See Condition PFA22.  This provision is 
satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.236 (.08) Existing Streets 

 
35. No additional right-of-way is being required as part of the proposed partition.  Therefore, 

the standards in this subsection are not affected.  
 

Section 4.237 General Requirements – Other. 
      Subsection 4.237 (.01) Block Standards 
 

36. This subsection provides standards for new blocks created by land partitions. No block 
creation is involved in the proposed land partition. These criteria do not apply. 

 
 
Subsection 4.237 (.02) Easements 

 
37. This subsection requires easements for existing and needed utility lines. As indicated in 

Finding 34, above, a six-foot-wide public utility easement will be required along the 
frontage of the two parcels. Condition of Approval PFA22 requires a six-foot-wide public 
utility easement along the Canyon Creek Road South frontage for potential future 
franchise utilities. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.03) Pedestrian and Bicycle Pathway 

 
38. This subsection requires an improved public path for blocks that exceed the length 

standard for the zone they are located in. No new blocks are involved in this partition. 
Compliance with this subsection is not altered by the proposed partition. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.04) Street Tree Planting 

 
39. This subsection presents requirements for street trees, as applicable.  No street trees are 

proposed by the Applicant.  Because the application is for a partition, rather than a 
subdivision, street trees are not required.  This provision is satisfied.  

 
Subsection 4.237 (.05) Parcel Size, Shape, Width, and Orientation. 

 
40. This subsection requires the parcels resulting from the land partition have the size, width, 

shape and orientation appropriate for the location of the land partition and for the 
development and use that are contemplated as well as for the zone in which they are 
located. Proposed parcel sizes, widths, shapes and orientation are appropriate for 
contemplated future development and are in conformance with the PDR-3 requirements. 
The proposed partition complies with the standards of this subsection. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 23 of 35 

Page 23 of 79

Page 235 of 301



Subsection 4.237 (.06) Access 
 

41. This subsection requires parcels resulting from the land partition have the minimum 
frontage of public streets. The parcels resulting from proposed land partition meet the 
street frontage requirements for the zone. This provision is met.  

 
Subsection 4.237 (.07) Through Lots 

 
42. The current parcel is not a through lot, and the proposed parcel also will not be a through 

lot. The applicable provisions of this subsection are satisfied. 
 

Subsection 4.237 (.08) Parcel Side Lines 
 
43. This subsection requires side parcel lines be at right angles to the street the parcels face as 

far as practical. All parcel lines are at right angles. This provision is met. 
 

Subsection 4.237 (.10) Building Line 
 

44. This subsection gives the Planning Director authority to create building setback lines to 
be recorded on the plat to allow for future repartition or other development or to support 
other findings. In a separate Class I Administrative Application, the Applicant is seeking 
a setback agreement to allow reduced setbacks between the existing house and the future 
house at a side property line. 

 
Subsection 4.237 (.11) Build-to Line 

 
45. This subsection gives the Planning Director authority to create build-to lines for the 

development. The Applicant is not requesting nor is the Planning Director requiring the 
creation of build-to-lines. 

 
Section 4.250 Legal Lots of Record 

 
46. The existing parcel is a legal lot of record. Upon satisfaction of conditions of approval 

and recordation of a final plat, the one (1) resulting parcel will also be a legal lot of 
record, meeting this provision. 

 
Section 4.260 Improvements-Procedure 

 
47. This section requires, in addition to other requirements, improvements installed by the 

developer to conform to the requirements of Wilsonville’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards.  Condition of Approval PDA4 will ensure the requirements of this section are 
met. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 24 of 35 

Page 24 of 79

Page 236 of 301



Section 4.262 Improvements-Requirements 
 

48. This section presents improvement requirements for individual improvements and 
utilities including curbs, sidewalks, sewer, and water. Engineering Conditions will ensure 
the requirements of this section are met. 

 
Section 4.264 Improvements - Assurance 

 
49. This section requires assurance for improvements. An engineering condition of approval 

will ensure the requirements of this section are met. 
 

Section 4.320 Underground Utility Requirements 
 

50. This section requires all utilities to be underground. Condition of Approval PDA5 will 
ensure any utilities are installed underground. 

 
 
ACTION TAKEN AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR REQUEST AR14-0077: 
Based on the analysis above, and conclusionary findings 1 through 50 the request is hereby 
approved, together with the following conditions of approval: 

This decision approves only the tentative partition described in the request above, as modified by 
the conditions below, and is on file with the City of Wilsonville’s Planning Division as Case File 
AR14-0077.  

Planning Conditions: 

PDA1. Approval of the partition is effective for two (2) years from the date of the notice 
of decision. Time extensions may be granted per Section 4.023 of the City’s 
Development Code. The Applicant shall submit final plat application within two 
(2) years of date of the notice of decision. 

PDA2.  The final plat for the land partition shall be in substantial compliance with the 
approved tentative plat and narrative submitted to the Planning Division as part 
of this application. 

PDA3. The Applicant/Owner shall provide the City’s Engineering and Planning Division 
with a copy of the final plat of the land partition recorded with the Clackamas 
County Surveyor’s Office. 

PDA4. Any improvements installed shall conform to the City’s Development Code, 
improvement standards, specifications of the City, and the City’s Public Works 
Standards. 

PDA5. Any utilities installed as part of development on the property shall be installed 
underground. 

PDA6.  A Reduced Setback Agreement shall be recorded concurrently with the final plat.  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 25 of 35 

Page 25 of 79

Page 237 of 301



PDA7.  The final plat shall not display the ten-foot No Construction Easement, nor shall 
the proposed building outline for the southern parcel of the partition. 

 

Engineering Division Conditions: 

New development on the two lots shall be in compliance with the following Engineering 
conditions of approval. 

Standard Comments: 

PFA 1. All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to 
the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards - 2014. 

PFA 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 
following amounts: 
 
General Aggregate                                                                        $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate                                 $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                                                                           $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                                                   $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)                                                           $50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)                                               $10,000 

PFA 3. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained 
and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFA 4. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22” x 
34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public 
Work’s Standards. 

PFA 5. Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

l. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not contained 
within a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access acceptable to the 
City. The public utility improvements shall be centered in a minimum 15-ft. wide 
public easement for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft. wide public easement for 
two parallel utilities and shall be conveyed to the City on its dedication forms. 

m. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the 
issuance of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to review 
and approval by the City Building Department. 

n. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed new 
private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public improvements 
shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 26 of 35 

Page 26 of 79

Page 238 of 301



o. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 
Datum.   

p. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply with the 
State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any other applicable 
codes. 

q. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private utility 
within the general construction area. 

r. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, fiber-
optic and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  Existing 
overhead utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably possible. 

s. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or existing 
driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

t. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
u. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be identified. 
v. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in the 

State of Oregon.  
PFA 6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works 

construction to be maintained by the City: 
 

t. Cover sheet 
u. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
v. General construction note sheet 
w. Existing conditions plan. 
x. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
y. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, sidewalk 

improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements (existing/proposed), and 
sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

z. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
aa. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm and 

sanitary manholes. 
bb. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all utility 

crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at crossings; 
vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

cc. Street plans. 
dd. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and cleanouts 

for easier reference 
ee. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts for 

easier reference. 
ff. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), 

including water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide detail of 
inlet structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain inlets, structures, 
and piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm water detention facilities are 
typically privately maintained they will be inspected by engineering, and the plans 
must be part of the Public Works Permit set. 
 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 27 of 35 

Page 27 of 79

Page 239 of 301



gg. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that 
although storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they will be 
inspected by Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public Works 
Permit set. 

hh. Composite franchise utility plan. 
ii. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
jj. Illumination plan. 
kk. Striping and signage plan. 
ll. Landscape plan.  

PFA 7. Design engineer shall coordinate with the City in numbering the sanitary and 
stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and 
sanitary manhole testing will refer to City’s numbering system. 

PFA 8. The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in 
conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 
482 during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements 
until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed. 

PFA 9. Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil 
on the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall 
obtain a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 
to less than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of 
Wilsonville is required. 

PFA 10. The applicant shall be in conformance with all stormwater and flow control 
requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards. 

PFA 11. A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City. 

PFA 12. The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality 
system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a 
letter from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per 
specifications and is functioning as designed. 

PFA 13. Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some 
other erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior 
to streets and/or alleys being paved. 

PFA 14. The applicant shall contact the Oregon Water Resources Department and inform them 
of any existing wells located on the subject site. Any existing well shall be limited to 
irrigation purposes only.  Proper separation, in conformance with applicable State 
standards, shall be maintained between irrigation systems, public water systems, and 
public sanitary systems.  Should the project abandon any existing wells, they shall be 
properly abandoned in conformance with State standards. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 28 of 35 

Page 28 of 79

Page 240 of 301



PFA 15. All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within 
the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be 
adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a 
registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument 
to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State 
law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFA 16. Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFA 17. No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 

PFA 18. The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each 
connection point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 

PFA 19. The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by 
driveway placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and 
approved by the City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with 
driveways on the opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFA 20. Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's 
Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping 
plantings shall be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street 
intersections and alley/street intersections. 

PFA 21. The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm 
system to be privately maintained.  Stormwater or rainwater LID facilities may be 
located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  Applicant 
shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water 
facilities; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it 
is formed. 

PFA 22. Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to 
all public right-of-ways. 

PFA 23. For any new public easements created with the project the Applicant shall be required 
to produce the specific survey exhibits establishing the easement and shall provide the 
City with the appropriate  Easement document (on City approved forms). 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 29 of 35 

Page 29 of 79

Page 241 of 301



PFA 24. MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before 
a 'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said 
survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as 
the physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, 
originally approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record 
survey as a guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans 
and/or specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall 
consist of drawings on 3 mil. Mylar and an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current 
version, and a digitally signed PDF. 

PFA 25. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
Paper copies of all proposed subdivision/partition plats shall be provided to the City 
for review.  Once the subdivision/partition plat is approved, applicant shall have the 
documents recorded at the appropriate County office.  Once recording is completed by 
the County, the applicant shall be required to provide the City with a 3 mil Mylar copy 
of the recorded subdivision/partition plat. 

PFA 26. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS: 
All newly created easements shown on a subdivision or partition plat shall also be 
accompanied by the City’s appropriate Easement document (on City approved forms) 
with accompanying survey exhibits that shall be recorded immediately after the 
subdivision or partition plat. 

Specific Comments: 
PFA27. The City has estimated the costs to reconstruct Canyon Creek Road South to meet the 

requirements of the Residential Street at $1,135,099.88. The estimated costs of street 
improvements shall be divided proportionately between all owners of record based on 
property street frontage along Canyon Creek Road South; this breaks down to $232.82 per 
foot of property frontage.  

                                                                     
 PFA28.    Each lot shall be allowed one driveway access onto Canyon Creek Road South. 

PFA29.  Applicant shall obtain water and sanitary sewer service from the existing systems in 
Canyon Creek Road South.  

PFA30. If stormwater detention and/or water quality facilities are designed for joint usage 
between the tax lots, maintenance plans or the system(s) shall be required and approved 
prior to acceptance. The applicant shall be required to establish a homeowners association 
with responsibility to maintain the private stormwater detention and/or water quality. 

  
 

Natural Resources Conditions: 

The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 30 of 35 

Page 30 of 79

Page 242 of 301



subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 

Stormwater Management 

NRA 1. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, stormwater facilities are required when 
proposed development establishes or increases the impervious surface area by more 
than 5,000 square feet. Development includes new development, redevelopment, 
and/or partial redevelopment. 

NRA 2. Submit a drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
the proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the requirements of the Public Works 
Standards.  

NRA 3. Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for the proposed stormwater facilities 
consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 

NRA 4. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 
plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for the 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NRA 5. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of the 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other 

NRA 6. Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 
an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary: 

i. Gravel construction entrance; 
j. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
k. Sediment fence; 
l. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
m. Dust control;  
n. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
o. Limits of construction; and 
p. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NRA 7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 
proposed construction activities (e.g., DEQ NPDES #1200–CN permit). 

 
  

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 31 of 35 

Page 31 of 79

Page 243 of 301



 
Exhibit A2, DB15-0006  - PROPOSED ADDITIONAL FINDINGS: 
 
Section 4.118(03)C. 9.  A waiver of the right of remonstrance by the applicant to the formation of a 

Local Improvement District (LID) for streets, utilities and/or other public purposes.  
 
51. In tentative partition approval (AR14-0077) waiver of remonstrance was not included as 

a condition of approval. Staff is proposing the above requirement be added as condition 
PDA8.  

 
Section 4.177. Street Improvement Standards.  This section contains the City’s requirements and 

standards for pedestrian, bicycle, and transit facility improvements to public streets, or 
within public easements. The purpose of this section is to ensure that development, 
including redevelopment, provides transportation facilities that are safe, convenient, and 
adequate in rough proportion to their impacts. 

 
52. To satisfy the foregoing PFA27 requires that the applicant/owner construct sidewalk and 

integrated road improvements to front only that land that is the subject of this application 
and not beyond those boundaries.  The City Development Code at this Section sets the 
standards for pedestrian, bicycle and transit facilities for public streets, including curb 
and sidewalk, to ensure that development, including redevelopment, provides safe 
convenient and adequate facilities in rough proportion to their impacts.  As this property 
is now being subdivided into two separate lots with two separate homes, the sidewalk 
/roadway transportation requirements being imposed cover only those properties.  City 
Code requires these improvements to be made at the time of development or 
redevelopment, and this partition constitutes redevelopment, per Code definition. 

 
 Further to this requirement, the City’s Comprehensive Plan sets forth the requirements 

for a connected network of sidewalks and requires, at implementation Measure 3.3.2.d 
that all gaps in the existing sidewalk network be filled so as to create safe and accessible 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  Thus, in accordance with that requirement, as each 
parcel in the City without sidewalks is developed or redeveloped, the placement of the 
sidewalk and related curb, gutter and street improvements to current City standards is 
required to be built by the developer in front of the developer’s property, as a 
proportionate requirement of development.  This requirement has been consistently 
imposed as a developer responsibility as development occurs, thereby resulting in fewer 
gaps in the sidewalk.  Just as the City Code at Section 2.220 requires the property owner 
to be responsible for the sidewalk repairs that front the owner’s property, so does the 
Code require the property owner/developer to install those same sidewalks as a 
proportionate condition of development. 

 
 State and Federal law requires that all Development conform to the requirements of the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, thus requiring sidewalks to meet exact construction 
criteria and connectivity requirements as properties are developed or redeveloped.  The 
applicant has one property that is being redeveloped into two (2) home sites and is 
therefore required to bring that property up to current ADA requirements. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 32 of 35 

Page 32 of 79

Page 244 of 301



Section 4.177(.01).  Development and related public facility improvements shall comply with the 
standards in this section, the Wilsonville Public Works Standards, and the Transportation 
System Plan, in rough proportion to the potential impacts of the development. Such 
improvements shall be constructed at the time of development or as provided by 
Section 4.140, except as modified or waived by the City Engineer for reasons of safety or 
traffic operations. 

 
53. See Finding 52. 
 
Section 4.177(.02) Street Design Standards. 
 

A. All street improvements and intersections shall provide for the continuation of 
streets through specific developments to adjoining properties or subdivisions. 
 
1. Development shall be required to provide existing or future connections to adjacent 
sites through the use of access easements where applicable. Such easements shall be 
required in addition to required public street dedications as required in Section 4.236(.04). 

 
54. Canyon Creek Road South fronting the east side of the subject property is a public street. 

It provides direct connections to existing and future to adjacent sites. 
 
Section 4.177(.03) Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be provided on the public street frontage of all 

development. Sidewalks shall generally be constructed within the dedicated public right-of-
way, but may be located outside of the right-of-way within a public easement with the 
approval of the City Engineer. 

 
A. Sidewalk widths shall include a minimum through zone of at least five feet. The 
through zone may be reduced pursuant to variance procedures in Section 4.196, a waiver 
pursuant to Section 4.118, or by authority of the City Engineer for reasons of traffic 
operations, efficiency, or safety. 

 
55. See Finding 52. 
 
Section 4.177(.04) Bicycle Facilities.  Bicycle facilities shall be provided to implement the 

Transportation System Plan, and may include on-street and off-street bike lanes, shared 
lanes, bike boulevards, and cycle tracks. The design of on-street bicycle facilities will vary 
according to the functional classification and the average daily traffic of the facility. 

 
56. Applicant is not required to add Bicycle facilities. 
 
Section 4.236. General Requirements - Streets. 
 

(.01) Conformity to the Transportation System Plan. Land divisions shall conform to and be 
in harmony with the Transportation Systems Plan, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan, 
and the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 
 
(.02) Relation to Adjoining Street System. 
A. A land division shall provide for the continuation of the principal streets existing in the 
adjoining area, or of their proper projection when adjoining property is not developed, and 
shall be of a width not less than the minimum requirements for streets set forth in these 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 33 of 35 

Page 33 of 79

Page 245 of 301



regulations. Where, in the opinion of the Planning Director or Development Review Board, 
topographic conditions make such continuation or conformity impractical, an exception 
may be made. In cases where the Board or Planning Commission has adopted a plan or plat 
of a neighborhood or area of which the proposed land division is a part, the subdivision 
shall conform to such adopted neighborhood or area plan. 

 
57. Based on conditions of approval, all of the above applicable conditions will be met. 
 
Section 4.260. Improvements - Procedures. 

In addition to other requirements, improvements installed by the developer, either as a 
requirement of these regulations or at the developer's own option, shall conform to the 
requirements of this Code and improvement standards and specifications of the City. The 
improvements shall be installed in accordance with the City's Public Works Standards. 

 
58. Applicant has the option under PDF 27 of installing or paying the City to perform the 

work. 
 
Section 4.262. Improvements - Requirements. 
 

(.01) Streets. Streets within or partially within the development shall be graded for the 
entire right-of-way width, constructed and surfaced in accordance with the Transportation 
Systems Plan and City Public Works Standards. Existing streets which abut the 
development shall be graded, constructed, reconstructed, surfaced or repaired as 
determined by the City Engineer. 
 

59. Design and construction requirements for all public transportation facilities shall be done 
in conformance with the 2014 Public Works Standards, Section 2, “Transportation 
Design and Construction Standards.”  Specific street design standards are found in 
Section 201.2.00 of the Public Works Standards; detail drawing RD-1015 shows the 
design standards for Residential Streets. 
 
(.02) Curbs. Curbs shall be constructed in accordance with standards adopted by the City. 
 

60. Curb and gutters are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing 
RD-1015.  Specific design standards for curbs are provided in Section 201.2.24 of the 
Public Works Standards. 
 
(.03) Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be constructed in accordance with standards adopted by 
the City. 
 

61. Sidewalks are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing RD-1015.  
Specific design standards for sidewalks are provided in Section 201.2.25 of the Public 
Works Standards. 
 
(.04) Sanitary sewers. When the development is within two hundred (200) feet of an existing 
public sewer main, sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve each lot or parcel in 
accordance with standards adopted by the City. When the development is more than two 
hundred (200) feet from an existing public sewer main, the City Engineer may approve an 
alternate sewage disposal system. 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 34 of 35 

Page 34 of 79

Page 246 of 301



 
62. An existing sanitary sewer main is located in Canyon Creek Road South.  Applicant is 

required to install a sanitary sewer service line to the new parcel being created with the 
partition.  Specific design standards for sanitary sewer lateral service lines is provided in 
Section 401.2.02.f., Section 401.2.02.g., and Section 401.2.02.i. of the Public Works 
Standards and in detail drawing S-2175. 
 
(.05) Drainage. Storm drainage, including detention or retention systems, shall be provided 
as determined by the City Engineer. 
 

63. Applicant is required to be in conformance with the 2014 Public Works Standards, 
Section 3, “Stormwater & Surface Water Design & Construction Standards” for all 
stormwater, flow control, and water quality facilities installed within the proposed 
development.  Specific design requirements and options are located in numerous 
subsections of Section 3 and also found in several detail drawings. 
 
(.06) Underground utility and service facilities. All new utilities shall be subject to the 
standards of Section 4.300 (Underground Utilities). The developer shall make all necessary 
arrangements with the serving utility to provide the underground services in conformance 
with the City's Public Works Standards. 
 

64. Underground utility and service facilities are required elements of Residential Streets, per 
detail drawing RD-1015 and Section 201.2.31.a. of the Public Works Standards.  
However, with only 150 feet of street improvements, it is not economical to underground 
the existing overhead franchise utilities.  Applicant has been allowed to install three 
conduits, terminating in vaults, for future use when the City moves forward with 
undergrounding these utilities.  Applicant is also required to provide a 6-foot wide public 
utility easement per Section 201.2.31.b. of the Public Works Standards and per detail 
drawing RD-1015. 

 
(.07) Streetlight standards. Streetlight standards shall be installed in accordance with 
regulations adopted by the City. 
 

65. Streetlights are required elements of Residential Streets, per detail drawing RD-1015.  
Specific design standards for streetlights are provided in Section 201.9.00 of the Public 
Works Standards.  With existing overhead utility lines, installation of a street light is not 
possible.  Applicant has been required to provide the City with a cash deposit for cost to 
purchase and install a new streetlight equivalent to streetlights recently installed within 
nearby development. 
 
(.10) Water. Water mains and fire hydrants shall be installed to serve each lot in accordance 
with City standards. 
 

66. Water mains and fire hydrants were installed on Canyon Creek Road South in 2005 and 
no additional requirements were placed on the Applicant. 

 

Staff Report - File No. DB15-0006  February 23, 2015 
Appeal  Page 35 of 35 

Page 35 of 79

Page 247 of 301



Page 36 of 79

Page 248 of 301



Page 37 of 79

Page 249 of 301



Page 38 of 79

Page 250 of 301



Page 39 of 79

Page 251 of 301



Page 40 of 79

Page 252 of 301



Page 41 of 79

Page 253 of 301



Page 42 of 79

Page 254 of 301



Page 43 of 79

Page 255 of 301



Page 44 of 79

Page 256 of 301



Page 45 of 79

Page 257 of 301



Page 46 of 79

Page 258 of 301



Page 47 of 79

Page 259 of 301



Page 48 of 79

Page 260 of 301



Page 49 of 79

Page 261 of 301



Page 50 of 79

Page 262 of 301



Page 51 of 79

Page 263 of 301



Page 52 of 79

Page 264 of 301



Page 53 of 79

Page 265 of 301



Page 54 of 79

Page 266 of 301



Page 55 of 79

Page 267 of 301



Page 56 of 79

Page 268 of 301



Page 57 of 79

Page 269 of 301



Page 58 of 79

Page 270 of 301



Page 59 of 79

Page 271 of 301



Page 60 of 79

Page 272 of 301



Page 61 of 79

Page 273 of 301



Page 62 of 79

Page 274 of 301



Page 63 of 79

Page 275 of 301



Page 64 of 79

Page 276 of 301



Page 65 of 79

Page 277 of 301



Page 66 of 79

Page 278 of 301



Page 67 of 79

Page 279 of 301



Page 68 of 79

Page 280 of 301



Page 69 of 79

Page 281 of 301



Page 70 of 79

Page 282 of 301



Page 71 of 79

Page 283 of 301



Page 72 of 79

Page 284 of 301



Page 73 of 79

Page 285 of 301



Page 74 of 79

Page 286 of 301



Page 75 of 79

Page 287 of 301



Page 76 of 79

Page 288 of 301



Page 77 of 79

Page 289 of 301



Page 78 of 79

Page 290 of 301



Page 79 of 79

Page 291 of 301



Case Files: AR14-0077 and  
DB15-0006 

Downs Appeal 
Land Partition 

 
Public Hearing 

Development Review Board – Panel B 
February 23, 2015 

City of Wilsonville 
EXHIBIT A3  AR14-0077 AND 

DB15-0006  

 

Page 292 of 301



C
A

N
YO

N
 C

RE
EK

 R
O

A
D 

SO
UT

H 

SUMMERTON ST. 

CROSSCREEK SUB. 
CHARLES 
KNORR 

JAMES 
KNORR 

GERALD & CLEO  
DOWNS 

Page 293 of 301



Page 294 of 301



SITE 

EXISTING  
SIDEWALKS:  
 
FUTURE  
SIDEWALKS: 

Page 295 of 301



PARCEL 2 FUTURE HOMESITE 
PARCEL 1  

Page 296 of 301



PARCEL 2 

CHARLES KNORR 

Page 297 of 301



Page 298 of 301



PARCEL 1 

Page 299 of 301



JAMES KNORR 

Page 300 of 301



CROSSCREEK 
SUBDIVISION 

Page 301 of 301


	April 6, 2015 Agenda
	Community Development Permit Fee Staff Report
	2015 Parkinson's Disease
	Mayors Day of Recognition for National Service Proclamation
	2015 City AND County Day of Recognition Fact Sheet

	Arbor Day Staff Report
	Arbor Day Proclamation

	2015 Child Abuse Prevention Month
	Children's Center Overview and CAP 2015

	Rolling Schedule
	March 16, 2015 Minutes
	Res2524 Downs Appeal Documents
	Res2524 Staff Report
	Res2524
	Res2524 Findings of Fact (bj^)
	0.  Index for CC
	1.  Downs ltr - Appeal to CC
	2.   Feb 23 2015 DRAFT Minutes
	3.   DRB NoD.Res
	4.   DRB Amended Adopted SR 2.23.2015
	Revised STAFF REPORT
	WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION

	summary
	DB15-0006 - proposed Approved revised CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:
	Section 4.009(.01) Ownership: Who may initiate application
	Sections 4.013-4.031, 4.113, 4.118, 4.124 Review procedures and submittal requirements

	PFA24.     MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS: 
	PFA25.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	PFA26.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS – AR14-0077
	Land Partition - Downs
	PFA 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the following amounts:
	PFA 24. MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS: 
	PFA 25. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	PFA 26. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:

	5.   New Exhibits 2.23.2015
	Exhibit A5
	Exhibit B10
	Exhibit B11
	Exhibit B12
	Exhibit B13
	Exhibit B14
	Exhibit B15
	Exhibit B16
	Exhibit D1

	6.   DRB Packet 2.23.2015 -SR.Exhibits
	Revised STAFF REPORT
	summary
	DB15-0006 - proposed revised CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:
	Section 4.009(.01) Ownership: Who may initiate application
	Sections 4.013-4.031, 4.113, 4.118, 4.124 Review procedures and submittal requirements

	PFA24.     MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS: 
	PFA25.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	PFA26.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS – AR14-0077
	Land Partition - Downs
	PFA 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the following amounts:
	PFA 24. MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS: 
	PFA 25. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	PFA 26. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	Ex. A1 Orig AR14-0077 SR.pdf
	Downs Decision Package AR14 0077

	Pkt Sec PD DRB-B rev SR~Downs RED (2).pdf
	Revised STAFF REPORT
	WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION

	summary
	DB15-0006 - proposed revised CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:
	Section 4.009(.01) Ownership: Who may initiate application
	Sections 4.013-4.031, 4.113, 4.118, 4.124 Review procedures and submittal requirements

	PFA24.     MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS: 
	PFA25.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	PFA26.     SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS – AR14-0077
	Land Partition - Downs
	PFA 24. MYLAR RECORD DRAWINGS: 
	PFA 25. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:
	PFA 26. SUBDIVISION OR PARTITION PLATS:


	6.   Exhibit A3 PowerPoint
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10





